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San Jose Pension Crush Spurs Bid to Ease California Pacts.

If Chuck Reed were a private employer and saw his pension costs triple in 10 years, he could cut
future benefits as allowed under a federal law known as the Employee Retirement Income Security
Act.

Reed, though, is mayor of San Jose, California, and the law doesn’t cover the public employees he
oversees. Their pensions are treated as a contract between the government and worker. While cities
are allowed to make changes for new hires, union representatives say that future benefits promised
to existing workers can’t be modified.

The result is that San Jose, the home of Silicon Valley giants Cisco Systems Inc. (CSCO) and EBay
Inc. (EBAY), spent almost one third of its general fund on pensions last year, the highest among the
25 most populous U.S. cities, according to Morningstar Inc. (MORN) Reed, a 65-year-old Democrat,
is leading a statewide voter initiative to allow changes in future benefits for existing employees as
unions fight to preserve the current rules.

“The statewide measure allows us to begin to deal with the cost of skyrocketing pension and retiree
health-care costs,” Reed said in an interview. “If you look at what we’ve done so far, it doesn’t solve
the problem.”

San Jose, a city of 983,000 that is California’s third-largest, has been forced to make deep cuts in
basic services as its retirement costs soared to $245 million in 2012 from $73 million in 2002. The
city’s pension and retiree health-care liability is almost $3 billion, according to Reed, who was first
elected in 2006.

Changes Approved

San Jose voters last year approved retirement changes requiring new employees to pay 50 percent
of the plan’s total cost, or about twice as much as current employees. Workers already on the city’s
payroll could keep their existing plans by increasing their contributions or keep their costs steady by
choosing a plan with more modest benefits.

Unions including the San Jose Police Officers’ Association and the San Jose Retired Employees
Association sued to block the change. The case is pending.

Reed’s ballot initiative would amend the California constitution to give local governments the power
to negotiate changes to existing employees’ future pension or retiree health care, while protecting
benefits they’ve already earned.

“What they’re trying to do is overturn decades of case law, Supreme Court decisions and change the
California constitution to allow public employers to either change, cut or eliminate public employees’
pensions in the middle of their career,” said Dave Low, executive director of the California School
Employees Association and chairman of Californians for Retirement Security, a coalition of public
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employees and retirees.

“It’s a vested right,” Low said.

Rhode Island

Rhode Island enacted pension changes in 2011 that will delay retirement for state employees and
offer them 401(k)-type savings plans that don’t provide guaranteed benefits. Union leaders sued to
prevent the measure from taking effect.

“In talking with other mayors around the state, everybody would benefit from having clear authority
to be able to negotiate changes for future benefits for work yet to be performed for current
employees,” Reed said of his ballot measure.

Mayors Pat Morris of bankrupt San Bernardino, Tom Tait of Anaheim and Bill Kampe of Pacific
Grove are backing the plan. Santa Ana Mayor Miguel Pulido dropped out as a formal supporter and
was replaced by Vallejo Vice Mayor Stephanie Gomes. Opponents include Oakland Mayor Jean Quan
and San Francisco Board of Supervisors President David Chiu.

‘Threatens’ Teachers

Also assailing the plan are the California Public Employees’ Retirement System, the largest U.S.
public pension, and the California State Teachers’ Retirement System, the second-biggest U.S.
public pension contending with a $70 billion unfunded liability.

The proposal “threatens the retirement security of existing and future educators, who have provided
many years of service to California’s students,” Jack Ehnes, the teacher pension’s chief executive
officer, said in a statement.

Reed said cities can continue to cut services and raise taxes, make employees pay more, cut benefit
payments to retirees or cut benefits for current employees.

“None of those is fair, so it is better to talk about changing expectations of future accruals for future
work,” Reed said.

California municipalities have limited ability to boost revenue. They can’t impose higher sales taxes
without going to voters, and the state caps real-estate levies at 1 percent of a property’s most-recent
sales price. The collapse of the housing market eroded tax dollars for many cities in the wake of the
recession.

‘Not Sustainable’

“It’s not sustainable for cities to attempt to provide an appropriate level of health, safety and welfare
services and have a significant portion of their general fund go for employment and pension costs,”
Karol Denniston, a partner specializing in municipal restructuring at the San Francisco office of
Schiff Hardin LLP, said in an interview.

Among potential obstacles to Reed’s plan is California Attorney General Kamala Harris. Unions were
her second-largest source of campaign contributions when she won her office in 2010, according to
data compiled by the National Institute on Money in State Politics, a nonpartisan group based in
Helena, Montana.

Harris is responsible for writing the title and summary of the initiative before it’s circulated for



signatures to qualify for the ballot. Most voters never read more than the title and summary of the
text, according to the Denver-based National Conference of State Legislatures.

‘Pro-Citizen’

“You have to hope for an attorney general who is pro-citizen and impartial the way an attorney
general should be, and they should not be worried about who funds their campaign,” said David
Crane, a public policy lecturer at Stanford University near Palo Alto and a former special adviser to
former Republican Governor Arnold Schwarzenegger.

Harris hasn’t taken a position on any initiative, Nick Pacilio, a spokesman for her, said by e-mail.
Governor Jerry Brown, a Democrat, doesn’t comment on ballot measures, spokesman Evan Westrup
said.

Reed said he anticipates unions will try to block signature gathering. The measure needs more than
807,000 petition signers to qualify for the ballot. Low, of Californians for Retirement Security, said
he expects to discourage signature-takers.

“We generally try to keep voters informed,” Low said. “Where the signature gatherers are out there,
we would probably want to at least have an opportunity to clarify for the voters what they’re
signing.”

By Alison Vekshin – Nov 28, 2013 9:00 PM PT

GASB Resolves Transition Issue in Pension Standards.

Norwalk, CT, November 25, 2013—The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) today
issued a Statement regarding the transition provisions of GASB’s new pension standards for state
and local governments. GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, eliminates a
potential source of understatement of restated beginning net position and expense in a
government’s first year of implementing GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions.

To correct this potential understatement, Statement 71 requires a state or local government, when
transitioning to the new pension standards, to recognize a beginning deferred outflow of resources
for its pension contributions made during the time between the measurement date of the beginning
net pension liability and the beginning of the initial fiscal year of implementation. This amount will
be recognized regardless of whether it is practical to determine the beginning amounts of all other
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions.

The provisions are effective simultaneously with the provisions of Statement 68, which is required to
be applied in fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014.

Statements 68 and 71 are available on the GASB website, www.gasb.org.
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WSJ: Illinois Pension Fix Faces Political Test.

CHICAGO—Top lawmakers in Illinois reached a long-sought agreement to fix the nation’s most
broken state public-employee retirement system, but the deal faces likely resistance from some
legislators and unions who fear it will mean deep cuts to pension benefits.

Democratic and Republican leaders in the Illinois legislature announced the agreement on
Wednesday and are expected to release details Friday. They said the plan would save an estimated
$160 billion by reducing cost-of-living increases for retirees, raising the retirement age for younger
workers and capping the salary amount used to calculate pension payments. That would close the
large gap between promised benefits and current assets to pay for them over the next 30 years, they
said.

In coming days, legislative leaders and Gov. Pat Quinn, a Democrat, will try to sell the plan to rank-
and-file members of the House and Senate, many of whom have rejected proposed changes to the
retirement system over the past two years. Votes are expected Tuesday.

The governor has staked much of his tenure on righting the troubled retirement system, making
passage of an overhaul plan particularly important as he prepares to run for re-election next year.
He is seen as vulnerable in his bid for a second term, with a crowded field of Republicans vying to
challenge him. A poll conducted by Public Policy Polling earlier this month showed 34% of those
surveyed approved of Mr. Quinn’s job performance.

The agreement also is expected to provide a template for Chicago Mayor Rahm Emanuel to follow
for his city, which for years has paid far less into its retirement system than needed to keep it
solvent. City payments to local pension funds are set to more than double to nearly $1.1 billion
starting in 2015. Mr. Emanuel has warned that if changes aren’t made, the city will face a
combination of property-tax increases and cuts in services, equating the scheduled increase to the
cost of having 4,300 police officers on the street.

“Illinois’s pension crisis will not truly be solved until relief is brought to Chicago and all of the other
local governments across our state that now stand on the brink of a fiscal cliff,” said Mr. Emanuel,
who would face re-election in 2015.

While other states from Wyoming to Rhode Island have been paring back retirement benefits in
recent years, Illinois lawmakers have remained deadlocked over how to address a pension-system
shortfall that has ballooned to nearly $100 billion. The result: Illinois has the lowest credit rating
among U.S. states, and the rating for Chicago is among the lowest for major U.S. cities.

To date, unions have successfully argued that government workers shouldn’t be punished for
decades of mismanagement by the state, which underfunded the retirement system. But union
leaders have seen support erode as concern over the state’s finances grows and their sway in a
statehouse dominated by Democrats ebbs. “This has been an epic pension battle,” said Michael
Carrigan, president of the Illinois AFL-CIO. “We are marshaling our resources.”

Dire fiscal problems in such places as Detroit and Puerto Rico have left lenders increasingly leery of
Illinois and its largest city. While Illinois and Chicago remain in a considerably stronger financial
position than those places, analysts say both Illinois and Chicago are considered distressed. Appetite
for such debt has become weaker and interest costs have risen.

Howard Cure, director of municipal research at Evercore Wealth Management LLC, said Illinois
finance officials have become more aggressive in marketing their bonds and have been reminding
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investors the state constitution puts debtholders first in line for payments. Illinois’s 10-year bonds
trade at a premium that is more than triple California’s, but well below Puerto Rico’s, according to
Thomson Reuters Municipal Market Data.

Mr. Cure said if Illinois can pass an overhaul that delivers significant retirement-system savings, it
could begin to win back investors. “It’s a pretty diverse state. It’s not as if Illinois went through what
Michigan went through,” he said, referring to the near-collapse of the auto industry during the
recessionand Detroit’s recent efforts to refinance its debt through bankruptcy.

But failure to pass an overhaul plan could have an equally damaging effect, with the higher
premiums attached to Illinois debt becoming commonplace rather than a temporary exception, said
Duane McAllister, a portfolio manager at BMO Global Asset Management.

“It’s not Detroit, and it’s not Puerto Rico. Unfortunately, it gets thrown into the same trading
basket,” said Mr. McAllister, referring to Detroit’s bankruptcy filing and a selloff in the island’s
bonds amid concerns about a wide budget deficit there. He added that as an owner of Illinois debt,
he is guardedly optimistic about the latest agreement.

The agreement is the first time top leaders in the state’s House and Senate have backed the same
plan. Senate President John Cullerton, a Democrat, pushed for a proposal earlier this year, backed
by unions, that would have given employees choices over benefit cuts and found savings through
retirement health care. But House Speaker Michael Madigan, also a Democrat, opposed it, saying it
didn’t deliver enough savings.

Now, union leaders are gearing up to fight—first at the capitol and then in court if necessary. They
are encouraging members to call their legislators and visit their offices in the coming days in what
they have dubbed a pension emergency. If the bill passes, labor leaders expect to sue the state,
arguing benefits promised to employees and retirees are protected under the state constitution. The
challenge has long been discussed by unions, with the state likely to argue that certain benefits
aren’t protected, particularly in light of the state’s fiscal problems.

“You would have a line at the courthouse door,” said Anders Lindall, a spokesman for American
Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees in Illinois. “Every teacher, every nurse, every
caregiver, every public employee and retiree would have standing to sue.”

By MARK PETERS and AL YOON CONNECT

Updated Nov. 28, 2013 6:29 p.m. ET

GFOA Awards for Excellence in Government Finance.

The GFOA’s Awards for Excellence in Government Finance recognize innovative programs –
contributions to the practice of government finance that exemplify outstanding financial
management. The awards stress practical, documented work that offers leadership to the profession
and promotes improved public finance. Entries may be submitted for consideration in any of the
following categories:

Accounting, auditing, and financial reporting●

Budgeting and financial planning●

Capital finance and debt administration●
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Economic development and capital planning●

E-Government and technology●

Management and service delivery●

Pensions and benefits●

Treasury and investment management●

Eight criteria are examined when considering an application for the award: local significance and
value, technical significance, transferability, documentation, the cost/benefit analysis, efficiency,
originality, and durability. Membership in the GFOA is not required to apply for an award; however,
nonmembers and students must be sponsored by an active GFOA member.

Please read the FAQs for complete information about the Awards for Excellence program:

http://www.gfoa.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=1417

If you have additional questions, send an e-mail to Awards for Excellence:

http://www.gfoa.org/index.php?option=com_contact&task=view&contact_id=84&Itemid=3

Applications for the 2014 Awards for Excellence in Government Finance program are available here:

http://www.gfoa.org/downloads/GFOAAwardsforExcellenceApplication2014.pdf

Jefferson County’s Bankruptcy Left Few Winners as Debt Forgiven.

The impact of Jefferson County’s bankruptcy will reverberate for decades in Alabama and in the $3.7
trillion U.S. municipal bond market.

Creditors, including JPMorgan Chase & Co. (JPM), agreed to forgive $1.4 billion of the county’s $3
billion sewer bonds. Ratepayers, like Charles Hicks, a retired landscaper who lives on a fixed income
in Birmingham, will see his sewer rate rise about 8 percent annually for the next four years and 3.5
percent annually thereafter, under a plan approved by a federal judge yesterday.

“There’s a lot of pain going around — bondholders are taking large losses, but ratepayers are as
well,” said Matt Fabian, a managing director at Concord, Massachusetts-based Municipal Market
Advisors.

For the next 40 years, residents and businesses that already have some of the highest sewer rates in
the county will pay back more in principal and interest than they owed before the bankruptcy,
according to an analysis by Jim White, a Birmingham-based financial adviser who did a financial
analysis for residents challenging the bankruptcy plan. Until Detroit’s July filing, Jefferson County
was the nation’s largest municipal bankruptcy.

The willingness of Alabama’s most populous county to enter bankruptcy, along with the losses
imposed on creditors, may make bondholders of other distressed municipalities more willing to to
negotiate outside of court. Taxpayer groups will look at Jefferson County and see that bankruptcy
won’t wipe away their obligations, Fabian said.

Lawyer Fees

“It does take the thunder out of taxpayer groups who are looking to get into bankruptcy just to shed
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debt, because it shows that those taxpayers could also be put on the hook to contribute in the
future,” Fabian said.

Since filing the $4.2 billion case in November 2011, the county has spent more than $24 million on
attorneys and other advisers. Most of the payments went to the county’s two main law firms.

Klee, Tuchin, Bogdanoff & Stern LLP in Los Angeles, which is led by Ken Klee, the lawyer who
helped rewrite the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in the 1970s, collected $10.1 million in fees and was
reimbursed about $204,000 for expenses. The second firm, Bradley Arant Boult Cummings LLP,
which has offices in Birmingham, collected $8.2 million in fees and was reimbursed about $294,000
for expenses.

Enforcing Rates

Under an unusual provision in the exit plan approved by a federal judge yesterday, Jefferson
County’s commissioners’ power to set and enforce rates will be limited until the $1.84 billion on
bonds sold this week to pay creditors are paid off in 2053. The trustee for bondholders can ask the
court to force sewer rate increases that may be needed to pay the debt.

The challenges facing the county’s finances and its sewer system won’t end with bankruptcy.
Because the new bond issue pushes debt service payments into the future, rising 67 percent in 2024,
the county is facing a projected $1.2 billion gap in money available to maintain the sewer system. A
consulting firm that conducted a feasibility study for the county said it couldn’t identify where the
county would get money to pay for capital spending.

The rate increases pledged to pay debt service will impose a “high burden” on ratepayers, and would
cause rates to “approach the limits of reasonableness,” according to the Chicago-based consulting
company, Galardi Rothstein Group.

Increasing Costs

Sewer rates will rise 7.9 percent each year for four years, starting in 2014, and by almost 3.5
percent annually through 2053. That’s on top of a 329 percent increase from 1997 to 2008 after the
county embarked on a capital program to comply with a U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
decree to clean up discharges into the Cahaba River.

The cost of Jefferson County’s sewer system ballooned to $3 billion as the county built treatment
plants and laid pipe without a strategic plan and local officials accepted bribes from construction
contractors and financial advisers seeking business with the county.

The sewer rate increases will disproportionately affect the poor. Seventy percent of the sewer
system’s users reside in the commission districts with poorest residents, according to County
Commissioner George Bowman, who voted against the bankruptcy.

“This whole process had been fraudulent to the ratepayer,” said Hicks, 67, who heckled Carrington
after U.S. Bankruptcy Judge Thomas Bennett approved the plan.

Wealthy Benefit

Under Alabama law, sewer rates must be reasonable and nondiscriminatory. Ratepayers who
objected to the county’s plan are vowing to continue legal challenges.

Some residents in wealthy Birmingham suburbs, who have septic tanks and aren’t connected to the



sewer system, don’t have to pay additional charges even though they get the indirect benefit of the
county having clean water.

Calvin Wood, president of the Birmingham Chapter of the Southern Christian Leadership
Conference, said it was wrong that county officials didn’t spread the pain of rate increases evenly.

“Unless you’re going to put it across the board on everybody, you’re still going to have a lot of
trouble,” Woods said. “All of us live in the county.”

By Martin Z. Braun

L.A. Bars Broker-Dealers in FA Bid Process, FirstSouthwest Protests.

Los Angeles is seeking financial advisors for bonds issued in several categories, but underwriters
need not apply, according to two recent requests for proposals issued by the city.

FirstSouthwest sent a seven-page letter to Los Angeles officials Friday protesting the language in
two RFPs seeking financial advisors but excluding firms “that underwrite or otherwise trade in
municipal bonds.”

That language appears in the qualifications section of an RFP seeking a financial advisor to work on
the city’s general obligation bonds and wastewater system revenue bonds.

“We feel very strongly that the RFPs should be changed to allow bidding by all qualified firms,”
wrote Jack Addams, vice chairman of FirstSouthwest. “Because other qualified firms excluded under
the current wording may wish to respond, we suggest the city extend the due dates if the RFP’s are
modified.”

Addams said in his letter that FirstSouthwest would be responding to the RFP on Nov. 22, regardless
of whether changes are made and that they would protest if their response is not considered.

The city doesn’t seem likely to make changes in the middle of an RFP process in which the deadline
for responses was Nov. 8; and the city anticipates making a decision on Dec. 2.

Natalie Brill, Los Angeles’ debt manager, said she couldn’t comment on the RFP process until after
the final selection is announced Dec. 2.

The protest letter was sent to Brill; City Administrative Officer Miguel Santana; City Attorney Mike
Feuer; and Paul Krekorian, chair of the City Council Budget & Finance Committee.

Los Angeles’ debt management policy, adopted in 2005, deems it a conflict of interest for firms to do
business with the city as both an underwriter and financial advisor.

“The city has a policy that the financial advisor must be independent and can’t have an underwriting
arm,” said Jeremy Oberstein, a spokesman in Krekorian’s office.

FirstSouthwest officials don’t think the issue is quite so clear cut.

Regulations adopted by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, Dodd-Frank legislation, and
changes proposed by the U.S. Securities & Exchange Commission that go into effect in mid-January
have changed the playing field with rules regulating how FAs operate.
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FirstSouthwest would like the city to remove the language excluding underwriters noted in the first
RFP and in another RFP seeking a financial advisor for eight different bond categories including
general fund lease financings and tax anticipation notes, in which the city explains that while it has
“in the past, accepted proposals from investment banking firms to act as financial advisors, the city
now only hires independent financial advisors for general financial advisory services and the city’s
various bond programs.”

It further says, “In light of the scope of the engagement and the emphasis on non-transaction-related
financial advisory services, as well as the city’s desire to hire financial advisors with no vested
interest in the issuance of debt, the city will not consider proposals from firms that underwrite or
otherwise trade in municipal bonds to serve as the lead financial advisor, in accordance with MSRB
[Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board] G-23.”

In November 2011, MSRB’s Rule G-23 was modified to prohibit dealers from serving as financial
advisors and underwriters on the same municipal bond deal.

“Their debt policy that is available through their web page is somewhat less restrictive than what is
in the current RFP,” said Brian Whitworth, senior vice president for FirstSouthwest.

The city used underwriters as co-financial advisors before the MSRB came out with its rules, but
typically only in special situations where it wanted sell-side advice on an issue, city officials said.

Based on the language in the RFP, Whitworth said apparently the category allowing underwriters to
act as co-financial advisors is now gone.

“We feel very strongly that all qualified financial advisors should be able to submit an application,”
Addams said. “The city should be able to pick whoever they want. We object to the city excluding
very qualified FAs from even being able to apply.”

Southwest officials question why the city frequently uses KNN Public Finance as a financial advisor,
when the financial advisory firm is a division of Zions First National Bank, an underwriter.
FirstSouthwest also was selected to act as a financial advisor for the Los Angeles Housing
Department in 2006 and 2010, but was told it would not be considered for the city itself, its port,
airports, and the Department of Water and Power, Addams said.

“There is no definition of ‘independent’ in any regulatory rules,” Addams said. “That is why we
wanted them to understand the ownership structure of PFM and KNN, who currently work for the
city.”

PFM, an advisor the most recent Los Angeles International Airport deal, is owned by a group of
private equity investors that includes at least one underwriting firm that has an ownership interest,
according to FirstSouthwest’s letter.

The MSRB’s fair-dealing rule requires underwriters to disclose to issuers that they do not have any
fiduciary duty and that the transaction will be at arm’s length.

Addams thinks those disclosure rules and similar ones outlined in Dodd-Frank will ensure that if a
firm that conducts underwriting business is hired as an FA there is a guarantee it will act in the
city’s best interest.

The SEC is about to add its take on the issue when its municipal advisor rules takes effect by mid-
January. Its rule would require anyone offering advice about municipal bonds, municipal derivatives,
or the investment of bond proceeds to an issuer or other municipal entity or conduit borrower to



register as a municipal advisor.

“There have been a lot of changes since the city adopted its debt policy in 2005,” Addams said. “We
have made a decision as a company that we will challenge this where we see it.”

In a city as prominent as Los Angeles, Addams said, “it’s very important we challenge this.”

FirstSouthwest was successful in getting Broward County, Fla. and Broward County School District
to change the language in its RFPs allowing underwriters to be considered for FA work, according to
Addams.

Two issuers interviewed for the story have not heard of anyone other than Los Angeles adopting
such a policy, but said they understand why an issuer might do so.

“My guess is that on a practical basis, this will make it easier for all concerned to serve either in a
fiduciary, or non-fiduciary role without any overlap,” said Laura Lockwood McCall, director of debt
management manager at the Oregon State Treasury.

Julia Harper Cooper, director of finance at the City of San Jose, said issuers might feel better with a
“clear delineation” between who their FA is and who their underwriter is, without worrying whether
the lines might be blurred.

“It becomes more comfortable for issuers,” she said.

The Government Finance Officers Association “has discussed the issue of recommending that
governments use independent FAs vs. those associated with broker/dealer firms in the past,” said
Timothy Firestine, GFOA president and chief administrative officer of Montgomery County, Md.

“Due to the forthcoming MA rule, it is likely that this subject will be discussed again, as GFOA looks
to ensure that issuer practices are in line with the rule. From my personal experience as a CFO, it is
a better practice to use an independent FA. Helps avoid even the appearance of a conflict of
interest.”

BY KEELEY WEBSTER

Moody's: Detroit's DIP Proposal Differs Substantially From its Corporate
Predecessors.

The new Debtor-in-Possession (DIP) financing proposal that the City of Detroit’s Emergency
Manager put forth on October 11, 2013 is unprecedented among municipalities, says Moody’s
Investors Service. Because of this and some key differences from more common corporate-based
DIPs, the ultimate impact of the proposal on the city’s finances and existing bondholders is
uncertain, says Moody’s in the report “Detroit: DIPing its Toe into a Corporate Bankruptcy Tool.”

DIP financings are commonly used in the corporate sector to inject liquidity into a bankrupt entity,
with the objective of paving the way for eventual recovery. Although structurally similar with respect
to most terms, the proposed Detroit DIP has several key differences.

The most significant difference is the use of proceeds. Corporate DIPs are traditionally used to
provide operating financing and liquidity, with limited draws on the DIP commitment at closing.

https://bondcasebriefs.com/2013/11/19/finance-and-accounting/moodys-detroits-dip-proposal-differs-substantially-from-its-corporate-predecessors/
https://bondcasebriefs.com/2013/11/19/finance-and-accounting/moodys-detroits-dip-proposal-differs-substantially-from-its-corporate-predecessors/


Conversely, Detroit’s proposed DIP financing plan would immediately deploy 100% of the
transaction proceeds.

“The full utilization of all note proceeds highlights the city’s ongoing narrow cash position that
persists despite already ceasing all debt service payments on liabilities deemed unsecured by the
state-appointed emergency manager, as well as deferral of the city’s employer pension
contributions,” says Genevieve Nolan, a Moody’s Assistant Vice President.

While corporate DIP financing plans can be a credit positive by providing liquidity that facilitates
continued operations, the ultimate credit impact of Detroit’s DIP financing proposal is not clear at
this time.

“The impact of the proposal on the city’s existing creditors, as well the city’s near-term financial
position and long-term financial recovery, are difficult to assess at this point given the number of
contingencies that remain,” says Nolan.

Ultimately, it is uncertain whether the judge overseeing the current bankruptcy hearings will permit
the DIP financing to proceed.

For more information, Moody’s research subscribers can access this report at
https://www.moodys.com/research/Detroit-DIPing-its-Toe-into-a-Cor-
orate-Bankruptcy-Tool–PBM_PBM160112.

GASB Toolkit Helps Pension Plans Implement New Accounting Standards.

A new online toolkit designed to help preparers and auditors of state and local government pension
plans implement new accounting and financial reporting standards was released today by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The toolkit is available at no cost at the GASB
website:
http://www.gasb.org/cs/ContentServer?c=Page&pagename=GASB%2FPage%2FGASBSectionPage&
cid=1176163527830

GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, revises existing guidance for the
financial reports of most pension plans for state and local governments. These plans are required to
implement the new accounting standards in fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2013 (that is, for
years ending June 30, 2014 or later).

Prepared by the GASB staff, the toolkit includes the following resources:

The Guide to Implementation of GASB Statement 67 on Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, an●

authoritative resource guide
A video featuring GASB Chairman David A. Vaudt discussing the top implementation issues facing●

pension plans
A podcast featuring GASB Project Manager Michelle Czerkawski discussing the types of pension●

plans that will be affected by Statement 67 and the most significant changes to accounting and
financial reporting for pension plans
A background document answering frequently-asked questions regarding Statement 67 and●

Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions
A fact sheet answering frequently-asked questions specifically relating to Statement No. 67●

An article identifying several areas plan administrators and public officials should consider as they●
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plan, prepare, and collaborate when implementing the new standards
A “Setting the Record Straight” document addressing common misperceptions about the new●

pension standards, and
The executive summary and the full text of GASB Statement 67.●

“Many of our stakeholders have requested additional educational resources to help them implement
the new standards,” said GASB Chairman David A. Vaudt. “This toolkit is intended to provide
guidance on how plan administrators can effectively comply with the new rules. In the coming
weeks, we will add more resources to the toolkit, including short videos from GASB staff
highlighting our most-asked implementation questions.”

Credit Concerns Overhang the Latest Muni Industry Conference:
MuniNetGuide.

Notes from the Bloomberg State & Muni Finance Conference

As previously mentioned in this column, Bloomberg held their State and Muni Conference on
November 6th in New York City. Right at the outset, the choice of venue was rather unconventional:
the proceedings were held at The Cutting Room, a small rock and blues club owned by “Mr. Big”
himself, Actor Chris Noth. Certainly, it was quite interesting for the panelists to be on the same
stage where the likes of Ron Wood, Mick Ronson and Marty Balin will be performing.

The 300-pound gorilla in the room was, of course, Puerto Rico (PR).

Since video clips for most of the panels are available for viewing on the Bloomberg conference site,
we’ll just go over a few things we found noteworthy.

Perhaps to no one’s surprise, credit topics dominated the discussions at the Conference, particularly
those issues with potential “systemic” implications (I sat next to a representative from the FDIC,
there to ferret out any and all systemic risks to our banking system!)

The Detroit situation was touched upon by several panels but no new information really emerged
from the various discussions.

The 300-pound gorilla in the room was, of course, Puerto Rico (PR). In the very first session, U.S.
Treasury Under-Secretary Mary Miller (a brilliant investment professional whom I’ve had the chance
to know since her days as a muni analyst at T. Rowe Price) struck a very cautious note regarding
potential Federal assistance to Puerto Rico. On the positive side, Mary confirmed that the
Administration is closely monitoring the situation and is in close communication with the Padilla
financial team. However, she also warned there is no existing Congressional authority for any kind of
direct financial assistance to the troubled island. The Feds’ role is currently limited to providing
input regarding fiscal management practices and ensure that all federal monies that are due the
Commonwealth be expended in the most effective manner possible.

From PR’s side, Treasurer Melba Acosta and Chairman of the GDB David Chaffey were also on hand
to hammer home their message to investors: default is not in the cards for now. Of note, after
putting out press releases trumpeting stronger revenue collections in October, Treasurer Acosta
appeared to back-track a little: she noted there was a special corporate tax payment due in October
that could have inflated the numbers somewhat.

https://bondcasebriefs.com/2013/11/12/finance-and-accounting/credit-concerns-overhang-the-latest-muni-industry-conference-muninetguide/
https://bondcasebriefs.com/2013/11/12/finance-and-accounting/credit-concerns-overhang-the-latest-muni-industry-conference-muninetguide/


The second panel on PR featured Dick Larkin from H J Sims, Hector Negroni from Fundamental
Advisors and Emily Raimes from Moody’s. In response to Dick’s unflaggingly strong defense of the
PR credit, Hector observed that hedge funds should not be viewed as the “enemy”, since they
stepped in to provide liquidity to the market when the traditional buyers could no longer handle the
risk. We could not agree more. Like Hector, we feel the muni market should welcome the
participation from the hedge funds, as providers of liquidity at a time when the broker-dealer
community is retrenching. Crossover distressed players are also more experienced than muni
analysts, we believe, in evaluating trading opportunities related to capital structure. Broadening the
audience for municipals can only benefit our asset class over the long run, in our view.

The Windy City is currently held hostage by the lack of pension progress at the state level, and
Mayor Emanuel is viewed as running out of options.

Being Chicago-based, we were also interested in the panel on the State of Illinois, featuring our local
pundit Chris Mier from Loop Capital. Chris pinned Illinois’ fiscal problems on the One-Party rule and
the high degree of work force unionization. All the panelists agreed that pension reform is the
biggest issue facing the Prairie State, and one that won’t be resolved any time soon. There was a
feeling that the legislators in Springfield needed to be shocked by a real crisis – perhaps a failed
State bond financing – in order to get off the dime. All noted the wider spreads on Illinois paper,
close to +175, but none was willing to declare the credit a “buy” quite yet.

We were somewhat surprised by the lack of focus on the gubernatorial race, aside from a cursory
comment from Chris. Surely, much of the legislative foot-dragging on pension reform must be
attributable to the political maneuverings surrounding the election. As reported by the Chicago
Tribune, “the two-week fall session that starts Tuesday will unfold just weeks ahead of the deadline
for candidacy petitions to be filed for next year’s elections. Taking a tough vote on pension reform
before then risks drawing a challenger next year.” So, even some clarity as to who might emerge as
a strong contender in this electoral season could become a catalyst for progress on pension reform.

In the context of Illinois, Chicago’s fiscal condition also came up and was deemed much more
tenuous than the State’s. The Windy City is currently held hostage by the lack of pension progress at
the state level, and Mayor Emanuel is viewed as running out of options. Chris Mier pointed out that,
although traditionally trading at tighter spreads than Illinois, Chicago bonds have flipped over and
now trade at much wider spreads. To that extent, they may eventually become a more interesting
credit play than Illinois.

In summary, the overwhelming message we got from the Conference is that the muni credit
landscape remains quite unsettled. This should translate into an abundance of muni credit
opportunities, as long as you do your homework.

About the Author

Triet Nguyen is the managing partner of Axios Advisors LLC, an independent municipal research
and investment advisory boutique specializing in high-income strategies.

Over his 32-year career as a high yield/distressed municipal bond expert, Nguyen has designed,
marketed and managed every type of buy-side investment product, from mutual funds to managed
accounts and hedge funds.



GFOA Certificate of Conformance Program for Small Government Annual
Financial Reports: Update.

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) has announced that it has established a
professional recognition program for small governments that prepare their financial reports on a
modified cash basis.

Download a FAQ Sheet on the New Program:

http://gfoa.org/downloads/GFOAFAQsheetforCofCProgram.pdf

Details on how to become a Participant or Reviewer:

http://gfoa.org/downloads/GFOAConformanceCertificateDetails2013.pdf

The GFOA Certificate of Conformance Program for Small Government Annual Financial Reports is
delighted to announce the program’s first winner of the Certificate of Conformance Award.  The
Town of Cashion, Oklahoma has demonstrated a high quality of financial reporting on a modified
cash basis.  Receiving this award demonstrates the exceptional dedication that the Town of Cashion
has to transparency, accountability, and financial reporting.  All parties involved in attaining this
distinction for the town should be  commended for their accomplishment.  Congratulations!

Fitch: Stockton Bankruptcy Plan Could Influence Negotiations, Settlement
Elsewhere.

If approved, Stockton’s Plan for the Adjustment of Debts (plan of adjustment) identifies negotiation
strategies, legal ambiguities, and their potential consequences for future municipal bankruptcies in
California and elsewhere, according to a new Fitch Ratings report.

‘Stockton’s ability to achieve significant concessions from labor under threat of bankruptcy provides
food for thought about incentives in other potential cases’ said Amy Laskey, Managing Director.

‘The specter of bankruptcy may have motivated labor, although not bondholders, to negotiate.’ In
future cases, labor may feel the risks of losing all negotiating power in a Chapter 9 proceeding are
too great. On the other hand, they may feel that their employer’s need to continue to provide
competitive wages and benefits will adequately protect their interests.

Most notable is the elimination of other post-employment benefits (OPEBs), which was negotiated
with current employees and retirees. The reduction in Stockton’s post-employment costs
meaningfully improves their affordability.

Despite bondholder objections about ongoing CalPERS payments, the city appears to have acted
practically since the proposed two-thirds reduction in retiree benefits would have made those jobs
uncompetitive.

Lease revenue bonds are expected to be significantly impaired. Incentive to repay lease debt
depends on the importance of the leased assets, although Stockton’s actions highlight the difficulty
in assessing essentiality. Fitch assumed the Stockton City Hall would be deemed essential but those
bonds’ treatment appears to reveal that City Hall is just another office building. However, another
office building with a crime lab and garage are deemed essential by the city and those bonds will be
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repaid in full.

The plan of adjustment adheres to the Bankruptcy Code’s treatment of ‘special revenues,’ as debt
secured by such revenue streams, including utility revenues and tax increment, will continue to be
paid to the extent the pledged revenues are sufficient.

In addition to employees, retirees, and bondholders, taxpayers are being asked to contribute to the
city’s recovery by approving a three-quarter cent sales tax increase this November.

For more information, a special report titled ‘Stockton Bankruptcy Perspectives’ is available on the
Fitch Ratings’ web site at www.fitchratings.com.

GASB: Pension Standards for State and Local Governments.

This webpage offers a variety of resources designed to support the understanding of GASB
Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, and No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions, which substantially improve the accounting and financial reporting of public
employee pensions by state and local governments that apply U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP).

http://www.gasb.org/jsp/GASB/Page/GASBSectionPage&cid=1176163528472

CalPERS Loses San Bernardino Appeal.

The California Public Employees’ Retirement System filed an amicus brief last week in support of the
state government in a case involving the successor agency to San Bernardino’s former
redevelopment agency.

The filing came the same day that U.S. Bankruptcy Judge Meredith Jury ruled against CalPERS’
appeal of the city’s eligibility to be in bankruptcy.

The pension fund’s attorneys argued in the appeal that the judge granted eligibility on Aug. 28
despite shortcomings in the city’s case.

CalPERS filed the amicus brief on Thursday in support of two other state agencies – the Department
of Finance and the Office of the State Controller – in their ongoing dispute with the San Bernardino
over tax revenues relating to the dissolution of the city’s redevelopment agency and the operations
of the successor agency.

The state government shut down redevelopment agencies in 2012, and says San Bernardino
inappropriately held on to $15 million that belonged to the former city redevelopment agency.

San Bernardino City Attorney James Penman argued in his filing against the state agencies that the
city could not afford the $15 million and would be forced to shut down. Bankruptcy protection
prevents creditors from seizing assets or from suing entities under that protection. Penman is trying
to make the DOF order part of the bankruptcy case.

The city lost the first round on that issue when Jury ruled on Sept. 11 that the city and the successor
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agency to its redevelopment agency are separate entities, making it a non-bankruptcy court issue.

In that ruling, Jury said in court documents that if the successor agency had a dispute with the
state’s Department of Finance, it should take the issue to state court. Jury also left the door open for
the city to file before her a second time, which the city did.

She has yet to rule on the second filing.

The Department of Finance filed an appeal Oct. 1 with the U.S. Ninth District Court of Appeals
arguing that Judge Jury doesn’t have jurisdiction on the redevelopment issues.

In its “friend of the court” brief in support of the state agencies, CalPERS argues that the 11th
Amendment to the U.S. Constitution protects state agencies from being “hauled into federal court
against their will” by a municipality, which is a creation of the state. The brief also describes
CalPERS as a state agency in an attempt to point out similarities between the pension fund and the
state agencies.

CalPERS has been attempting to get relief from the automatic stay protecting entities in bankruptcy
from being sued in state court, in order to file suit in district court against the city for the $17
million in missed fees, payments and interest currently owed by the city.

CalPERS brief argues in support of the DOF’s appeal to district court on the grounds that
bankruptcy is not an exception to state sovereignty.

“By characterizing [the city’s] proceeding as merely one to prevent an action to collect on a debt, the
bankruptcy court gave short shrift to the serious federalism concerns that this proceeding raises,”
according to CalPERS brief.

In CalPERS appeal of the city’s eligibility to be in bankruptcy, the pension fund’s attorneys used
some of the same arguments related to state sovereignty.

Jury said in denying without prejudice CalPERS appeal of the city’s eligibility to be in bankruptcy
that “the eligibility orders do not finally resolve or seriously affect any substantive rights of
CalPERS.”

The judge cited as precedent the case of Silver Sage Partners, Ltd. v. City of Desert Hot Springs,
Calif. where the appeals court ruled that, “We are not convinced that Congress’s whole municipal
bankruptcy statutory scheme is so skewed in favor of the municipality that the commencement of
proceedings itself causes irreparable injury.”

BY KEELEY WEBSTER

Firm Seeks Confirmation That Benefit Pools Qualify as Minimum Essential
Coverage.

Erin Sweeney of Dickstein Shapiro LLP, writing on behalf of the TML Intergovernmental Employee
Benefits Pool, has asked the IRS to make clear in proposed healthcare regulations (REG-132455-11)
that health benefit pools qualify as minimum essential coverage, thus triggering a reporting
obligation under section 6055.
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October 3, 2013

Internal Revenue Service

Re: Information Reporting of Minimum Essential Coverage

Sir or Madam:

We write on behalf of the TML Intergovernmental Employee Benefits Pool (“TML IEBP”) to comment
in connection with the notice of proposed rulemaking (“Proposed Rule”) published in the Federal
Register on September 9, 2013, by the Department of the Treasury and the Internal Revenue
Service. The Proposed Rule provides guidance relating to the information reporting requirements of
section 6055 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“Code”), as added by the Patient
Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010.

In legal terms, TML IEBP is a “risk pool” organized in 1989 pursuant to Chapter 172 of the Texas
Local Government Code. A factual and functional description of TML IEBP would be to call it an
interlocal cooperation employee benefits pool. A number of these pools have been formed across the
country through the interlocal cooperation statutes enacted by the respective states. These entities
provide pooled health benefits coverage between local governmental units. Often these pools are
self-funded through the combined contributions of the members. TML IEBP is a Texas
intergovernmental risk pool providing group accident and health benefits coverage to employees,
officials, and retirees of political subdivisions of the State of Texas and to their dependents. This
governmental pool has been successfully providing benefits to governmental entities in Texas since
1989.

We write today seeking confirmation that health coverage provided by TML IEBP may qualify as
minimum essential coverage, thus triggering a reporting obligation under Section 6055 of the Code.
We seek this confirmation because the regulations addressing the Shared Responsibility for Not
Maintaining Minimum Essential Coverage (“Individual Mandate Regulations”) are not clear that
health benefit pools such as TML IEBP constitute minimum essential coverage because the term
“group health insurance coverage” appears to modify the term “governmental plan”. This is
significant because many State health benefit pools, including TML IEBP (which are clearly
“governmental plans” under section 2791(d)(8) of the Public Health Service Act (“PHSA”)), are
exempted from State laws regulating insurance. Without clarification, the proposed rules could be
interpreted to exclude health benefit pool coverage provided by governmental plans from the
definition of minimum essential coverage.

Specifically, the Individual Mandate Regulations define an “eligible employer-sponsored plan” as
“[g]roup health insurance coverage offered by, or on behalf of, an employer to an employee that is . .
. [a] governmental plan (within the meaning of section 2791(d)(8) of the [PHSA] (42 U.S.C. 300gg-
91(d)(8))) . . .”

“Group health insurance coverage” is further defined in the Individual Mandate Regulations as
having the same meaning as in section 2791(b) of the PHSA, 42 U.S.C. 300gg-91(b)(4). Under the
PHSA, group health insurance coverage “means, in connection with a group health plan, health
insurance coverage offered in connection with such plan.”

“Health insurance coverage” is defined in the Individual Mandate Regulations as having the same
meaning as in section 2791(b)(1) of the PHSA, 42 U.S.C. 300gg-91(b)(l). Under the PHSA, health
insurance coverage “means benefits consisting of medical care (provided directly, through insurance
or reimbursement, or otherwise and including items and services paid for as medical care) under



any hospital or medical service policy or certificate, hospital or medical service plan contract, or
health maintenance organization contract offered by a health insurance issuer.” Although “health
insurance issuer” could be read as applying only to “health maintenance organization contract”,
given that policies and certificates are issued by health insurance issuers, the better reading of the
language appears to be that “health insurance issuer” applies to each of the delineated items —
policies, certificates, plan contracts or health maintenance organization contracts.

Finally, “health insurance issuer” is defined in the Individual Mandate Regulations as having the
same meaning as in section 2791(b)(2) of the PHSA, 42 U.S.C. 300gg-91(b)(2). Under the PHSA,
health insurance issuer “means an insurance company, insurance service, or insurance organization
which is licensed to engage in the business of insurance in a State and which is subject to State law
which regulates insurance. Such term does not include a group health plan.” (parentheticals
omitted).

While TML IEBP is subject to limited regulation by the Texas Department of Insurance (e.g.,
financial oversight by the required filing of audited financial statements with the Texas Department
of Insurance on an annual basis, application of certain Texas Insurance Code mandated benefits
provisions, and the like), TML IEBP is not a health insurance issuer because it is not licensed by the
Texas Department of Insurance. It is, however, a governmental plan.

We believe that health benefit pools such as TML IEBP and similar state health benefit pools are
examples of coverage that Treasury has authority to clarify — and ought to clarify — are subject to
the minimum essential coverage reporting requirements even though the health benefit pools are
not subject to State laws regulating insurance. Of course, if Treasury determined that TML IEBP’s
health benefit pools constituted minimum essential coverage, TML IEBP would need to separately
demonstrate affordability and minimum value with respect to the employer shared responsibility
payment.

Thank you for considering this comment submitted in response to the Proposed Rule issued with
regard to the information reporting requirements of section 6055. If you have any questions or
would like to discuss these comments further, please contact the undersigned at (202) 420-3477.

Sincerely,

Erin M. Sweeney

sweeneye@dicksteinshapiro.com

DicksteinShapiro LLP

Washington, DC

WSJ: Pension Pinch Busts City Budgets.

Municipalities Grapple With Burgeoning Retiree-Benefit Costs; A Costly Perk in Springfield, Ill.

It pays for veteran firefighters and police officers here to retire around the anniversary of their
hiring date—but it’s costly for this city of 117,000.

Under current labor agreements, employees get a 5% bump in the pay periods around that date

https://bondcasebriefs.com/2013/11/12/finance-and-accounting/wsj-pension-pinch-busts-city-budgets/


every year. Workers who retire during the short window get a perk: Their pensions are based on the
temporarily boosted paycheck. The provision, which starts after two decades on the job, adds an
average of $65,000 in lifetime payouts for each retiree who takes advantage.

Nationwide, pension costs are eating up more of city general funds, leaving less money to spend on
day-to-day needs, such as garbage pickup or parks maintenance. The median spending on pensions
among the country’s 250 largest cities rose to 10% of general budgets in 2012, up from 7.75% in
2007, according to data provided to The Wall Street Journal by Merritt Research Services LLC. A
few cities weren’t available by August 2013, when Merritt collected the information.

Springfield’s annual payments to the public employee retirement system have nearly tripled in the
past decade to $19.8 million. The city says it spent 20% of its operations budget on pensions in the
2012 fiscal year, one of the nation’s highest rates. Merritt puts the percentage at closer to 25%,
based on public filings. (Merritt and the city differ on how to treat the calculation for some city
employees, including those who work for Springfield’s electric and water utility.)

The price of the problem can be seen around the Illinois state capital. Library branches that closed
in the wake of the recession have never reopened. The Springfield Municipal Band, which was
established through a 1936 referendum, has shrunk. In older neighborhoods such as Harvard Park,
heavy rains overwhelm storm sewers and roads. Vacuum trucks fan out and suck up water because
the city hasn’t been able to afford needed road repairs.

“I have seen kids 8 and 10 years old wading waist-deep into it,” said Polly Poskin, president of the
Harvard Park Neighborhood Association. “The city has settled for a temporary fix, and we live with a
permanent problem.”

In the Enos Park neighborhood, residents have been tearing down blighted houses and building
sculpture gardens to reverse years of decline. They hoped to restore the neighborhood’s
pockmarked main artery to the historic brick that sits below. The city’s response: It will be able to
repave only eventually.

Steve Combs, president of Enos Park Neighborhood Improvement Association, said residents have
become resigned to the city’s constraints. For new projects, he said, “there isn’t even a line right
now.”

Pension problems have been mounting for years in Springfield. The city contributes to three pension
funds: one each for police and fire, which are controlled by local boards, and to a smaller extent, a
statewide fund for other city workers. A 2008 report commissioned by the mayor at the time warned
that growing pension payments would “squeeze out basic municipal services.”

Years of salary increases and benefits fed the problem. The police and fire departments most
recently had five-year contracts with 4% annual pay increases—plus the temporary 5% anniversary
bump for veteran officers. Police agreed to a new contract last year with smaller raises, while
firefighters are negotiating a new contract. Meanwhile, the number of retirees has grown.

To be sure, police and firefighters contribute a sizable chunk of their salaries to the pension
funds—9.91% for police and 9.455% for firefighters. Also, as police and firefighters typically aren’t
eligible to collect Social Security, municipalities don’t have to pay Social Security taxes on their
salaries.

An analysis by Springfield officials earlier this year said below-par investment returns have
exacerbated the pension problems, with the police and fire funds falling far short of the forecast



annual return of 7.5%. Actuarial reports, which use an average return over several years to smooth
sharp market swings, show the funds met their annual forecast only once in the past decade. That
has left them with only about half the assets needed to pay all promised benefits, after being around
75%-funded a decade ago.

The result: The long-term obligations continue to increase, and funding shortfalls keep getting
pushed into the future.

The police fund has called the 7.5% target set by the city increasingly unrealistic.

But Mayor J. Michael Houston, a former bank chief and investment management executive, opposes
lowering the return target, saying it’s realistic over the long term. In the meantime, he’s cut some
city positions and put surplus funds at the end of the last year into the pensions.

“The more money that we’re putting in the pension funds, the less money we can put into other
services for people within the community,” Mr. Houston said. “This is not a problem that was
created overnight. We need to approach the solution on a long-term basis.”

Chicago-based consultancy Marquette Associates, which has advised the police and fire funds for the
past three years, declined to comment.

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services in its most recent report on the city’s finances acknowledged the
steps Springfield is taking to alleviate its problems, including the workforce cuts and additional
pension contributions. Still, when city debt is combined with the cost of promised pension and
retiree health-care benefits, the total is $6,956 per capita. The credit-rating firm views a number
more than $5,000 as high.

Although Illinois is one of only a handful of states with locally run pension funds, the state dictates
how they can invest. So while cities control salary negotiations, retirement benefits are set by the
Legislature. Lawmakers, for example, voted in 2004 to give the spouse of a retired firefighter
continuing benefits after any death, affecting about 290 local funds. Springfield estimated it cost an
additional $653,000 in the first year.

In Springfield, the temporary pay spike may soon be a thing of the past. The new police contract
ends the perk next year, and the firefighters are likely to lose it, too. Former firefighter John
Sullivan, now president of the Springfield Firefighters’ Pension Fund, said the benefit was originally
designed to entice more highly paid older employees to leave. But, he said, “ideas have changed.”
Also, starting next year, the city will raise the sales tax to 8.5% from 8%. That follows an increase in
sewer rates earlier this year.

The state has its own pension woes. Illinois has chronically underfunded its retirement system for
state workers, university employees and teachers, while also seeing investment returns fall short of
forecast levels. As a result, the state’s credit rating is the lowest in the country.

As for the Legislature, so far lawmakers confronted rising costs only by reducing retirement benefits
for newly hired state and local government employees. But those savings will take years to
materialize.

“The real question for municipalities like the city of Springfield is: How long can we hang on?” said
William McCarty, director of Springfield’s budget and management office.

By MARK PETERS



Pension Bonds Draining Municipal Agencies.

Desperate to cover a $40 million shortfall in its pension fund for retired police officers and
firefighters, the city of Richmond turned to an exotic loan.

But instead of tightening spending after it issued the $36 million pension obligation bond in 1999,
city leaders increased the retirees’ pensions.

Today, Richmond still owes more than $12 million on the bond, plus about $5 million in interest, and
its pension fund remains roughly $12.5 million short. To narrow that gap and cover the debt, the city
is dipping into proceeds from a supplemental property tax on residents and businesses.

The city’s fiscal approach has residents like Joe Bako scratching their heads. “When you’re short on
funds, you don’t start spending more,” he said.

Some public officials and investment bankers have portrayed pension obligation bonds as a good
way to shore up pension funds. The proceeds can be invested in the stock market, reaping returns
potentially higher than the bonds’ interest rate.

Bonds in the red

But that gamble is not panning out so far for at least five pension obligation bonds issued by
California public agencies between 1999 and January, an analysis by the Center for Investigative
Reporting has found.

In addition to the city of Richmond’s Police and Firemen’s Pension Fund, agencies with bonds in the
red include Merced County and the Pasadena Fire and Police Retirement System.

Average returns on investments also have not kept pace with net interest costs on recent bonds in
two other California counties: San Diego and San Bernardino. Because those bonds were issued
within the past six years, it is too soon to determine how they will perform.

Since 1999, local governments and special taxing districts in California have sold more than $11
billion in bonds to shore up their pension obligations, according to the state treasurer’s office.

Emboldened by the infusion of cash from pension bonds, some municipalities have enhanced
employee pensions or buttressed needs elsewhere by suspending pension contributions.

“It is basically a principle where they’re printing money,” said Chester Spatt, a former chief
economist for the Securities and Exchange Commission and a finance professor at Carnegie Mellon
University. “These (bonds) strike me as irresponsible, especially in light of what we’ve learned” from
the 2008 financial crisis.

Sign of larger problems

The bonds do not require voter approval and, by the time they are paid off, many of the public
officials who approved them are long gone. “The decision happened before I got here,” said Bill
Lindsay, who became Richmond’s city manager in 2005. “Applying hindsight to investment returns, I
wish I could do that for my entire life.”

Yet even after the downturn, and with growing knowledge of the risk involved, many governments
continued to rely on pension bonds.
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In the five places in California where pension bonds are underperforming so far, the shortfall also
warns of deeper financial problems, said Thad Calabrese, assistant professor of public and nonprofit
financial management at New York University. Residents of such areas might face service cuts and
higher taxes, he said – or worse.

“Instead of negotiating with the unions and imposing pension reforms, for example, this is a way of
kicking the can,” Calabrese said.

Pension obligation bonds figured prominently in last year’s bankruptcy in Stockton, which issued
$125 million in pension bonds in 2007 – after it had improved retirement benefits and compensation
several times. Stockton’s invested pension bond proceeds lost about a third of their value in the
stock market crash.

Detroit, the largest U.S. city to file for bankruptcy because of a shrinking tax base, declining
population and other factors, failed to realize expected returns after issuing pension bonds in 2005
and 2006.

Agencies downgraded

Credit rating agencies increasingly are downgrading the creditworthiness of public agencies with
pension bonds, which can make future borrowing more expensive. This year, Moody’s downgraded
pension bonds in Santa Clara, Marin, Contra Costa and Sacramento counties.

In 2010, lawmakers in Pennsylvania prohibited the state from using pension obligation bonds, citing
the financial risks. And the federal Government Accountability Office has warned that pension bonds
can leave some governments “worse off than they were before.”

The nation’s first pension obligation bond was issued in 1985 for $222 million by the city of Oakland
with the help of Wall Street. Roger Davis, a lawyer who consulted on the deal, said it was pulled
together by the then-city manager and Goldman Sachs, with assistance from his firm, Orrick,
Herrington & Sutcliffe. It may well have been conceived, he said, to enrich the pension fund without
adding to the debt load.

At the time, that was a safer bet. Public agencies could issue bonds at a tax-exempt interest rate and
invest in annuities, in most cases guaranteeing a rate of return higher than the owed bond interest.
The next year, federal legislation removed the tax-exempt option.

A growing number of jurisdictions continued to turn to the bonds to cover raises and benefit
increases given out in flush years. Then economic downturns sapped the investments.

That was the case in Oakland, which issued another pension bond for $436 million in 1997 and
suffered heavy losses when the stock market plunged 11 years later. Debt deepened when the city
took a 15-year break from making police and fire pension contributions. The payments resumed in
2011, but last year the city issued another pension bond for $212 million.

“They’re on their third credit card,” said Alameda City Manager John Russo, who voted against the
1997 bond when he was a member of the Oakland City Council.

Oakland’s obligations

Oakland’s current plan is to help balance the budget by taking another pension contribution holiday
through June 2017. Budget problems also have forced the city to shed a quarter of its police force
since 2008.



A supplementary tax on property owners in the city will generate an estimated $68 million this fiscal
year, said Scott Johnson, who until last month was Oakland’s assistant city administrator. That will
help repay some of the bond and the system’s unfunded pension obligations, he said.

“I feel we’re in a strong position,” Johnson said.

Jennifer Gollan is a reporter for the Center for Investigative Reporting, the country’s largest
investigative reporting team. For more, visit www.cironline.org. E-mail: jgollan@cironline.org

Moody's: Public Finance Downgrades Continue in Third Quarter but Pace
Moderates.

More than 75% of US public finance rating actions in the third quarter continued to be downgrades,
says Moody’s Investors Service in “US Public Finance Rating Revisions for Q3 2013: Downgrades
Continue but Pace Moderates.” The exact percentage of rating actions that were downgrades in the
third quarter, 77%, represented an improvement on the 83% that were downgrades for both the
second and first quarters of 2013.

Moody’s expects downgrades to continue to outpace upgrades through the rest of the year despite
broader economic improvement as pockets of credit pressure remain.

Specifically, of the 235 rating actions Moody’s took in the third quarter, 182 were downgrades. By
par amount, Moody’s downgraded $53.9 billion of public finance debt in the third quarter, down
from the $92 billion downgraded in the second quarter but more than the $27 billion downgraded in
the first quarter.

The number of quarterly upgrades has increased modestly during 2013, from 36 in the first quarter
to 45 and 53 in the second and third quarters. However, the par amount upgraded was $8 billion in
the third quarter, down slightly from the $12 billion in each of the previous two quarters.

During the third quarter eight of the 10 largest downgrades in terms of par value were local
governments. The most prominent of these were the City of Chicago, to A3 from Aa3, affecting $8.2
billion in debt, Chicago Board of Education, to A3 from A2, affecting $6.3 billion in debt and
Philadelphia School District, to Ba2 from Ba1, affecting $3.3 billion.

In all there were 145 downgrades of local governments during the quarter, affecting $42 billion in
debt. Nineteen local government downgrades were based on Moody’s new approach for analyzing
state and local government pensions, including those taken on the cities of Chicago, Cincinnati, and
Minneapolis.

“The preponderance of local government downgrades underscores the credit pressure some local
governments continue to face,” says Moody’s Analyst Chandra Ghosal. “We also see that despite
broader economic improvement, there are still regional pockets of concentrated credit pressure.”

One sign of these concentrations is the high share of downgrades in California, Illinois, and
Michigan, where Moody’s downgraded ratings of 79 issuers, accounting for over 40% of downgrades
in the quarter.

The largest upgrade among the local governments was for the City of Atlanta’s Water and
Wastewater enterprise bonds to Aa3 from A1, affecting $3.1 billion in par amount of debt.
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In the higher education sector, Moody’s downgraded 16 institutions with $3.6 billion in debt in the
third quarter, while it upgraded just three institutions with $467 million in debt. Seven of the eight
public universities Moody’s rates in Illinois were downgraded because of their high dependence on
state funding, which has been delayed or reduced for several years. Among them was the University
of Illinois, which Moody’s downgraded to Aa3 from Aa2, affecting $1.56 billion in debt.

In the infrastructure sector, there were no positive rating actions in the third quarter, while there
were eight downgrades affecting $4.5 billion. Of the seven, two were municipal electric utilities with
exposure to nuclear-generation assets, highlighting the higher costs and risks associated with these
facilities.

In the not-for-profit hospital sector, Moody’s downgraded 10 hospitals and $2.67 billion in debt and
upgraded eight hospitals with $2.31 billion in debt. Decline in patient admission volumes was a
common driver of a majority of the downgrades. One significant upgrade in the sector was for the
Indiana University Health, to Aa3 from A1, affecting $1.4 billion par amount of debt.

The housing sector was the only one where upgrades outpaced downgrades, with 10 upgrades on
$474 million in debt against two downgrades on $452 million in debt. The majority of rating actions
were to privatized military housing credits.

For more information, Moody’s research subscribers can access this report at:

https://www.moodys.com/research/US-Public-Finance-Rating-Revisions-for-Q3-2013-Do-
ngrades-Continue–PBM_PBM159581.

Moody's: US Regulated Utilities to Continue Steady M&A.

Mergers and acquisitions in the US utilities industry will keep to a steady pace over the next few
years, says Moody’s Investors Service, as utilities look to expand and diversify. Moody’s says utility
deals have been generally neutral to credit quality because they have been financed with a balanced
mix of debt and equity.

Slow growth in electricity use is forcing the utilities to look beyond their service territories for
growth, says Moody’s in the report “US Regulated Utilities: Expansion, Diversification Goals
Continue to Support Steady Utility M&A.”

“Load growth has been moderating in recent years, the slower pace driven primarily by energy
conservation and efficiency, increased distributed generation and the economic downturn,” says
Jeffrey Cassella, a Moody’s Analyst. “The slower growth has pushed some utilities to look beyond
their service territories for additional load growth in areas that are growing faster than the national
average.”

Many utilities are also looking to expand their regulated businesses as a way to increase the stability
and predictability of their cash flows, while at the same time they add to their operational efficiency
as they spread operating and maintenance costs over a wider customer base.

Declining returns on equity among the utilities will also motivate the utilities to look to mergers as a
way to lower costs as they seek to capture synergies and reduce overhead costs.

“The industrial logic behind consolidating a homogenous, fragmented industry sector makes sense,”
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added Cassella, “because spreading fixed costs across a larger asset platform is more efficient and
should benefit consumers longer term.”

Capital markets are likely to be conducive to deals, says Moody’s, access to these markets having
improved since the economic downturn. Better access as well as the improved credit quality of the
utilities will support more leveraged transactions.

Moody’s expects regulators to remain receptive to consolidation in this fragmented industry,
although regulatory intervention remains a risk. Higher interest rates may slow down the pace of
debt-financed acquisitions, but rates should still remain at levels that will not hinder the financing of
future deals.

For more information, Moody’s research subscribers can access this report at:
https://www.moodys.com/research/US-Regulated-Utilities-Expans-
on-Diversification-Goals-Continue-to-Support-Steady–PBC_159270

2013 BDA Conference Public Finance Panel Video.

BDA’s Public Finance panel from the 5th Annual National Fixed Income Conference is now available
on video.

Ronald Bernardi, president and CEO, Bernardi Securities, Inc., moderated a panel discussion on
critical municipal bond market topics at the Bond Dealers of America (BDA) annual conference held
in Chicago earlier this month.

To access video of the panel, click here:

http://www.bernardisecurities.com/research-insights/webinar/2013-bda-conference-public-finance-pa
nel

FASB Finalizes Guidance for Defining a Public Business.

After considering public feedback, the Financial Accounting Standards Board on October 30
finalized guidance that will establish a single definition of a public business entity for use in future
accounting standards, but the board will not undertake a project on defining nonpublic entities until
its future rulemaking agenda is prioritized.

After considering public feedback, the Financial Accounting Standards Board on October 30
finalized guidance that will establish a single definition of a public business entity for use in future
accounting standards, but the board will not undertake a project on defining nonpublic entities until
its future rulemaking agenda is prioritized.

At a meeting in Norwalk, Conn., FASB directed its staff to prepare a final accounting standards
update that would amend the Accounting Standards Codification (ASC), but board members agreed
that no effective date will be provided for the standard. Rather, the board decided that the final
definition of a public business would be established when the term is used in a future amendment to
the ASC.
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The board’s discussion indicated that alternative guidance to U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles developed by FASB’s advisory group, the Private Company Council, could be the first
accounting standards to reference the new definition of a public business entity.

On August 7 FASB issued the proposed accounting standards update “Definition of a Public Business
Entity: An Amendment to the Master Glossary,” which set criteria for identifying a public business
entity, including a requirement to file or furnish financial statements with the SEC or another
regulatory agency for purposes of issuing securities.

Before finalizing the proposed guidance, board members agreed to clarify the proposal to address
stakeholder concerns about the criteria for identifying a public business entity and about linking the
definition of a public business entity to existing regulatory requirements.

The board ultimately voted against a staff recommendation to eliminate a criterion that an entity
that has unrestricted securities and is required to periodically provide publicly available U.S. GAAP
financial statements in accordance with all legal, contractual, or regulatory requirements should be
considered a public business.

Callie Haley, a postgraduate technical assistant at FASB, said the staff is not aware of many
instances in which an entity would be considered a public business entity based on that criterion
alone. She added that the criterion conflicts with the project’s objective of simplifying the process of
identifying a public business entity because it introduces unnecessary complexity into the definition.

However, FASB member Thomas Linsmeier supported retaining the criterion, saying its scope would
help protect the board from having to continually update its definition of a public business entity as
the financial markets evolve over time.

The board accepted the staff recommendation to delay its decision about whether to amend the
existing definitions of a nonpublic entity in the ASC given the board’s current agenda prioritization
effort.

According to Haley, the staff believes that FASB and the Private Company Council should have more
time to evaluate any potential implementation issues regarding the final definition of a public
business as future accounting alternatives are provided to private entities.

by Thomas Jaworski

Sandy's High Costs Spur Municipal Finance Innovation.

Faced with nearly $5 billion in losses from Hurricane Sandy’s storm surge alone, severely
constrained in the conventional global reinsurance market and with its premiums for traditional
reinsurance essentially doubled, officials from the Metropolitan Transportation Authority turned to
an alternative vehicle — catastrophe bonds.

The $200 million MetroCat Re Ltd. Series 2013-1 is the first catastrophe bond that covers storm-
surge risk arising from named storms.

The deal is only one example of Sandy affecting public finance. As the one-year anniversary of the
megastorm beckons, municipal issuers are still grasping what they need to do, how to do it and how
to pay for it.

https://bondcasebriefs.com/2013/10/28/finance-and-accounting/sandys-high-costs-spur-municipal-finance-innovation/


New York City Mayor Michael Bloomberg in June released a 420-page storm-resistance plan, which
also raised a long list of questions. Who would fund what is left for the successor to Bloomberg, who
will leave office Jan. 1. Bloomberg’s 250 recommendations include calls for levees, floodwalls, surge
barriers, bulkheads and other features for shoreline areas.

At the local level, concerns range from liquidity to the role of the federal government — how much
cities and towns will receive and what strings may come — to relocating valuable assets such as
police headquarters from vulnerable locations.

According to MTA chairman Thomas Prendergast, the MetroCat deal represents a capital markets
breakthrough. “We anticipate that this deal represents the start of a long-term alternative
reinsurance option that diversifies MTA’s risk-management strategy,” he said.

Risk Management Solutions Inc. of Newark, Calif., provided the risk analysis, using its North
Atlantic hurricane model. RMS officials say it’s the only hurricane model in the industry that
quantifies risk from catastrophic hurricane-driven storm surge.

Standard & Poor’s issued its first surge-only rating, assigning BB-minus which reflects the principal
at-risk nature of the offering. MetroCat Re is collateralizing the reinsurance through a cat bond and
has its own credit rating separate from mainstream MTA credits such as transportation revenue
bonds and dedicated tax fund bonds.

Sandy was not even a hurricane at landfall, yet it struck the Northeast with an 18-foot Category 2
surge. Sandy’s $71 billion worth of damage ranks second behind $108 billion Katrina, which
hammered the Gulf Coast in 2005.

Peter Nakada, a managing director for capital markets at RMS, has seen a trend the past couple of
years — that catastrophe bonds are more mainstream. “There’s a convergence of the capital markets
and reinsurance worlds,” Nakada said in an interview.

“What’s happened the past couple of years is that pension funds are investing more in catastrophe
bonds. It’s gone from a sort of fringe thing to a mainstream diversified asset.”

That’s a far cry from about three years ago, Nakada said.

“Pension-fund managers used to tell you that the absolute worst thing to happen was for an
investment to go uncommonly wrong. If you made a 3% allocation to something like this and the
wind blew too hard, they’d fire you. Now it’s mainstream, something to strengthen a diversified
asset class. Investors are here to stay,” he said.

“This has expanded the market for insurance,” Nakada said. “A lot of people think that the capital
markets and reinsurance are fighting for the same pie. It’s not that at all. This will actually grow the
pie.”

According to RMS, surge accounted for nearly two-thirds of Sandy’s total insured loss. The RMS
model projects a 20% chance that a U.S. hurricane will cause more damage from surge than wind,
and 40% along the Northeast coast.

“Storm surge really is a separate peril,’ said Nakada. “You’ve got to model it separately. It is the
driver.

“The geography of New York City is the absolute worst for storm surge. It has a right angle. Waves
are driven into the right angle. In New Jersey, New York City, Long Island it gets magnified and you



saw that effect.”

The MetroCat parametric index allows MTA to efficiently access capital without requiring investors
to underwrite the infrastructure of the MTA, according to RMS. The index proxies MTA exposure to
elevated water levels, using measurements at five key tidal gauge locations in the metropolitan area,
including Battery Park in lower Manhattan.

The trigger event occurs if during a named storm, surge height reaches 8.5 feet at the Battery or
15.5 feet in Long Island Sound. This also helps the MTA plan for related capital projects such as
barriers to entrances.

“The MTA gets a measuring stick and a no-haggle insurance policy,” said Nakada.

According to Alan Rubin, a consultant with law firm Cozen O’Connor LP in New York, said resiliency
is today’s buzzword. “It used to be preparedness,” said Rubin.

Federal, state and local officials called Rubin the “hurricane czar” for his work in Miami-Dade
County, Fla., after Hurricane Andrew caused more than $30 billion in damage in 1992. While
working in Lehman Brothers’ investment banking division, Rubin helped design and underwrite the
catastrophe fund for hurricane relief.

“What I like about MTA is that it did use scientific data to determine the surge level,” said Rubin.

“They also used a stepped approach and they found an inexpensive source of funding for this type of
protection and activity,’ Rubin said. “The biggest problem, I see, is that they need to look at debt
service for these funds so that riders are not inconvenienced with fare increases at the end of the
day to pay for it.”

Scientific data itself can be a variable, which can befuddle local issuers.

“You have the European model, the American model, the Asian model, all of which effectively look at
different climactic effects,” said Rubin. “It’s a pretty big challenge. Part of the problem is that if
you’re off by a foot in terms of a surge, the multiplier is gigantic. You try to project as close as you
can get. It’s a major issue for public issuers.

“In Florida, they raise and lower the levels of the canals. Here, how you direct water is different. You
have the Hudson and East rivers and essentially you want water to go a certain way.”

Rachel Barkley, an analyst at Morningstar Inc., said Sandy has made the leaders of coastal
communities wiser, although planning is still difficult. “Infrastructure and liquidity are still big
issues. The leaders of these affected communities want to do the right thing. The question is, what is
the right thing and what is affordable? It’s hard to use a scientific approach when the scientific
community can’t agree.”

And assessing cost is still incomplete, she said. “Are there capital needs down the road, direct or
indirect, as a result of Hurricane Sandy? The MTA, for example, detected wires deep in the tunnels.”

MTA officials, well after extracting water from the tunnels, found corroded wires and other under-
the-radar damaged equipment in its saltwater-damaged Montague and Greenpoint underwater
tubes. The Montague tube, a pair of 5,000-foot tunnels, carries the R train under the East River
between Manhattan and Brooklyn. The shorter Greenpoint tube transports G train riders between
Brooklyn and Queens under the Newtown Creek.



“Every time you push a button, there’s a cost,” said Prendergast, while displaying some of the
corroded parts at a press conference.

Some protective measures are well within the control of municipalities. Exposed areas of Long
Island, for instance, are reconsidering waterfront locations for public works facilities and even first-
floor headquarters for police departments.

“When you’re running a municipality, you’re not a weatherman. You wind up with your finger in the
air trying to tell which way the wind is blowing,” said Anthony Figliola, the vice president of Empire
Government Strategies of Uniondale, N.Y., and former deputy supervisor of Brookhaven, N.Y. “But
there are tangible options to try and protect your assets with limited resources.”

Jonathan Peters, a finance professor at the College of Staten Island, said nobody envisions low-lying
assets as a problem until the storm arrives. “Then the event becomes a major test,” he said. Peters
referenced New Jersey Transit’s $120 million in damage to train cars left in the low-lying Kearney
and Hoboken yards — despite the agency having a plan in place for four months to move the trains
to higher ground.

The MTA, by contrast, moved cars to higher grounds and minimized damage.

But the MTA was vulnerable at South Ferry station in lower Manhattan, which sustained the most
damage in the system — less than four years after the authority spent $600 million on a remodeling
— artsy tiling and all — for an asset that sits below the water table.

“A subway station is a 50- to 100-year asset,” said Peters, whose research includes mass-transit
financing. “The newest work is essentially a replacement. You can’t be doing this every four years.

“Bus rapid transit might be more reasonable to low-lying areas. The lower end of Manhattan has a
lot of unanswered questions. Areas like South Street Seaport, people don’t know what to do.”

How any moves by the federal government affect local policies is still unanswered.

“There’s no clear answer,” said Peters. “No one’s saying they wouldn’t protect Kennedy Airport, but
do we protect [nearby] Jamaica Bay?”

Rubin worries that Sandy has spawned “instant experts” on storm protection, further confusing local
and state issuers.

“Once you have a situation like this, a very credible disaster, you get all kinds of people coming out
of the woodwork, from all the agencies to scientists who say ‘oh boy, this is a chance to get a grant.’
Ninety percent of the stuff is not doable, and you have to drill down on what’s going to work and
what isn’t. Otherwise, nothing happens and five years go by.”

By contrast, according to Rubin, a more focused group of engineers enabled the low-lying
Netherlands to complete its $8 billion flood-defense system in 1997. It consists of computer-operated
dams and sea-surge barriers. Floodgates are quickly lowered during storms.

But Nakada of RMS thinks the more ideas, the better.

“We have what we think is the best detailed surge model — the only sure model — out there, but
we’re not claiming to be the single voices of truth,” he said. “We encourage our clients who are
investors to do their homework.”



BY PAUL BURTON

FASB Agrees to Modify Nonprofit Cash Flow Presentation.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board on October 23 tentatively decided by a narrow vote to
change the method in which several nonprofit organizations present their operating cash flows.

At a meeting in Norwalk, Conn., FASB members voted 4 to 3 to accept a proposal requiring
nonprofit organizations to use the direct method of reporting cash flows from their operating
activities. The direct method calls for entities to report cash flows from operating activities directly
by displaying the major classes of operating cash receipts and payments.

As a result of the board’s decision, a future exposure draft would amend the existing guidance under
FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 958, “Not-for-Profit Entities,” that encourages use of
the direct method only for reporting net cash flows from operating activities. Under the existing
guidance, entities that choose not to report those operating cash receipts and payments are required
to report the same amount of net cash flow using an indirect method.

The board tentatively decided to no longer require nonprofits using the direct method to provide a
reconciliation of net income and net cash flow provided from its operations.

A staff paper prepared for the meeting said that the feedback received from stakeholders indicated
that the direct method of reporting cash flows is more intuitive and understandable for nonprofit
financial statement users, in particular donors with limited financial expertise. The paper also said
the staff learned that implementation costs wouldn’t represent a significant barrier from requiring
use of the direct method.

FASB member Thomas Linsmeier supported the proposal to mandate the use of the direct method
for reporting cash flows by nonprofit organizations, saying that the direct method better depicts
operating cash flows and would make the statement of cash flows more relevant for those types of
entities.

FASB member Daryl Buck, however, expressed concern about prescribing a requirement on cash
flow reporting, suggesting that the board instead provide nonprofit entities with the option to select
either the direct or indirect method depending on which presentation approach is more suitable for
the needs of their financial statement users.

Ronald Bossio, a senior project manager at FASB, said that the cash flow statement can be most
valuable for those nonprofit organizations that may experience difficulty generating cash despite
receiving long-term donations and assets. “It’s a very early warning sign and can be a very valuable
statement,” he said.

The board also considered tentative changes to the existing categories of cash flows that classify
donor-restricted cash gifts for long-lived operating assets, cash dividends, and interest income from
investing activities, and cash payments of interest expense on long-term capital financing activities.

FASB’s latest decisions were made as part of its project on reexamining the standards for nonprofit
financial statement presentation. The board previously decided to replace existing rules that require
a nonprofit to present information about its funding and resources.
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According to Bossio, the next steps of the nonprofit financial reporting project plan will be to
complete discussions on how best to improve the information provided about a nonprofit’s liquidity
and address potential improvements to the entity’s statement of functional expenses.

Share-Based Payments

FASB also released the proposed accounting standards update, “Compensation — Stock
Compensation (Topic 718): Accounting for Share-Based Payments When the Terms of an Award
Provide That a Performance Target Could Be Achieved After the Requisite Service Period.”

On October 2 FASB ratified the final consensus of the board’s Emerging Issues Task Force to invite
public comment on proposed guidance that would require that performance targets for share-based
payment awards that can be met after the completion of an employee’s requisite service period be
treated as a performance condition that affects the vesting of the awards.

FASB will accept written comments on the proposal until December 23.

The proposal is available at:

http://www.fasb.org/cs/ContentServer?c=Document_C&pagename=FASB%2FDocument_C%2FDocu
mentPage&cid=1176163531340.)

by Thomas Jaworski

Fitch: U.S. Public Finance Downgrades Exceed Upgrades in 3Q'13.

Fitch Ratings-New York-24 October 2013: Fitch Ratings notes that during the third quarter of 2013
(3Q’13) and for the 19th consecutive quarter, U.S. public finance rating downgrades outnumbered
upgrades. Both the number of downgrades and upgrades decreased compared to the second quarter.
While the number of downgrades was at its lowest level since 3Q’10, it should be noted that the
number of downgrades for the first three quarters of this year (164) is similar to the number of
downgrades during the first three quarters of 2012 (157).

Negative actions are expected to remain elevated, as Negative Rating Outlooks exceeded Positive
Rating Outlooks (3.2:1) at the end of 3Q’13. However, the ratio of Negative Outlooks to Positive
Outlooks has been slowly decreasing for the last eight quarters and is at its lowest level since 3Q’09.
The vast majority of rating actions (88%) during the third quarter were affirmations, with no change
in Rating Outlook or Rating Watch status. Furthermore, 90% of ratings had a Stable Rating Outlook
at the end of the third quarter.

Downgrades still account for a small percentage of total public finance rating actions. Fitch Ratings
downgraded 39 credits, which represented approximately 4.6% of all rating actions and $40.5 billion
in par value. In 2Q’13, Fitch downgraded 68 credits. Fitch upgraded 23 credits, which represented
2.7% of all rating actions and $94.3 billion in par value. In 2Q’13, Fitch upgraded 24 credits.

The number of downgrades exceeded upgrades by a margin of 1.7:1, which decreased from 2.8:1 in
the prior quarter. The downgrade to upgrade ratio by par value also decreased to 0.4:1 from 5.5:1 in
the prior quarter. The dramatic decrease in the ratio is largely due to the upgrade of California’s GO
bonds in August.
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The full report ‘U.S. Public Finance Rating Actions for Third Quarter 2013’ summarizes these rating
actions by sector and can be found at www.fitchratings.com.

Proposed Lease Accounting Standard Could Raise Costs, AICPA Says.

A proposed accounting standard on leases fails to resolve concerns for current lease accounting
standards and may impose additional costs on financial statement preparers, the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants said in an October 14 letter to the Financial Accounting Standards
Board.

October 14, 2013

Ms. Susan M. Cosper

Technical Director

Financial Accounting Standards Board

401 Merritt 7

P.O. Box 5116

Norwalk, CT 06856-5116

File Reference No. 2013-270

Dear Ms. Cosper:

The Financial Reporting Executive Committee (FinREC) of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (AICPA) is pleased to offer its comments on the FASB’s May 16, 2013, Exposure Draft
(ED) of a proposed Accounting Standards Update (ASU) Leases (Topic 842).

We appreciate the significant efforts made to address the concerns raised by constituents on the
previous exposure draft issued in 2010.

Leasing is pervasive. The depth and breadth of the market, the desire to achieve symmetry between
lessees and lessors, as well as the variety of terms and economics inherent in leasing arrangements
makes the task of reaching consensus on revisions to leasing guidance a real challenge.

FinREC has been supportive of the board’s project to revise lease accounting and the issues
identified in the March 19, 2009, Discussion Paper Leases: Preliminary Views. The FASB and IASB
identified three criticisms of current lease accounting requirements:

a. Many leases are off-balance sheet despite the fact that financial statement users believe that they
give rise to assets and liabilities that should be recognized in the financial statements of lessees.
This forces users to adjust the reported amounts in the financial statements in connection with those
transactions.

b. The existence of two very different accounting models for leases means that similar transactions
can be accounted for very differently, which reduces comparability for users.
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c. Existing lease accounting standards provide transaction structuring opportunities that make the
financial statements less transparent for users.

Cost benefit

A cornerstone of the response to these criticisms is that a lessee should recognize the assets and
liabilities arising from a lease. We agree with this core principle and with the notion that many
leases inherently include a financing component that justifies the recognition of a liability by the
lessee, and the conceptual merit of recognizing the associated rights conveyed in exchange for
assuming the liability. However, FinREC is concerned that other important objectives have not been
met and that the overall standard is not a sufficient improvement over today’s guidance to support
adoption of the proposals in the ED. We are also concerned that adoption of the provisions of the ED
will impose significant costs on financial statement preparers — both on transition and on an
ongoing basis. Some costs represent the investment in new accounting systems and associated
controls that may ease financial reporting burdens once implemented. However, the complexity
inherent in the construct of the dual model, specifically the distinction based on whether the leased
item is property, and the ongoing required judgments, represent a permanent increased level of
effort. A lease accounting model that is general enough to consider all the various types of leasing
arrangements and provides a single recognition and measurement approach has proven to be a
challenge. As such, we understand why the ED proposes a dual model; however, the dual model as
currently proposed is not sufficiently operational and does not incrementally improve financial
reporting in a cost-effective manner.

We believe that, in formulating a final standard, the board should give robust consideration to
cost/benefit. That could include performing additional field testing of the standard and evaluate how
to strike a better balance between the technical and practical/operational aspects of any proposed
changes to leasing. FinREC believes that any transition to a model with most leases on balance sheet
will by necessity involve a significant level of effort. However, it would appear that additional
accommodations with respect to classification, transition and remeasurement, some of which we will
discuss later in this letter, would reduce the cost without sacrificing transparency objectives of this
project.

Impact on Lessors

FinREC believes that the emphasis on recognition of the liability by the lessee, and the desire for
symmetry, creates significant challenges for lessors — notably the notion that recognition of the
right to use a small portion of a nonproperty asset represents a sale on the part of the lessor of a
corresponding portion of the leased asset. FinREC understands the desire for symmetry between
lessors and lessees, but we believe this has complicated efforts to achieve consensus on a new
standard that meets the key objectives laid out in the discussion paper while providing users with
improved relevant and representationally faithful information. While symmetry is a desirable goal it
is not a requirement, particularly when it could result in financial reporting that is less relevant to
financial statement users than that provided today. Even under today’s model, leasing often results
in asymmetrical results (e.g., built-to-suit leasing, real estate sale-leaseback transactions, sales type
leases of real estate). Nor is this confined to leasing. Asymmetrical accounting between the parties
involved in a transaction is pervasive.

The introduction of the dual model goes some way toward mitigating concerns expressed by
property lessors, but does not go far enough for certain lessors of other long-lived assets that they
believe share many economic characteristics of property leases. We also have concerns that a model
requiring classification based on the nature of the leased asset, rather than the economics inherent
in the contract, may not provide users with the most decision-useful information — particularly with



respect to lessors.

Lease classification

While the proposals in the ED represent an improvement relative to the initial ED in 2010, the ED’s
proposals do not resolve the second and third criticisms of current lease accounting standards
identified by the boards. Further, it appears that the proposed disclosure requirements reflect a
clear expectation that financial statement users will continue to find it necessary to make
adjustments to the reported amounts in the financial statements in connection with leasing
transactions, and may even need to do so for more transactions than under current lease accounting
standards because users currently do not differentiate between leases on the basis of consumption.

Further, retaining a requirement to classify leases retains significant complexity inherent in today’s
GAAP, but with a dividing line that may not properly reflect the economics of the underlying
arrangement, which adds unnecessary complexity — particularly in terms of how components are
identified and classified. This is particularly apparent in leases of power plants and other assets
likely to be seen as a single component but that contain aspects of both property and nonproperty.
This will add to the already challenging task of splitting multiple-element arrangements into their
components.

FinREC supports an approach for lessee accounting in which all leases other than short-term leases
are recognized on-balance sheet by lessees. However, FinREC believes that the board should
reconsider the proposed lease classification tests for income statement purposes. The ED’s proposed
classification tests do not appear to be responsive to the needs of financial statement users or
provide benefits that outweigh the related costs. As an alternative to the current proposals, and in
an effort to identify a solution that results in converged lease standards, FinREC recommends a dual
recognition method in which the pattern of recognition would depend on whether the economic
arrangement is more consistent with an in-substance financed purchase or motivated more by a
desire for finite usage of a given asset. We believe this classification test should be based on clearly
articulated principles and field tested to ensure that it is operational. Leases consistent with in-
substance financed purchases would be accounted for as Type A leases and other leases as Type B
leases, both as contemplated in the ED.

If consensus resulted in classification on the basis of the guidance contained in International
Accounting Standard (IAS) 17 Leases, we would not object to this split, particularly since it is similar
to current proposals for property and to current lease classification guidance under U.S. GAAP but
without the much criticized bright lines. This would not alter some of the conceptual and other
concerns discussed above. But if a dual model is included in the standard, it may be preferable to
use one that is well understood in practice and familiar to financial statement users. Such an
approach would —

Be responsive to constituents who believe there is more than one type of lease arrangement (e.g.,●

some leases are more akin to financing of an asset and others are obtaining the right to use an
asset for a finite period).
Retain a lease classification test that is well understood in practice and familiar to certain financial●

statement users. This alternative does not eliminate the complexity in today’s accounting guidance
but would be less complex than the ED as it benefits from experience of those applying IFRS.
Still address a key objective of bringing lease-related assets and liabilities on balance sheet.●

We are aware that some have called for removing lessor accounting from the proposed guidance.
This would retain many of the bright line tests inherent in U.S. GAAP today and carry forward lessor
accounting. As such, we also recommend addressing lease classification for lessors in a manner



consistent with the preceding paragraph, a solution that would address the above concerns but is
likely to otherwise be similar to today’s lessor model.

Other matters

In addition to the concerns we express with respect to the dual model, there are a number of areas
in which the concepts contained in the ED could be more clearly articulated, in which current
proposals might be challenging to apply, or in which guidance does not appear to produce benefits
that are justified in relation to their expected costs.

The primary areas of concern include:

We welcome revisions made to the identification of embedded leases. However, we believe that the
guidance as currently proposed may be difficult to apply in practice and could be improved to
highlight the key factors that drove the accounting conclusion. This would enhance consistency in
application for transactions with similar circumstances. We expect that this issue will be particularly
significant in circumstances in which a lease is embedded in a multiple-element service contract.

How preparers should determine whether assets that are functionally interdependent represent one
or more than one unit of account. In the ED, the board has provided examples of a power plant and
manufacturing facility. The examples concluded that the former has one component and the latter
two. This determination has a potentially significant impact on income statement presentation, but
the examples are unclear as to whether this conclusion is based on the nature of the asset, the
perceived relative costs of separating the property from nonproperty, or some other factor.

How the guidance in the ED will be applied to services contracts where an underlying asset is not
the primary motivation for executing the arrangement. A good example of this is naming rights for a
sports facility. The primary economic motivation for such an arrangement is marketing, but the
arrangement constitutes a right not dissimilar to the use of a billboard.

Irrespective of the decision the board makes, implementing a standard on such a pervasive topic will
be a challenge. FinREC recommends that the board establish a post-issuance lease implementation
process to ensure consistent application of the final principles across different asset classes and
industries.

We provide further information and commentary on these and other areas in our responses to the
board’s questions in the ED in the appendix to this letter.

Representatives of FinREC and the FinREC Leases Task Force are available to discuss our
comments with board members or staff at their convenience.

Sincerely,

Richard Paul

Chairman

FinREC

Chad Soares

Chairman



FinREC Leases Task Force

American Institute of CPAs

New York, NY

CC:

Hans Hoogervorst, Chairman

International Accounting Standards Board

Attachment

Question 1: Identifying a Lease

Do you agree with the definition of a lease and the proposed requirements for how an entity would
determine whether a contract contains a lease? Why or why not? If not, how would you define a
lease?Please supply specific fact patterns, if any, to which you think the proposed definition of a
lease is difficult to apply or leads to a conclusion that does not reflect the economics of the
transaction.

We believe that it is appropriate to evaluate whether an agreement contains a lease based on
whether it contains (1) an identified asset and (2) whether the lessee obtains the right to control the
use of the asset for a particular period. However, we believe that the guidance and related
examples, as currently proposed, may be difficult to apply in practice and could be improved to
highlight the key factors that drove the accounting conclusion. This would enhance consistency in
application for transactions with similar circumstances. We expect that this issue will be particularly
significant in circumstances in which a lease is embedded in a multiple-element service contract.

FinREC believes that control is inherent in a lease relationship and that the focus should be on
principles rather than bright lines. However, we believe additional guidance is needed on how to
weight factors that seemingly indicate control against factors that would seemingly indicate an
absence of control. We are concerned that the examples included in the ED do not clearly illustrate
how to evaluate involvement in different phases of the arrangement (relative weight for design
versus operation of the asset) or how to identify significant decisions — particularly those made in
connection with the delivery of nonlease services contracted for under the arrangement. Some
FinREC members also suggested that, in cases in which the asset has no utility without services
provided by the lessor, the entire arrangement is better reflected as a service contract. One
potential example of this would be cable television boxes, which have little stand-alone value without
the associated subscription. It is one simple example of the complexity inherent in applying the
control model.

FinREC believes the final standard will benefit from more detailed examples, especially on how to
weight conflicting indicators when making “close calls” — this would enhance consistency in
application and aid financial statement users in evaluating reported results.

In addition, we are not clear on to how to apply the phrase “throughout the term of the contract” in
evaluating whether the customer has the ability to direct the activities that most significantly affect
the economic benefits to be derived from use of an asset or can derive substantially all of the
potential economic benefits from its use. Is it the Board’s intent to apply a model similar to ASC 810-
10/IFRS 10, or does this control model attempt to assign decisions (including those agreed to in the
contract) to each of the involved parties?



We also believe it would be helpful to address how decision making inherent in nonlease elements
ties into the assessment of control and associated benefits. Is this based solely on output, or must it
consider the lessee’s own circumstances and other assets to be used in concert with the leased
asset?

FinREC also believes it is important to reconcile the guidance on control in the ED to that for sale-
leaseback transactions, which appears to consider control based on risks and rewards (e.g., lease
term and present value of lease payments).

FinREC is not seeking bright lines but rather is trying to ensure that the guidance can be applied
consistently considering the impact that these judgments could have on preparers’ financial
statements.

In addition to seeking clarity regarding control, we believe that the guidance with respect to
substitution rights could be improved. Specifically, we believe that the ED’s examples appear to
downplay the economic and operational costs of substitution. FinREC believes that when substantive
substitution rights are present, they often represent the end of a lease of one asset and the start of
the lease of a different asset and substitution is more relevant in considering the lease term than the
presence of a lease. Notwithstanding our view, FinREC recognizes that there are contracts in certain
industries (e.g., IT outsourcing arrangements) for which substitution rights and attendant costs
reinforce the view that the overall arrangement is a service contract more appropriately reflected as
an executory contract. This may be especially true when equipment is replaced without the
customer’s knowledge and/or control.

Finally, we are also concerned that the board’s proposal to consider not only assets available to the
lessor, but also those that could be acquired, assumes insight the lessee likely will lack as well as the
availability of additional assets and the willingness of a lessor to acquire or deploy additional assets
in support of a contract. FinREC believes it would be better to consider changes in assets available
to the lessor as a trigger for reassessing whether the contract is in scope, rather than rely on
assumptions that could be highly subjective. Should the board elect to retain the guidance proposed
in the ED, we believe that it would be necessary to provide additional guidance on how to evaluate
the costs of substitution. Are such costs considered relative to a given asset or to the aggregate
value of lease elements in a multiple-element arrangement? Should the analysis factor in lessor
incentives with respect to substitution? Under existing GAAP, if utility was an important
consideration in determining when an arrangement contained a lease, substitution rights were
arguably more relevant considering that a lessee may have little or no control over the asset. With
control at the heart of the leasing analysis in the ED, its utility to identifying embedded leases has
lessened.

Question 2: Lessee Accounting

Do you agree that the recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows
arising from a lease should differ for different leases, depending on whether the lessee is expected
to consume more than an insignificant portion of the economic benefits embedded in the underlying
asset? Why or why not? If no, what alternative approach would you propose and why?

As discussed in the forepart of this letter, FinREC recommends a dual-model approach for lessee and
lessor accounting in which all leases other than short-term leases are recognized on-balance sheet
by lessees. However, FinREC believes that the board should reconsider the proposed lease
classification tests. The ED’s proposed classification tests do not appear to be responsive to the
needs of financial statement users or provide benefits that outweigh the related costs. FinREC
recommends a dual recognition method in which the pattern of recognition would depend on



whether the economic arrangement is more consistent with an in-substance financed purchase or
motivated more by a desire for finite usage of a given asset. We believe this classification test should
be based on clearly articulated principles and field tested to ensure that it is operational. Leases
consistent with in-substance financed purchases would be accounted for as Type A leases and other
leases as Type B leases, both as contemplated in the ED.

If consensus resulted in classification on the basis of the guidance contained in International
Accounting Standard (IAS) 17 Leases, we would not object to this split, particularly since it is similar
to current proposals for property and to current lease classification guidance under U.S. GAAP but
without the much criticized bright lines. FinREC believes that, if a dual model is included in the
standard, it may be preferable to use one that is well understood in practice and familiar to financial
statement users.

Question 3: Lessor Accounting

Do you agree that a lessor should apply a different accounting approach to different leases,
depending on whether the lessee is expected to consume more than an insignificant portion of the
economic benefits embedded in the underlying asset? Why or why not? If not, what alternative
approach would you propose and why?

FinREC believes that the emphasis on recognition of the liability by the lessee, and the desire for
symmetry, creates significant challenges for lessors — notably the notion that recognition of the
right to use a small portion of a nonproperty asset represents a sale on the part of the lessor of a
corresponding portion of the leased asset. FinREC understands the desire for symmetry between
lessors and lessees, but we believe this has complicated efforts to achieve consensus on a new
standard that meets the key objectives of this project while providing users with improved relevant
and representationally faithful information. While symmetry is a desirable goal, leasing today often
results in asymmetrical results (e.g., built to suit leasing, real estate sale-leaseback transactions,
sales type leases of real estate), and this is not confined only to leasing. It has been our experience
that symmetry is often the exception rather than the rule.

The introduction of the dual model goes some way toward mitigating concerns expressed by
property lessors, but does not go far enough for certain lessors of other long-lived assets that they
believe share many economic characteristics of property leases. We also have concerns that a model
requiring classification based on the nature of the leased asset, rather than the economics inherent
in the contract, may not provide users with the most decision-useful information — particularly with
respect to lessors.

FinREC believes that the concerns expressed above can be addressed without dropping lessor
accounting from the project and by incorporating income statement classification on the basis of

IAS 17. This would leave lessor accounting largely unchanged (with the exception of removing bright
line tests and leveraged lease accounting) and symmetrical with proposals for the lessee.

If FinREC’s proposal for revised lease classification guidance is not accepted, we strongly
recommend that the board consider dropping proposed changes to lessor accounting until the issues
raised by stakeholders can be addressed. If such a path is chosen by the board, FinREC supports a
very narrow change to lessor accounting to remove the guidance for leverage leases.

Question 4: Classification of Leases

Do you agree that the principle on the lessee’s expected consumption of the economic benefits



embedded in the underlying asset should be applied using the [ED] requirements, which differ
depending on whether the underlying asset is property? Why or why not? If not, what alternative
approach would you propose and why?

FinREC does not support an income statement classification model based on the nature of the leased
asset. This classification approach introduces significant complexity with a dividing line that may not
properly reflect the economics of the underlying arrangement and may reduce the utility of
information to financial statement users. This unnecessary complexity is likely to only increase the
complexity of ongoing compliance with the proposed model — particularly to the already challenging
task of splitting multiple-element arrangements into their components.

As discussed in our response to Question 2, FinREC recommends a dual recognition method in which
the pattern of recognition would depend on whether the economic arrangement is more consistent
with an in-substance financed purchase or motivated more by a desire for finite usage of a given
asset. Leases consistent with in-substance financed purchases would be accounted for as Type A
leases and other leases as Type B leases, both as contemplated in the ED.

If consensus resulted in classification on the basis of the guidance contained in IAS 17 Leases, we
would not object to this split, particularly since it is similar to current proposals for property and to
current lease classification guidance under U.S. GAAP but without the much criticized bright lines.
We believe the principles-based guidance inherent in IAS 17 is a superior approach to the
consumption model, without sacrificing its benefits, and that the concerns about today’s
classification approach are largely grounded in the off-balance-sheet nature of operating leases and
the associated bright lines, rather than concerns with classification based on risks and rewards.

Question 5: Lease Term

Do you agree with the proposals on lease term, including the reassessment of the lease term if there
is a change in relevant factors? Why or why not? If not, how do you propose that a lessee and a
lessor should determine the lease term and why?

FinREC supports the board’s view that lease term should be reassessed to reflect changes in
relevant circumstances. This will not only limit potential structuring opportunities, but it will also
provide more timely information to financial statement users. We also support the board’s proposals
that renewals be included only when economic incentives suggest renewal is likely. However, in
light of the guidance in the basis for conclusions, we believe that the standard should consider
renewals that are “reasonably assured” to avoid confusion as to the possible difference between this
concept and that of significant economic incentive.

FinREC believes the proposal should provide explicit examples of indicators that may indicate a
change in assumptions. Of the indicators provided in 842-10-55-4, only one, the addition of
significant leasehold improvements, is likely to be clear to constituents. The remaining examples
cited in the guidance all seem to be market-based indicators, which ASC 842-10-55-5 indicates will
not, in isolation, trigger a reassessment. Many preparers have substantial lease portfolios and have
expressed concern over the cost of having to consider incentives on what is a highly subjective basis
to ensure there has been no change at each balance sheet date. Reassessment is desirable to
minimize structuring opportunities and to provide for more decision-useful information for users, but
it must be balanced against the cost of compliance. Further clarity is needed on the non-marke-
-based factors a preparer may need to consider when applying this guidance over the life of the
lease.

FinREC believes that there should be clarity with regard to how management’s intent is factored



into the reassessment model. Many would consider management’s stated intent to be a fairly
compelling data point in determining the lease term, but it is not apparent how intent factors into
the market-, contract-, asset- and entity-based factors cited in ASC 842-10-55-4.

We believe that the guidance in the ED should be clarified with respect to determination of short-
term leases. Specifically, we believe the board should specifically address how lessees and lessors
should evaluate month-to-month leases and those that contain one-party termination provisions.

Question 6: Variable Lease Payments

Do you agree with the proposals on the measurement of variable lease payments, including the
reassessment if there is a change in an index or a rate used to determine lease payments? Why or
why not? If not, how do you propose that a lessee and a lessor should account for variable lease
payments and why?

We understand why the board would seek to remeasure the asset and liability for changes to an
index subsequent to initial recognition — particularly in jurisdictions where adjustments are
significant either annually or over the life of the arrangement. However, there is significant
confusion as to the frequency of such adjustments. Some FinREC members believe the lease liability
should not be remeasured for changes to the index subsequent to the initial measurement. This
would be consistent with how other liabilities (e.g., variable rate debt) would be treated.

FinREC recognizes that, unlike typical variable rate debt, some lease indexation (e.g., based on
changes to the Consumer Price Index (CPI)) typically has an upward ratchet only and that the
concepts in the ED regarding variable lease payments are reasonable. However, we believe that
remeasurement should not be required as this adds an additional layer of complexity to lease
accounting for which there may be no significant economic benefit to financial statement users. We
instead recommend an update to the future minimum lease commitment disclosure so that when a
CPI adjustment is factored into rent payments, the disclosure is updated to reflect the future cash
outflows based on the current amount of rent the lessee is paying (which would include increases in
CPI). This is information that preparers will have readily available once the index resets, and it will
provide users with timely notice of the changes in lease payments. Presenting this on an
undiscounted basis is unlikely to hamper its utility but it will reduce the cost of compliance.

If the board moves forward with the requirement to reassess the lease obligation, FinREC
recommends that remeasurement be required only when the cash flows related to the lease change.
For example, if the lease payments are adjusted annually by reference to the CPI, the lease liability
should not be adjusted for interim changes in the CPI but only at the point that cash payments reset
for a given lease. Since changes to CPI today trigger updates to lease payments, reassessment at
this time is likely to impose less of a burden than the guidance as currently proposed. FinREC
believes that remeasurements more frequently than the reset provisions stipulated in a given lease
would reflect a false precision and that the cost would exceed the benefits.

Question 7: Transition

The ED states that a lessee and a lessor would recognize and measure leases at the beginning of the
earliest period presented using either a modified retrospective approach or a full retrospective
approach. Do you agree with those proposals? Why or why not? If not, what transition requirements
do you propose and why?

Are there any additional transition issues the Boards should consider? If yes, what are they and why?



FinREC is supportive of the board’s proposed transition provisions overall, but believes that
additional improvement is possible. Specifically, we believe that the board should consider
additional practical expedients to ease the transition burden for nonpublic entities and to address
differences in transition under the revenue recognition standard and those in the ED. Lessors in
particular may have to evaluate the same contract twice — once in connection with the adoption of
the revenue recognition standard and again with respect to leasing. Depending on the board’s
response to our recommendation with respect to the income statement, we believe that the board
should consider whether lessees and lessors should be permitted to adopt the proposals in the leases
ED using a simplified approach as defined in paragraph 133 of the Proposed Accounting Standards
Update on Revenue Recognition and the “modified approach that was decided on in February 2013.

Under the “modified approach” an entity would recognize “the cumulative effect of initially applying
the revenue standard as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in the year of
initial application (that is, comparative years would not be restated).” The standard would apply to
new contracts created on or after the effective date and to existing contracts as of the effective date
but would not apply to contracts that were completed before the effective date.

In the year of adoption, entities would also be required to disclose the financial statement line items
that have been directly affected by the standard’s application.

FinREC believes a similar model would mitigate some of the concerns expressed by lessors and
likely reduce the population of leases that a preparer must consider. We believe that the simplified
approach should be an option, and that the full and modified retrospective approach should also be
retained. Whichever method is chosen, focus should be around good disclosure around
noncomparable transactions (e.g., real estate sale-leaseback arrangements).

In addition, with respect to current transition options, we believe that the board should clarify
certain aspects of transition. For example, although the board has indicated that hindsight can be
used in evaluating lease arrangements, it is unclear whether this will be applied by asset class, to all
arrangements, or to specific subsets (e.g., to all leases where the preparer is a lessor). Companies
have a variety of assets under lease and are often a lessor even when this is not their core activity.
Providing greater insight into how to apply these practical expedients would be helpful.

The ED contains very limited guidance with respect to certain aspects of leasing (e.g., leveraged
lease accounting, how to transition capital leases arising solely as a result of problematic default
provisions). This gap in guidance is likely to create diversity in practice — particularly when
considered along with other gaps such as the issue with hindsight mentioned above. In addition, we
would ask to board to consider whether to —

Stipulate that previous sale conclusions for all sale-leaseback transactions need not be●

reconsidered;
Stipulate, solely for transition purposes with respect to sale-leaseback transactions, that ownership●

by an entity may be deemed to occur when title transfers, not when the entity has executed a
purchase order or assigned a purchase order to another party in an agreement that contains
provisions exposing the entity to constructive risks of asset ownership (e.g., an indemnification of
the assignee);
Permit lessees and lessors to apply the discount rate used to classify and account for a lease under●

existing GAAP (i.e., the discount rate determined at lease inception) except in cases where
incentives would affect the lease term;
Permit or require lessors applying the discount rate determined at lease inception under existing●

GAAP to measure the residual asset for leases classified as Type A leases at the present value of
the estimated future residual value at lease inception under existing GAAP accreted to the date of



initial application;
Permit lessors to apply a discount rate determined using information at the beginning of the●

earliest comparative period presented when the residual asset is measured using information as of
that date;
Clarify whether any of the specified transition reliefs are available to entities that elect full●

retrospective application; and
Clarify how an entity applying the modified retrospective transition approach would determine the●

classification of a preexisting lease upon adoption of the proposed requirements.

We would also like the board to consider whether additional guidance should be provided with
respect to —

How a lessor should reflect assets it acquired in a sale-leaseback that contains a lessee purchase●

option.
Whether the transition rate should be set at the effective date rather than the implementation date.●

How to evaluate arrangements in which a leased asset is under construction and the lessee is●

considered the owner of that asset at the transition date. Is derecognition in transition
appropriate? Will this require consideration of sale-leaseback accounting? In cases where the
lessee has a purchase option, does the application of sale-leaseback accounting affect presentation
of the arrangement by the lessor?

Question 8: Disclosure

The ED sets out the disclosure requirements for a lessee and a lessor. Those proposals include
maturity analyses of undiscounted lease payments, reconciliations of amounts recognized in the
statement of financial position, and narrative disclosures about leases (including information about
variable lease payments and options). Do you agree with those proposals? Why or why not? If not,
what changes do you propose and why?

FinREC believes the board’s proposals with respect to disclosure would impose a significant burden
for both public and nonpublic entities and contain elements that affect the utility for financial
statement users. Although additional information may aid users, the depth and scale is significant,
and the associated costs must be considered as well. It is also important to consider whether the
scale of disclosure is consistent with the notion that the recognition of an asset and liability is of
paramount importance to users.

The proposed disclosure requirements appear to be excessive in many respects given the extra
visibility lease assets and obligations are proposed to have in the basic financial statements, but
appear to be inadequate in relation to variable lease payments (see last point below).

Although the proposals would allow entities to consider the extent of detail provided, the board has
not provided sufficient guidance about how to determine the appropriate level of aggregation in the
disclosures.

Finally, we believe that the board should consider whether to require disclosure by lessees and
lessors of aggregate undiscounted estimated variable lease payments (other than those based on an
index or rate) on an annual basis for a minimum period of five years from the balance sheet date,
and a comparison of actual variable lease payments with estimated variable lease payments for each
comparative period presented. The board should not require discounting or require disclosure
beyond a reasonable estimate to avoid the false precision such disclosures may suggest. This, along
with the limit to the periods required to be disclosed, should ease preparers’ concerns with respect
to the cost and effort of preparing these disclosures while providing users with valuable incremental



information. Under proposals in the ED, the only data provided on variable payments will be
historical, and that limits its utility to users.

Question 9: Nonpublic Entities

Will the specified reliefs [in the ED] for nonpublic entities help reduce the cost of implementing the
new lease accounting requirements without unduly sacrificing information necessary for users of
their financial statements? If not, what changes do you propose and why?

FinREC is supportive of including relief for nonpublic entities to help reduce the cost of
implementing the proposals in the ED. However, we do not support the proposal to permit a policy
election to use a risk-free discount rate to measure the lease liability. We observe that a risk-free
rate would almost certainly not be the rate that the lessor charges the lessee and, therefore, would
almost certainly result in an inaccurate measurement. We would favor proposals to allow the lessee
to apply a best estimates approach to determining the incremental borrowing rate when the implicit
rate is not known.

We also noted the board’s proposal for an exception to the requirement that a lessee provide a
reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of the liabilities to make lease payments. The
basis for this exemption is the fact that users of nonpublic entities’ financial statements generally
have greater ability to directly access management and to obtain additional information beyond
what is included in financial statements; as a result, the benefits of preparing this information do not
outweigh the cost. FinREC does not object to this exemption, but requests that the board consider
whether it should be extended to entities that sublease property as an ancillary activity.

We recommend that the board allow private companies the option of deferring the effective date for
one or two years after the effective date for public companies. We believe it is appropriate to allow
private companies more time to put in place the necessary systems and processes to apply the
guidance and also capitalize on the experience of public companies.

Question 10: Related Party Leases

Do you agree that it is not necessary to provide different recognition and measurement
requirements for related party leases? If not, what different recognition and measurement
requirements do you propose and why?

Transactions between related parties carry with them the inherent risk that contractual terms are
not consistent with those that would be available between unrelated parties operating on an arm’s-
length basis and may result in lease payments or other contractual terms geared to achieve financial
reporting objectives or to permit use of property or nonproperty without an explicit contractual
arrangement. However, this risk is not unique to leasing transactions and FinREC agrees with the
board that the costs associated with adjusting contractual arrangements to reflect their economic
substance does exceed the expected benefit. FinREC believes the appropriate response to this risk is
disclosure of the relevant terms and conditions. Such disclosure permits financial statement users to
evaluate the arrangement and determine what adjustments, if any, may be appropriate.

Question 11: Related Party Leases

Do you agree that it is not necessary to provide additional disclosures for related party leases? If
not, what additional disclosure requirements would you propose and why?

As discussed on our response to question 10, we do not believe that it is appropriate to provide
different recognition and measurement requirements for related party leases. However, we believe



that the board should consider what additional disclosures may be relevant to financial statement
users. FinREC believes that it may be helpful to specifically require management to explain the basis
for establishing the terms of its related party leases and, in cases in which the asset is leased from a
third party, disclose the terms of the associated head lease.

Moody's: Charter Schools Pose Growing Risks for Urban Public Schools.

The dramatic rise in charter school enrollments in the US is likely to create negative credit pressure
on school districts in economically weak urban areas. Charter schools tend to proliferate in areas
showing economic and demographic stress, and they can pull students and revenues away from
districts faster than the districts can reduce their cost.

Press Release:

https://www.moodys.com/research/Moodys-Charter-schools-pose-greatest-credit-challenge-t-
-school-districts–PR_284505

Purchase the Full Report:

https://www.moodys.com/MdcAccessDeniedCh.aspx?lang=en&cy=global&Source=https%3a%2f%2f
www.moodys.com%2fviewresearchdoc.aspx%3fdocid%3dPBM_PBM158801%26lang%3den%26cy%3
dglobal

GFOA: 18th Annual Governmental GAAP Update.

Live-streaming event

November 7, 2013 – 1:00–5:00 p.m. Eastern

Encore Presentation: December 5, 2013, 1:00-5:00 p.m. Eastern (Register by November 1 and save)

The agenda is available at:

http://www.gfoa.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=2844

For more information, go to:

http://www.gfoa.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=2818

GFOA Executive Board Approves 14 Best Practices.

On October 4, 2013,  the GFOA’s Executive Board approved 14 best practices – eight new and six
revised – on topics from managing health-care costs to pension funding policy. Additional
information about these best practices is available here:

http://www.gfoa.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=2840
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Debt-Ceiling Alarm Freezes Market With Least Supply: Muni Credit.

Municipalities are borrowing at the slowest pace in more than two years, showing how the partial
federal shutdown and prospect of a U.S. default are dissuading localities from taking on financing
for new projects.

Cities and states are offering $4.3 billion of bonds this week after $3.7 billion last week, when the
U.S. government shutdown began, data compiled by Bloomberg show. Excluding holidays, it’s the
skimpiest stretch of financing since May 2011, even as benchmark muni-bond yields have fallen from
a two-year high.

Enlarge image

San Francisco and a school district in Utah are among issuers that may shift sales scheduled for Oct.
17, the day U.S. borrowing authority lapses. Photographer: David Paul Morris/Bloomberg

As the political stalemate persists, supply may dwindle further. San Francisco and a school district in
Utah are among issuers that may shift sales scheduled for Oct. 17, the day U.S. borrowing authority
lapses. The ebbing tide of new bonds is echoed in diminished trading: Volatility on benchmark 10-
year muni yields has dropped close to a 10-month low.

“Without new issues to give a little bit of price discovery, offers are drying up, bids are getting quiet,
and when you add in the politics, the shutdown and the debt ceiling, it seems like people are sitting
on their hands,” said Dan Toboja, vice president of muni trading at Ziegler Capital Markets in
Chicago. “I would almost call it complete malaise.”

Already Down

The federal gridlock is exacerbating a drop in local financings as interest rates have risen from
generational lows seen in December. Cities and states have issued $233 billion of fixed-rate long-
term debt through Oct. 4, down 15 percent from the same period last year, data compiled by
Bloomberg show.

Municipalities planning their financing amid the standoff in Washington have to consider the
potential impact on market interest rates and the economy. The Treasury Department has said any
U.S. default from failing to raise the $16.7 trillion federal debt limit could have catastrophic
consequences that might last decades.

The Sevier County School District in Utah, with about 4,500 students, has a $36 million bond sale set
for Oct. 17. Proceeds from the competitive deal will go toward building a high school. Patrick
Wilson, the district’s business administrator, said he has talked with his financial adviser about
possibly changing the date.

“I have a little bit of concern” about selling the day of the debt-ceiling deadline, he said in an
interview. “The market could be pretty wild.”

Volatility Vanquished

The federal government’s first partial shutdown in 17 years began Oct. 1, halting a rebound in the
municipal market fueled by the Federal Reserve’s surprise decision in September to maintain the
pace of its monthly bond buying.

https://bondcasebriefs.com/2013/10/15/finance-and-accounting/debt-ceiling-alarm-freezes-market-with-least-supply-muni-credit/


Ten-year benchmark muni yields have barely budged over the past two weeks, fluctuating just 0.02
percentage point, Bloomberg data show. Volatility has tumbled, deadening the market swings that
generate trading opportunities. For 10-year yields, 60-day volatility is close to the lowest since
December, data compiled by Bloomberg show.

A stable muni market is uncommon in October. Benchmark 10-year muni yields have jumped about
0.24 percentage point on average in the month since 2009, Bloomberg data show.

“The market is quiet right now, and that’s pretty rare, especially in October,” Toboja said.

Investing Antipathy

The federal government shutdown has slowed other fixed-income markets too. Corporate bond sales
in the U.S. have dropped to $15.2 billion this month from $48.1 billion in the year-earlier period,
according to Bloomberg data.

“Underwriters are very hesitant to advise issuers to come to market during somewhat unsettled
times,” said Bart Mosley, co-president of Trident Municipal Research in New York. The shutdown
and debt-ceiling debate are “keeping investors from feeling like they have to take action, which has
led to subdued activity.”

San Francisco plans to sell about $37 million of tax-exempt bonds in a competitive deal Oct. 17 to
pay for work at ports, including a cruise-ship terminal, and refinance commercial paper issued to
move the project along.

The city has until 1 p.m. local time the day before the sale to postpone, said Nadia Sesay, director of
the city controller’s office of public finance.

As Advertised

“We have advertised for a sale on the 17th and we’re hoping we can keep it, but we’re going to
continue to monitor the market and see what’s happening with the debt ceiling,” Sesay said in an
interview.

Cicero, an Indiana town of about 4,800 residents, has a $2.4 million sewer-revenue bond deal set for
Oct. 17. Deen Rogers at H.J. Umbaugh & Associates, the town’s financial adviser, said officials have
flexibility to shift the sale if necessary because of the debt-ceiling debate.

Stephen DeGroat, finance commissioner of Rockland County north of New York, said he’s concerned
that its $34 million general-obligation issue is scheduled for Oct. 17. He said he plans to call the
county’s financial advisers and is open to moving the date.

In 2011, Republicans and Democrats reached a deal to raise the borrowing limit ahead of an Aug. 2
deadline and avoid default. Similar to this month’s reduced volatility, 10-year benchmark muni yields
were unchanged that year from the end of June to the end of July, Bloomberg data show.

Offsetting Interests

“Sellers are saying maybe the market will tighten up if we pass the debt ceiling,” Toboja said.
“Buyers are saying if we get any kind of supply, the market is going to cheapen up. The end result is
you’ve got nobody doing anything.”

Deals in the municipal market this week include a $563 million general-obligation sale from



Wisconsin.

The state is issuing with top-rated 10-year munis yielding 2.72 percent, close to the lowest since
June. The interest rate compares with 2.66 percent for similar-maturity Treasuries.

The ratio of the yields, a gauge of relative value, is about 102 percent, compared with an average of
93 percent since 2001. The higher the figure, the cheaper munis are compared with federal
securities.

GASB Fact Sheet on Statement 34.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has begun research reexamining the standards
related to the financial reporting model for state and local governments – most notably, Statement
No. 34, Basic Financial Analysis – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local
Governments.

The Fact Sheet is available at:

http://www.gasb.org/cs/ContentServer?c=Document_C&pagename=GASB%2FDocument_C%2FGAS
BDocumentPage&cid=1176163449012

NFMA: Introduction to Municipal Bond Credit Analysis.

Philadelphia on November 7 & 8 at Le Meridien.

To view the Program, click here:

http://www.nfma.org/assets/documents/education/intro13/intro.program.short.2013.pdf

To Register, click here:

https://nfma.memberclicks.net/index.php?option=com_mc&view=formlogin&form=149678&return=
L2luZGV4LnBocD9vcHRpb249Y29tX21jJnZpZXc9bWMmbWNpZD1mb3JtXzE0OTY3OD9zZXJ2SWQ9
MjcyNiZvcHRpb249Y29tX21jJnZpZXc9bWMmbWNpZD1mb3JtXzE0OTY3OA==

SEC Exempts Accountants from Municipal Advisor Registration.

The US Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) last month adopted rules establishing a
permanent registration regime for municipal advisors as required by the Dodd-Frank Act; however,
an accountant who provides audit or other attestation services will not have to register as a
municipal advisor.

The new rule approved by the SEC on September 18 requires a municipal advisor to permanently
register with the SEC if the advisor provides advice on the issuance of municipal securities or about
certain “investment strategies” or municipal derivatives.
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State and local governments that issue municipal bonds frequently rely on advisors to help them
decide how and when to issue the securities and how to invest proceeds from the sales. These
advisors receive fees for the services they provide.

Prior to the passage of the Dodd-Frank Act in 2010, municipal advisors were not required to register
with the SEC like other market intermediaries. According to the SEC, this left many municipalities
relying on advice from unregulated advisors, and they were often unaware of any conflicts of
interest a municipal advisor may have had.

After the Dodd-Frank Act became law, the SEC established a temporary registration regime, and
more than 1,100 municipal advisors have since registered with the SEC.

While the SEC’s definition of municipal advisor in the original proposed rule would not have
required accountants who perform audits of financial statements to register, the rule would have
encompassed accountants who perform other audit and attestation services, according to Barry
Melancon, CPA, CGMA, president and CEO of the American Institute of CPAs (AICPA).

The final SEC rule states accountants do not have to register as municipal advisors if they provide
accounting services that include audit or other attest services, preparation of financial statements,
or issuance of letters for underwriters.

“Accountants providing audit and attestation services are already subject to layers of regulation that
are intended to protect investors,” Melancon said in a written statement on September 27. “We are
pleased that the SEC expanded the accountant exemption to include audit and attestation
engagements, preparation of financial statements, and the issuance of letters for underwriters. We
commend the SEC for its flexibility on this issue.”

WSJ: Muni Bond Issuers Slow to Report Finances, Study Shows.

State and local governments are still slow to provide investors with reports on their fiscal health
despite a push by municipal bond investors and regulators to get municipalities to improve their
disclosures.

It took almost six months after the end of their fiscal year for state and local governments to
complete their audited financial statements, about two months longer than the time frame regulators
suggest, a Merritt Research Services study said.

After looking at more than 8,000 fiscal 2012 audit reports from municipal bond issuers received by
August 30, Merritt found that states, counties and cities were among the slowest groups to complete
their audits, taking an average of 174 days, 172 days and 171 days respectively from the end of their
fiscal year.

In the wake of Detroit’s record-setting municipal bankruptcy and amid growing concerns about the
fiscal health of Puerto Rico, delayed financial filings are an increasing frustration for municipal bond
investors. Puerto Rico, whose bonds have traded recently at yields as high as 10%, just filed its 2012
audit this month, more than a year after the close of that fiscal year and about four months after it
was promised to investors.

“The ones that are coming in so late are often the ones we really want to see,” said Richard
Ciccarone, Merritt’s president and chief executive. “It creates a problem for bondholders.”

https://bondcasebriefs.com/2013/10/01/finance-and-accounting/wsj-muni-bond-issuers-slow-to-report-finances-study-shows/


Private universities, hospitals and wholesale electric utilities were among the fastest groups to
complete their audits, with median times of 113 days, 109 days and 95 days respectively, Merritt
said.

Merritt measured the days it took an issuer to complete an audit by counting the time between a
municipality’s fiscal year-end and the date an auditor signed off on its financial report. The median
audit time for all 15 municipal bond sectors Merritt studied for fiscal 2012 was 139 days.

Regulators, such as the Securities and Exchange Commission, have encouraged, but not required,
municipalities to file their financial audits within 120 days after the close of their fiscal year, but
there is no punishment when they don’t comply, Mr. Ciccarone said. The SEC only has the power to
go after municipalities in cases of fraud.

For 2012, only about 8% of the cities and counties and roughly 6% of states came within the SEC’s
recommended 120-day time threshold, according to Merritt data. About 1% of cities and about 2%
counties had their audit done within 90 days. No states filed their audits within 90 days, Merritt data
showed.

The SEC requires publicly traded companies to file their audited financials in a 60 to 90 day time
frame.

Indeed, there is some evidence that the more fiscally stressed a local government is, the longer it
takes that government to complete its audited financials, Mr. Ciccarone said.

Audited 2012 financials haven’t been received from Stockton and San Bernardino, two California
cities currently in municipal bankruptcy. Those cities took 506 days and 517 days, respectively, to
complete their fiscal 2011 audits, Merritt data showed.

Likewise, Harrisburg–Pennsylvania’s state capital that has flirted with bankruptcy thanks to a debt
load from a failed trash incinerator project–took 496 days to turn in its fiscal 2011 audit and hasn’t
completed its fiscal 2012 audit, according to Merritt’s data.

For fiscal 2011, the median audit reporting time for all municipal sectors Merritt studied was 146
days, the same as fiscal 2010.

GFOA: 18th Annual Governmental GAAP Update.

Encore Presentation: December 5, 2013, 1:00-5:00 p.m. Eastern (Register by November 1 and save)

Earn 4 CPE credits with your participation

Brochure: http://gfoa.org/downloads/GFOATrainingGAAPFlyer2013.pdf

Registration form: http://gfoa.org/downloads/GFOA2013GAAPRegistrationForm.pdf

Register online:

http://www.estoregfoa.org/Source/Meetings/cMeetingFunctionDetail.cfm?PRODUCT_MAJOR=GAAP
13&FUNCTIONSTARTDISPLAYROW=1
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MuniNetGuide: Does Muni Bond Credit Quality Impact Annual Audit Times?

Increased attention on local government fiscal stress and Chapter 9 bankruptcy filings has
heightened concerns over municipal bond credit quality in wider circles than ever before.  But while
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) requires certain issuers of corporate bonds to file
annual audited financial statements within 60 to 90 days after the close of their fiscal year, no such
regulatory standards are currently in place for municipal borrowers.

“The SEC charges against the City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, which included implications that its
financial information was outdated and incomplete, might be considered ’a shot across the bow’ for
municipal issuers with a tendency to take their time in releasing secondary market disclosure
materials.”

In its third annual study of audit completion times, entitled “Focus on Credit Quality Puts Sharper
Spotlight on Municipal Bond Audit Times,” Merritt Research Services found that states, counties,
and cities continue to complete their annual financial audits nearly six months after the end of their
fiscal year.  Audit time – calculated as the time between the close of the fiscal year and the date of
the signature on the audit letter – for several municipal credit sectors showed a slight improvement
over the year before, but “on the whole, municipal bond audits continue to substantially lag the
completion time for issuers of corporate bonds.”

The expectation for faster audit preparation by municipal borrowers may be on the horizon,
according to Richard Ciccarone, President and Chief Executive Officer of Merritt Research Services.

While the Tower Amendment prevents direct regulation of state and local borrowers by the SEC, it
still has authorization over dealer requirements setting forth underwriting standards for
documentation.  The SEC charges against the City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, which included
implications that its financial information was outdated and incomplete, might be considered ’a shot
across the bow’ for municipal issuers with a tendency to take their time in releasing secondary
market disclosure materials, Ciccarone said.

This year’s Merritt audit timing study revealed that governmental bodies that issue general
obligation (G.O.) bonds are generally slower to turn in their audits than those that issue revenue
bonds.  The median audit time for States and Territories, which have more complicated
governmental structures and financial ledgers, was 174 days in 2012.  While the audit time for this
sector was an improvement over last year, it remains far beyond the regulators’ 120-day
recommendation.

Other highlights from this year’s Merritt audit timing study:

The Wholesale Electric Public Power sector had the shortest median audit time of 95 days,●

continuing its six-year run as the fastest sector to complete its audits.
The Hospital and Private Higher Education sectors took second and third place honors,●

respectively.
The median audit time for Cities and Counties was slightly better than for States, but still well●

above the median across all sectors.
Size was not a consistent factor in determining the length of time for an issuer to complete its●

annual audit after the close of its fiscal year. In fact, Rapid River Public Schools, Michigan, one of
the smallest school districts in the study, completed its audit in a mere 18 days after the end of its
fiscal year. The district has completed its annual audit in less than 60 days in each of the last six

https://bondcasebriefs.com/2013/10/01/finance-and-accounting/does-muni-bond-credit-quality-impact-annual-audit-times/


years.
Credit quality did appear to have an effect on audit timing in some sectors, including Cities,●

Counties, Hospitals, Airports, and to some extent, States. Merritt found a correlation between
financial trends and audit completion times, particularly in these sectors.

MuniNetGuide.com

James Spiotto

Richard Ciccarone

Mardee Handler

NFMA Board of Governors endorses the Voluntary Interim Financial
Reporting: Best Practices for State Governments.

The NFMA Board of Governors endorsed the “Voluntary Interim Financial Reporting: Best Practices
for State Governments” approved by the National Association of State Auditors, Comptrollers and
Treasurers (NASACT) in August.

See the press release here:

http://www.nfma.org/assets/documents/position.stmt/pr.nasact.best.practices.9.13.pdf
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Group spreadsheet template:

http://gfoa.org/downloads/GFOAGAAPUpdateExcelFormNOV.xlsx

Internal Auditors Society Annual Conference.

November 3-6, 2013 – Delray Beach Marriott, FL

The 2013 Internal Auditors Society (IAS) Annual Conference brings together financial services audit
professionals, industry experts and regulators to share insights and experiences on:

Enhancing the value of Internal Audit to the organization●

Partnering with the second line of defense●

Regulatory updates and their impact on Internal Audit●

Auditing emerging risks and threats●

Using data mining and analytics to discern actionable information from noise●

Join us November 3-6 to network with internal audit, risk and compliance colleagues, and industry
regulators, to discuss the future of Internal Audit, and to learn how a strong Internal Audit function
can lead to better business results.

Conference attendees will be eligible for 15 hours of CPE credit.

Register at:

https://mbrservices.net/ConferenceRegistration/MeetingRegistration.aspx?meetingid=1152

ELFA Opposes Lease Accounting Proposal In Comment Letter To Accounting
Standards Boards.

Washington, D.C., Sept. 10, 2013 — The Equipment Leasing and Finance Association (ELFA) raised
serious concerns today that a revised proposal to change lease accounting rules would increase the
cost and complexity of lease accounting without significantly improving the quality and relevance of
financial statements. In a letter to the Financial Accounting Standards Board and the International
Accounting Standards Board (the Boards) on the second Exposure Draft of the proposed standard,
ELFA concluded that it could not support the issuance of a final standard based on the revised
proposal.

The letter is available at: www.elfaonline.org/Issues/Accounting/pdfs/ELFACmntLtr_091013.pdf.

“Leases account for hundreds of billions of dollars in equipment acquisition annually, contributing
not only to businesses’ success, but also to U.S. economic growth, manufacturing and jobs,” said
William G. Sutton, CAE, ELFA President and CEO. “The primary reasons to lease equipment will
remain intact despite the lease accounting proposal. However, it is essential that the standards
setters carefully consider comprehensive public input during their re-deliberation period to ensure
that if, indeed, a new standard is warranted, it does not harm American businesses and the U.S.
economy. We call on the Boards to seriously examine the views and alternatives suggested by our
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comment letter as well as other comment letters and feedback they receive.”

ELFA’s comment letter argues that the proposed lease accounting rules are unnecessarily complex,
create a significant compliance burden for lessees and lessors, and replace sound lessor accounting
models with untried approaches that do not reflect the economics of the transaction. The letter
cautions that financial reporting by both lessees and lessors will be less transparent and more
difficult to understand under the proposal.

The letter highlights significant concerns, including the following:

The proposed new lessor accounting model is not based on user needs; rather, it reflects an●

attempt to make lessor and lessee accounting symmetrical without regard to lessor business
models.
The proposed changes to lease accounting present compliance costs and unintended consequences●

for small- and mid-sized businesses that are unacceptable.
The new lease classification approach changes the lessee expense recognition pattern for●

equipment transactions (vs. property leases) from straight-line to front-loaded, which is
inconsistent with the economics of the transaction.
The proposal will have a negative impact on the economy at large by increasing the cost of capital.●

More Information

For more information about the Lease Accounting Project, visit the ELFA website at
http://www.elfaonline.org/ind/topics/Acctg/.  To schedule an interview with an ELFA expert on the
lease accounting project, please contact Amy Vogtat 202-238-3438 or avogt@elfaonline.org.

About ELFA

The Equipment Leasing and Finance Association (ELFA) is the trade association that represents
companies in the $725 billion equipment finance sector, which includes financial services companies
and manufacturers engaged in financing capital goods. ELFA members are the driving force behind
the growth in the commercial equipment finance market and contribute to capital formation in the
U.S. and abroad. Its 580 members include independent and captive leasing and finance companies,
banks, financial services corporations, broker/packagers and investment banks, as well as
manufacturers and service providers. For more information, please visit www.elfaonline.org.

September 10, 2013

Mr. Russell Golden, Chairman

Financial Accounting Standards Board

401 Merritt 7

PO Box 5116

Norwalk, CT 06856

————–

Mr. Hans Hoogervorst, Chairman

International Accounting Standards Board

http://www.elfaonline.org/ind/topics/Acctg/
mailto:avogt@elfaonline.org
http://www.elfaonline.org


30 Cannon Street

London EC4M 6XH

United Kingdom

Submitted via electronic mail to director@fasb.org

Re: File Reference No 2013-270, Exposure Draft: Leases (Topic 842): a revision of the 2010
proposed FASB Accounting Standards Update, Leases (Topic 840)

Dear Chairman Golden and Chairman Hoogervorst:

The Equipment Leasing and Finance Association (ELFA) welcomes the opportunity to respond to the
request for comments from the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) (collectively, the Boards) on the proposal contained in the FASB
Exposure Draft (ED), Proposed Accounting Standards Update: Leases (Topic 842).

The Equipment Leasing and Finance Association (ELFA) is the trade association representing over
580 financial services companies and manufacturers in the $725 billion U.S. equipment finance
sector. ELFA members are the driving force behind the growth in the commercial equipment leasing
and finance market and contribute to capital formation in the U.S. and abroad. Overall, business
investment in equipment and software accounts for 8.0 percent of the nation’s GDP; the commercial
equipment finance sector contributes about 4.5 percent to the GDP. For more information, please
visit http://www.elfaonline.org.

In addition to our summary comments, below, we have included in an attachment our detailed
answers to the ED’s Questions for Respondents.

Equipment Leasing and Finance Industry

All types of companies lease and finance equipment, but leasing is an especially significant source of
financing of operating assets for small- and medium-sized (SME) companies and large non-
investment grade (NIG) businesses. The SME sector is cited as the largest potential source of the job
growth needed to reinvigorate the economy worldwide. Access to capital and efficient use of
equipment are the major drivers for leasing, as opposed to achieving off balance sheet treatment
through operating lease accounting. Based on the ELFA annual Survey of Equipment Finance
Activity, we estimate that over 16 million equipment lease contracts are executed each year in the
United States. Further, we estimate that approximately 14 million of those leases are with SME and
NIG lessees. Many of those leases involve multiple assets that are included in one lease schedule.
While the number of transactions is indeed large, the dollar value of individual transactions is small
reflecting the nature of the items being leased. These items include various types of office and
materials handling equipment, for example. As a result, the ED’s complexity is a major concern.
Therefore, in addition to our views on the technical merits of the proposal, much of our commentary
will focus on the complexity and compliance costs associated with the proposals and the areas where
the ED fails to improve the decision-usefulness of financial statements.

In addition to being lessors, our members are also users of financial statements. When determining
whether to enter into a lease contract with a lessee, our member organizations analyze the ability of
the lessee to meet its financial obligations according to the contractual schedule. Because SMEs and
NIG companies are more prone to bankruptcy than larger investment grade organizations, our
members are also concerned with bankruptcy risk, requiring information about which assets and
liabilities survive bankruptcy. In making the decision to lease an asset to a lessee, lessors rely on the
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lessee’s financial statements and, in their pricing, generally model the financial statement effects of
the proposed lease investment on future periods. After lease origination, they place significant
reliance on the lessee’s financial statements in reassessing credit worthiness and in monitoring
compliance with covenants. Accordingly, our comments involve the decision-usefulness of the
proposed new accounting for leases from the perspective of both preparer and user.

Economic Nature of Equipment Leases

Leases are a legal construct recognized as distinctly different in their characteristics from secured
loans for the purpose of broadening access to asset-based capital. The nature and extent of the
defining characteristics of a lease contract vary considerably from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. These
jurisdictional differences principally arise from differences in jurisprudence (i.e., whether substance-
or form-based), in the economic environment (i.e., private or government sector centric or hybrids,
the presence or absence of active secondary asset markets), and the income tax system (i.e., the
significance of available government incentives tied to certain asset acquisitions and permitted
transfers or sharing of such incentives between the user and the investor). U.S. equipment leases
differ markedly from leases originated in non-U.S. jurisdictions, as evidenced by existence of a
Uniform Commercial Code (UCC), an arduous process involving each of the 50 state legislatures.
The UCC draws a clear distinction in the rights and obligations of the parties involved in leases and
secured financings based on the “economic realities” of the contract (notably, whether the party
designated as lessor retains a meaningful interest in the residual value of the leased asset such that
it must look to the secondary market as a benchmark for recovery of its investment or in asset
disposition). The U.S. income tax system provides significant tax benefits for equipment and their
transferability and sharing within well-defined guidelines provided the lessor has sufficient “skin in
the game.”

True leases are not an accounting construct. The accounting for such leases under existing U.S.
GAAP generally mirrors their classification under U.S. commercial and income tax law. Today all
U.S. disciplines evaluate leases based on risks and rewards. Leases classified as capital leases are
generally classified as secured financings and subject to the same rights and obligations as
applicable to the parties to loans. Leases classified as operating leases are generally classified as
“leases” under the UCC (Article 2A) with the tax benefits arising from the lessee’s use of the
property allocated to the lessor who can economically share part of these benefits in the form of
lower rentals, but not otherwise and subject to certain constraints so that the nature of the
transactions does not constitute the sale/purchase of such benefits. Similarly, the use of the straight-
line method for rentals by lessees is commonly required under existing U.S. GAAP and the U.S.
income tax laws and is implicit in U.S. commercial law in defining leases as executory contracts.
Hence, we believe a faithful accounting of leases must distinguish between leases based on rights
and obligations of the subject jurisdiction and their economic effects.

We believe the lessee accounting model must consider the contract the unit of account and the
contract should provide the basis for the accounting for the rights and obligations arising from the
lease arrangement. Where we see a major deficiency is in failing to analyze and account for the
rights and obligations existing in a lease. We believe that a risks and rewards analysis consistently
applied to leases of all asset types identifies the basic information required to account for both
capital leases and capitalized operating leases for lessees. The balance sheet and the costs
recognized in the P&L must reflect the nature of the distinctly different types of leases to satisfy the
basic needs of preparers and credit analysts and lenders. The legal differences between leases are
significant and impact the economics of leases. They are especially important in a bankruptcy, which
is an important element of credit analysis. If the lease accounting model does not allow for
equipment operating lease assets and liabilities to be broken out and clearly labeled on the balance



sheet and if equipment operating leases are forced into a front-ended cost pattern where the asset
amortizes at a faster pace than the liability, the nature of lease liabilities will be obscured and it will
appear that the lessee has claims that exceed the value of its assets. This is not a valid depiction of
lease economics for lessees.

We realize that accounting is not a science with natural laws that can have only one outcome that
can be proven mathematically or strongly supported by empirical evidence, but in our opinion,
commercial law and its economic implications should be a factor in determining the proper
accounting for leases. It is also our opinion that there is little operating lease activity in markets
where commercial law does not establish clear property rights in lease contracts, and a converged
leasing standard need not be developed for systems that do not support leasing markets.

Summary Comments

We appreciate many of the changes made to the lease model since issuance of the first ED. We agree
that the revised definition of the lease term and lease payments represent improvements over what
was first proposed in 2010. While elements of the model in the ED before us are an improvement
over its predecessor, we remain concerned that it does not reflect the economics of many equipment
leases and will add complexity to financial reporting by both lessors and lessees alike. Since the
proposals do not reflect the economics of many lease transactions nor appear to meet the needs of
users of financial statements, we believe the significant costs associated with the proposals will
exceed the incremental benefits of the proposed model. Consequently, we do not support the
issuance of a final standard based upon this ED.

There are several paths forward for this project. The model needs to either be revised or the Boards
should pursue a disclosure-based model in place of one based on recognition and measurement.
Consistent with the corporate finance view of leasing, we believe there is a range of lease
transactions. Given this range of transactions, development of a single lease model that accurately
depicts transactions within the range is not possible. We agree that for accounting purposes, the
differences between leases are best reflected using a two-lease model; however, we strongly
disagree with the lessee classification methodology proposed in the ED. We believe that leases
should not be separated based upon the nature or type of the underlying asset, but rather on the
nature of the transaction; we believe an IAS 17 model would provide a reasonable basis for this
distinction.

The underlying basis for lessee accounting is not clear in the ED. At times the model refers to the
lease contract and at other points it refers to the underlying asset. For example, lease cost allocation
is determined by reference to the underlying asset, but initial recognition is based upon the
contract. We believe the model needs to be either grounded in the accounting for the underlying
asset or in the contract. Our suggestion to use IAS 17 as the basis for classifying leases into Types A
or B would ground lease accounting in the accounting for the underlying asset. Alternatively, the
model could be based on the contract. An example of this is the display approach, under which a
lessee would recognize a lease liability and lease asset based upon the present value of remaining
lease payments at each period end. The P&L would reflect rent expense. This is a straightforward
model that would achieve the balance sheet recognition goal of the Boards and would be cost-
effective to apply.

If the Boards are not able to develop a model that is more representationally faithful and that meets
the needs of users of financial statements, we believe a disclosure-based alternative should be
pursued. While this would not achieve the goal of recognizing lease liabilities, it would serve the
needs of users of financial statements in a cost-effective manner. Groups of financial statement users
have advised the Boards they are able to process the existing lease disclosures to make rational



investment decisions. These views are also supported in recently published academic research. In
“Evidence that Market Participants Assess Recognized and Disclosed Items Similarly When
Reliability is Not an Issue” 1, the authors note the following:

. . . The FASB or any other accounting standard-setter should not be primarily concerned that
investors and creditors will underweight or ignore altogether disclosed information that meets
sufficiently high reliability, accessibility, and interpretability thresholds.

These results support the view that creditors do not appear to price lease obligations differently
based on recognition versus disclosure.

The goal of financial reporting is to provide users with decision-useful information and it is
important that the goal be met on a cost-effective basis. These goals should not be sacrificed in
order to develop accounting constructs that, while achieving certain goals, do so at an unacceptably
high cost.

The Boards have generally expressed a preference for a recognition and measurement model over a
disclosure-based model, and some have commented that the question of recognition versus
disclosure of lease transactions is no different than the recognition debates that surrounded pension
and stock option accounting. We believe that lease accounting represents a separate and distinct set
of issues. Both pension and stock option accounting were concerned with basic recognition
questions. In stock option accounting, the question was whether any compensation expense should
be recognized at all. In pensions, it was a question of a minimum liability and how to account for
future obligations that were potentially significantly greater than current expenditures. In current
leasing standards, there is a recognition system, lease obligations that are not recorded are
disclosed, and current rent expense is closely associated with the cash flows that will occur in future
periods. Therefore, there is no relevant comparison of leasing to these other accounting debates.

Lessor Accounting

The Boards have made a number of improvements to lessor accounting over what was proposed in
the first ED. While the model is improved, we are of the opinion that lessor accounting generally
functions well under current GAAP and that a classification approach based upon the type of
underlying asset will generally not produce a presentation that will better reflect a lessor’s position
in the leased asset and lease contract. The existing classification model, which determines lessor
accounting based upon the lessor’s position with respect to the lease contract and leased asset,
produces a more faithful depiction. As the Boards move forward, it will be important that they
approach lessor and lessee accounting from different perspectives. Lessor accounting is concerned
with presenting the lessor’s position in the lease and leased asset as well as with lessor income.
Lessee accounting is concerned with the recognition of lease assets and lease obligations and with
the allocation of costs arising from a lease contract. Knowing how the lease impacts the parties is
important, but these are separate and distinct areas of concern. Therefore, symmetry is not required
and should not be a preferred outcome.

If the Boards proceed with the model proposed in the ED, we believe lessors should have the ability
to base their financial accounting presentation on their business model, as that is what users desire.
Equipment operating lessors share many of the attributes of lessors of property and therefore should
be able to use the operating lease method. Conversely, the direct finance lease method is the
preferred approach for financial lessors, whose position is generally closer to that of a creditor. The
result would be balance sheet and P&L presentations that satisfy users’ needs as they reflect the
substance of the respective lessors’ businesses.



We also believe that, similar to current GAAP, any residual guarantee or residual insurance changes
the nature of a residual from a physical asset to a financial asset, as the risk is transformed into
credit risk. This is important for securitization purposes as financial assets are typically securitized.
It would also better reflect the risks transferred when accounting for gross profit, which is inherent
in some leases. It is also an area where we believe change in the current approach is unnecessary.

Finally, there should be a place in the proposed lease model for leveraged lease accounting. It is not
appropriate to eliminate an accounting method that has been in existence for over fifty years simply
because the accounting method no longer fits into contemporary accounting thought. The netting of
lease receivables and nonrecourse debt is in line with the rules for the right of offset, as it is a three-
party agreement where the parties agree that the rent is to be paid to the lender and cash flows will
settle on that basis. Presenting rent and debt on a gross basis gives a false perception of the amount
of assets and claims that exist in a bankruptcy analysis. We also believe that the MISF yield revenue
recognition treats tax credits as revenue and recognizes that timing differences reduce the net
funded position in an investment. Consequently, revenue is recognized to match the interest cost to
fund the net investment. The leveraged lease structure may be unique to the U.S. as it has a mature
capital markets and it has a tax regime that incents investors to acquire assets via tax credits and
accelerated write-off of basis. The accounting accurately reflects the economic effects. The decision
to eliminate the structure may be useful to gain worldwide accounting convergence but it is a
setback for accounting in the U.S. and those businesses that have come to rely on its benefits. The
loss of leveraged lease accounting will increase the pricing for large value leased assets, especially
those with favorable tax attributes, such as tax credits that are designed to promote new alternative
energy projects.

Cost Versus Benefit Considerations

It is our view that, on balance, the ED does not produce true benefits to the financial reporting
system. There is some perceived benefit from the reporting of lease obligations in a lessee’s balance
sheet, but the usefulness of the recognized value is uncertain. It is difficult to describe the benefit to
users as more accurate reporting of lessee obligations when there are differences between the
accounting definition of a liability and the differing needs of investment grade debt, high-yield debt
and equity analysts. The lease obligation produced may be more precise and comparable across
companies, but it is not more accurate.

The compliance costs and unintended consequences of the proposed approach are significant. These
unacceptable costs would be significantly reduced if the core framework of current GAAP is
maintained and lease classification based upon a risks and rewards model employed for the Type
A/Type B separation. We believe there has not been an assessment of less costly alternative
approaches that would still achieve the goal of improving transparency of lessee and lessor financial
statements. Further, we do not believe that there has been an adequate assessment of the
technology costs involved in systems requirements for both lessees and lessors that involve
transition, implementation and ongoing compliance.

There are several aspects of the ED that add complexity and cost, but do not significantly improve
the lease model. First, the proposed rules for both the lessee and lessor in equipment leases must be
executed on a leased-asset by leased-asset basis. This is a major issue as it will add complexity in
implementation and ongoing compliance, especially since this is an element of the model that does
not correspond to the needs of any group of financial statement users.

In addition, many leases are routinely entered into on a sale leaseback basis for administrative
purposes; a lessee will take delivery of a series of low value assets and then convert to a sale and
leaseback. This is possible under current GAAP, but in transition, every lease will need to be



evaluated to determine if it was executed using a sale and leaseback, and every sale will need to be
reviewed. This evaluation will need to be done by the lessee and the lessor as the proposals impact
both parties in a lease. The control criteria should be revisited for sale and leaseback transactions,
and, at a minimum, existing sale and leaseback transactions should be grandfathered at transition.

Another feature of the ED that will add unacceptable costs are the new definitions and factors to
consider when assessing the term of a lease. While the Boards intent is to bring the factors to be
considered in line with existing requirements, the definition introduces new terms and concepts.
This will result in the expenditure of significant resources as the new terms are studied, analyzed,
implemented and audited. If the Boards’ intent is to maintain existing requirements, the most cost-
effective method would be simply extracting the key concepts and descriptions from existing GAAP.

The changes to lessor accounting for Type A leases is another area where changes are being
proposed that will alter the way certain leases are accounted for but not to a significant or
meaningful extent. The changes in the recognition and subsequent measurement of residuals in
what were sales-type leases in current GAAP and the manner in which income is recognized for all
Type A lease receivables and residuals represent minor changes to GAAP. In simpler terms, the
receivable and residual method is only cosmetically different than current Direct Finance Lease
accounting. The changes will, however, cause lessors to incur costs to revise systems and reporting
routines.

Finally, the provisions that require active reassessment of lease terms and certain variable lease
payments will add costs to financial reporting. The impact of these changes may not be very
significant, but they will require significant investments in systems and revisions of reporting
routines. If a simpler approach as recommended above is adopted, it would eliminate a portion of the
reassessment accounting complexity. Lessors and lessees, however, will still need to review each
and every lease contract to identify in their accounting systems the leases that require
reassessment. This process will be very time intensive, but will probably have limited impact on the
amount of liability recognized.

The Boards should also weigh the cost versus benefit analysis in direct costs, other than the systems
and process changes that will be borne by preparers. SME and NIG companies are the heaviest
users of equipment operating leases primarily because of their limited access to debt and equity
markets, the liquidity benefits of level fixed-rate payments, lower rents due to tax benefits
transferred to the lessor and the “balloon effect” on pricing due to the lessor assuming a residual
value as a cash flow. SME and NIG preparers are also higher bankruptcy risks and they are forced to
agree to debt covenants that protect lenders in a bankruptcy scenario as noted in “Debt Covenants,
Bankruptcy Risk, and Issuance Costs”, by Sattar A. Mansi, Yaxuan Qi, and John K. Wald, May 4, 2011
(https://fisher.osu.edu/blogs/efa2011/files/CFE_6_3.pdf). The impact of the ED will be to be to
require these entities to renegotiate debt covenants, as the ED does not label capitalized operating
lease obligations as a non-debt liability. This will be a potentially costly and time consuming exercise
for SMEs and NIG companies. If the lease model and classification tests are not aligned with the
legal regime (i.e., the UCC in the U.S.), lenders and credit analysts will ask SMEs and NIGs to recast
their lease assets and liabilities so that they may assess their position in a possible bankruptcy
scenario. This is not to say we are suggesting accounting for leases assuming a bankruptcy but
rather is a suggestion that the lease model should provide vital information to users just as they
have under current GAAP.

Concluding Comments

The path to revising lease accounting has been long and difficult for the Boards. Leasing is a
complex activity and the range of lease transactions, as noted in the corporate finance literature, is
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quite extensive. Leasing can range from transactions that are debt-like to transactions that are more
equity-service oriented. Development of one model for all lease transactions is not practical as any
model that fits one end of the spectrum will not be faithful to transactions at the other end.

We are concerned with many of the elements of the proposed lessee and lessor accounting models,
as they will unnecessarily increase the cost and complexity of lease accounting without significantly
improving the quality and relevance of financial statements. In some cases, we believe the quality of
the information presented will be impaired and the relevance of the financial statements reduced. A
lessee model that considers all equipment leases to be the equivalent to the purchase of an asset and
the separate incurrence of debt is not a valid accounting model and is not grounded in the
economics of leasing. We therefore cannot support the lease accounting model presented in the ED.

The lease asset and lease liability related to operating leases exist together and they should not be
subject to separate and distinct accounting after lease commencement, as if they were in fact
separate transactions. The accelerated cost recognition that results from the separate accounting for
the lease asset and lease liability under Type A accounting should not be accepted as a natural
consequence of the right of use model. Leases are not simply the seller financing of an asset sale.
Inherently, leases involve the separation of use and ownership. Accordingly, lessee accounting
should allocate the total consideration based on usage while lessor accounting should faithfully
portray the economics of the investment, including, when significant, the tax risks or rewards arising
from the underlying.

The lease accounting model does not have to be as complex as it appears in the ED. The Boards
could have met their primary objective, the capitalization of lease liabilities, using a simpler
approach to lessee accounting. This would have entailed amending IAS 17, Leases, and ASC Topic
840 to capitalize leases with a lease term greater than one year by merely putting an accurate value
on the balance sheet and by revising the approach to allocating lease costs. Alternatively, the Boards
could adopt a display only model for lessees that is different from the recognition and measurement
approach pursued to date. A display model would have lessees present value their lease obligations
and record the resulting liability and asset at the end of each period, with rent expense reflected in
the P&L. Either of these approaches would achieve the Boards objective of having lessees
recognizing a lease asset and lease obligation without the aspects of the approach in the ED that will
cause preparers and users the greatest difficulty.

As the Boards consider the leasing model during redeliberations, we think revisiting the American
Accounting Association’s (“AAA”) comments on the G4+1 leasing paper [Exhibit A] is appropriate. In
its paper, the AAA observed:

The nature of the property under lease should not affect the accounting, nor should the length of the
lease.

The approach to leases should recognize that accounting for leases is a special case of accounting
for contracts.

The approach should require that substantially similar lease contracts be accounted for similarly and
substantially dissimilar lease contracts not be forced into a misleading appearance of comparability.

The goal for lease accounting is to represent the value of the rights and obligations conveyed by the
lease, not the value of the physical assets, unless there is no material difference between the value
of the physical assets and the value of the rights and obligations.

These comments were valid when they were written more than 10 years ago, and they still resonate



today.

In addition, there are a number of elements in Mr. Linsmeier’s alternative view that merit further
consideration. In particular he observes that:

Users will not have the information they require regarding leasing activities or the information●

with which to derive the information they need,
Leases that transfer ownership rights based on IAS 17 classification criteria should be scoped out●

of the proposed standard and they should be treated as a financed purchase,
The ROU asset is a unique asset and subsequent accounting should not be defined by reference to●

other accounting literature,
Type B accounting should be used as it supports the view that the contract as a whole is the unit of●

account that should be the basis for lease accounting, and
There should not be symmetry between lessor and lessee accounting.●

We respectfully suggest the Boards consider these thoughts as it re-deliberates the ED.

We certainly appreciate the opportunity to comment on the ED, and we also thank the Boards for
their policy of open communications during the standards-setting process. We remain available to
help in any way needed, and we are committed to assisting in the creation of a workable lease
accounting standard that reflects the economic substance of transactions and improves the clarity in
financial reporting.

Sincerely,

William G. Sutton, CAE

President and CEO

Attachment — Questions for Respondents

Exhibit A

* * * * *

Attachment

Questions for Respondents

ED Questions and Answers:

Question 1: Identifying a Lease

This revised Exposure Draft defines a lease as a contract that conveys the right to use an asset (the
underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. An entity would determine
whether a contract contains a lease by assessing whether:

1. Fulfillment of the contract depends on the use of an identified asset.

2. The contract conveys the right to control the use of the identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

A contract conveys the right to control the use of an asset if the customer has the ability to direct
the use and receive the benefits from use of the identified asset.



Do you agree with the definition of a lease and the proposed requirements in paragraphs 842-10--
5-2 through 15-16 for how an entity would determine whether a contract contains a lease? Why or
why not? If not, how would you define a lease? Please supply specific fact patterns, if any, to which
you think the proposed definition of a lease is difficult to apply or leads to a conclusion that does not
reflect the economics of the transaction.

Response

We generally agree with the definitions, but we also believe the Boards could simplify the proposals
if they were to exclude transactions that are not leases that transfer a right of use. This would lead
to leases that transfer ownership being accounted for under other areas of GAAP and would free the
lease model from the perceived need to account for some lease transactions as if they were
purchases with financing.

While we agree with the proposed basis for separating leases from service transactions, we believe
the definitions require further field testing to determine if they work as intended and that there are
no significant unintended consequences.

Question 2: Lessee Accounting

Do you agree that the recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows
arising from a lease should differ for different leases, depending on whether the lessee is expected
to consume more than an insignificant portion of the economic benefits embedded in the underlying
asset? Why or why not? If not, what alternative approach would you propose and why?

Response

We do believe there are differing lease transactions and that a general model for lessees and for
lessors is not possible given the range of transactions. We provide further commentary on this point
in our response to Question 4.

We do not agree with separating leases for purposes of determining how to allocate the cost of lease
transactions based upon the nature of the underlying asset. We believe contracts should be
separated based upon the nature of the contract. For example, leases that transfer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership or control using an IAS 17 approach could be accounted for using
the Type A model and all other leases could be accounted for using the Type B model. The proposed
approach in the ED will not reflect the nature of equipment lease contracts and will add costs to the
model by making it harder to determine the significance of equipment leases for purposes of
materiality given the nature of the Type A model.

If the Boards do not accept a classification approach based upon the nature of the contracts, a
display-oriented approach should be pursued. Under this model, lessees would record a lease
liability for the present value of rents at the end of each period and an asset for an equal amount.
Lease costs would be recognized on the basis of rent. Under this approach, the balance sheet and
income statement would not be linked, but we believe linkage is not required in a display approach.

When it comes to allocating costs in lease transactions, we believe that rent expense is the
appropriate governor for allocating costs. While some users of financial statements allocate the cost
of some lease transactions into interest and amortization components, they do so by allocating rent
and usually do not recast the transactions as is proposed in the Type A lessee model. Rent is an
important measure of the outflow of resources and the artificial allocation of costs in the Type A
model does not appropriately reflect this situation.



Question 3: Lessor Accounting

Do you agree that a lessor should apply a different accounting approach to different leases,
depending on whether the lessee is expected to consume more than an insignificant portion of the
economic benefits embedded in the underlying asset? Why or why not? If not, what alternative
approach would you propose and why?

Response

As indicated in the prior comment, we do believe there are differing lease transactions and that a
general model for lessees and for lessors is not possible given the range of transactions. We provide
further commentary on this point in our response to Question 4.

Lessor income recognition should either be based upon the nature of the lease transaction or lessors
should be allowed to determine the accounting for their investment in a lease using the existing
lessor models following a business model approach. Financial lessors like banks and finance
companies should use a Type A or finance lease approach. These lessors should not use the
operating lease method for their finance leases as it distorts the P&L and financial measures used by
analysts. Analysts measure financial lenders/lessors by such measures as net finance revenue over
interest cost (net spread/net revenue from invested funds) and operating efficiency (the ratio of net
revenue to expenses). The operating lease rent and depreciation bears no relationship to the
declining financial asset and its cost to carry. Mixing depreciation of leased assets with assets used
in the business makes the bank/finance company appear less efficient. For the same reasons, the
Boards must consider the accounting for tax credits and tax benefits for financial lessors. Reporting
tax credits as tax expense rather than as a component of lease revenue and failing to recognize the
reduction in cost to carry from tax shelter distorts the net revenue and operating efficiency ratios.
Users want to see the results of investments considering all the elements of revenue in the
appropriate line on the P&L based on the substance of the transaction.

Similarly, operating lessors should continue to use an operating lease model as that model most
accurately reflects the nature of their business, which is the management of the asset. If the Boards
believe users of financial statements require additional information about lessors’ residual and
credit risks, this information should be provided through additional disclosure and not through
recognition and measurement.

Question 4: Classification of Leases

Do you agree that the principle on the lessee’s expected consumption of the economic benefits
embedded in the underlying asset should be applied using the requirements set out in paragraphs
842-10-25-5 through 25-8, which differ depending on whether the underlying asset is property? Why
or why not? If not, what alternative approach would you propose and why?

Response

We do believe that the nature of lease agreements varies, but we do not believe they vary based
upon the nature of the underlying asset. A model that proposes to recast transactions into another
category of transactions, which is the central element of the Type A model, should be based upon
whether those transactions are substantively in the form of the transaction they are being recast
into. A nine-year lease of an asset with a ten-year life is probably substantially similar to the
separate acquisition and financing of an asset purchase. A two-year lease of the same asset is
probably not and should not be forced into a different form through accounting.



We do agree that the relationship of lease term to the economic life of a leased asset is one of the
factors used to determine if the rights and obligations in a lease are ownership rights or merely
rights of use. The significance of the lease payments in relationship to the underlying asset is
another factor. It should not matter what the leased asset is — real estate or equipment. The current
GAAP risks and rewards tests accomplish the goal of classifying leases according to their economic
and legal nature and those factors should continue to be part of the new lease accounting model. If
they are not, then users will have less information.

Question 5: Lease Term

Do you agree with the proposals on lease term, including the reassessment of the lease term if there
is a change in relevant factors? Why or why not? If not, how do you propose that a lessee and a
lessor should determine the lease term and why

Response

We understand the Boards have attempted to replicate the existing GAAP requirements for
determination of lease term. This has been done by using new terms, however, and we believe this
will result in new interpretations. If the intent of the Boards is to continue the current requirements,
then existing terms should be used as much as is possible to reduce the costs associated with
transition and ongoing compliance.

The requirement to reassess leases will add to the costs of the proposals, and we believe that lease
term extensions should only be accounted for when they occur. Basing accounting recognition on
anticipated outcomes is not consistent with other acquisition or service accounting models.

Question 6: Variable Lease Payments

Do you agree with the proposals on the measurement of variable lease payments, including
reassessment if there is a change in an index or a rate used to determine lease payments? Why or
why not? If not, how do you propose that a lessee and a lessor should account for variable lease
payments and why?

Response

We agree with the treatment of variable lease payments if the payments are indexed, but we also
believe if the impact of changes in variable rate lease payments will not result in any significant
change in the lease asset and lease liability, they should be excluded from the model on a cost versus
benefit basis. Changes in interest rates will not, however, have a significant impact on the
measurement of the lease asset and obligation and should be excluded from reassessments.

Question 7: Transition

Subparagraphs 842-10-65-1(b) through (h) and (k) through (y) state that a lessee and a lessor would
recognize and measure leases at the beginning of the earliest period presented using either a
modified retrospective approach or a full retrospective approach. Do you agree with those
proposals? Why or why not? If not, what transition requirements do you propose and why?

Response

Lessee transition for Type A leases is far too complex because the method front loads costs and the
transition method attempts to lessen the current period P&L impact. It should also be noted the
entry in the 842-10-55-77 example of a Type A lease transition lacks a charge to deferred tax assets.



In 842-10-55-89 the fair value of an asset may not be readily available for many asset types. In 842-
10-55-90 it seems to allow the residual to be “written up” if it is higher than the residual value at
inception. To simplify things and to conform to the principle that residuals cannot be written up, we
would use “at inception/commencement” data for cost/fair value, residual and implicit rate. As a
result, the value of the lease at transition will be the PV of the rents and original residual using the
original implicit rate as the discount rate to PV the amounts that are recorded at the transition date.

In 842-10-65-1, we would suggest the following language: “For leases that were classified as direct
finance or sales-type leases in accordance with Topic 840, the carrying amount of the lease
receivable and residual asset at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented shall be
the bifurcated carrying amount of the net investment in the lease immediately before that date
(using the implicit rate in the lease to calculate the amounts) in accordance with Topic 840.”

Question 8: Disclosure

Paragraphs 842-10-50-1, 842-20-50-1 through 50-10, and 842-30-50-1 through 50-13 set out the
disclosure requirements for a lessee and a lessor. Those proposals include maturity analyses of
undiscounted lease payments, reconciliations of amounts recognized in the statement of financial
position, and narrative disclosures about leases (including information about variable lease
payments and options). Do you agree with those proposals? Why or why not? If not, what changes do
you propose and why?

Response

We do not agree that a lessee in a lease with services needs to disclose future non lease
components/service contract payments as the same disclosure is not required for a service contract
with the exact same terms that is contracted separate from the lease. Also, if an asset is owned and
a preparer enters into a service contract on the asset that has the exact same terms as the service
contract connected to a lease, it would not need to be disclosed. In all the cases cited, the service
contract is legally the same — it is an executory contract.

The requirements in 42-20-50-4 to disclose reconciliations for the assets and liabilities for both Type
A and Type B leases present a great deal of information that we question whether users really need.
This is a question that should be posed in targeted outreach with lenders, investors and analysts.

The fact that most companies lease many types of assets and have numerous leases means that the
requirements in 842-20-50-3 to describe lease terms will result in very general descriptions.

Questions 9, 10, 11, 12

Responses

None
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CHARACTERISTICS OF A CONCEPTUALLY SOUND LEASING STANDARD

The Committee supports development of a single, conceptually sound approach to accounting for all
types of leases and believes that such an approach should have the following characteristics:

1. The approach should recognize that all leases, regardless of their specific terms and conditions,
convey rights and obligations, and so create assets and liabilities. The nature of the property under
lease should not affect the accounting, nor should the length of the lease.

2. The approach should recognize that accounting for leases is a special case of accounting for
contracts. Accounting for all contracts should be placed on a sound conceptual footing, and the
principles developed for leases should be both internally consistent and generalizable, in the sense
that the principles governing accounting for leases should be suitable for application to accounting
for contracts generally.

3. The approach should be robust to shifts in the contractual details of lease contracts when such
shifts do not materially alter the economic substance of the arrangements. In particular, the
approach should require that substantially similar lease contracts be accounted for similarly and
substantially dissimilar lease contracts not be forced into a misleading appearance of comparability.

4. The approach should take account of practiced realities of the leasing market that make
measuring lease assets and liabilities difficult. Because lease contracts are frequently tailored to the
desires of the parties to the lease, it can be difficult or even infeasible to identify similar lease
contracts. Moreover, public information about the specifics of lease contracts is often unavailable.
For these reasons, the markets for trading lease assets and liabilities are relatively undeveloped. In
addition, the existence of transaction costs associated with relocating and releasing assets under
lease may yield incentives that affect the contractual lease provisions.

While the measurement difficulties discussed in point 4 above must be considered carefully, the
Committee believes that the principles governing accounting for lease receivables and liabilities
should conform to the accounting for other financial instruments. In this regard, we note that in
previous comment letters to the FASB (most recently, to its December 1999 Preliminary Views
“Reporting Financial Instruments and Certain Related Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value”), the
Committee stated its support for fair value accounting for financial instruments once the conceptual
and measurement issues are resolved.
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GASB Proposes Measurement Concepts for Assets and Liabilities and
Standards for Measuring, Applying, and Disclosing Fair Value.

In June, the GASB issued an Exposure Draft, Measurement of Elements of Financial Statements, and
a Preliminary Views, Fair Value Measurement and Application. The Exposure Draft proposes new
accounting concepts to guide how the GASB sets standards for the measurement of assets,
liabilities, and other items reported in financial statements. The Preliminary Views presents the
Board’s initial thinking on how fair value should be determined, what should be measured at fair
value, and what note disclosures should be included with those measurements.

The GASB also issued a Plain-Language Supplement that summarizes the proposals for users of
governmental financial information. The GASB will be conducting a webcast on September 5 at 3:00
pm Eastern time to explain the proposals and collect feedback from users.

This article summarizes and explains the proposals in the due process documents at a very high level
for users of governmental financial information. It addresses the Exposure Draft on measurement
concepts first, and then discusses the Preliminary Views on fair value. Information about how to
participate in the September 5 webcast and provide your feedback to the GASB is included.

Measurement Concepts

GASB Concepts Statements are meant to provide a framework of interrelated objectives and
fundamental concepts that can be used as a basis for the GASB establishing consistent accounting
and financial reporting standards. Measurement concepts will address how to calculate the
appropriate amounts for assets and liabilities. As such, they will provide a foundation for depicting a
government’s financial health as of a specific point in time, referred to as the government’s
“financial position,” and its financial activity during a certain period, referred to as the government’s
“results of operations” or “financial performance.”

Measurement concepts help the Board to develop standards that require largely the same treatment
for similar transactions. This promotes the user’s ability to compare relevant, reliable, and
understandable financial information across governments. Ultimately, accounting standards based
on these concepts should maximize the likelihood that different governments would come up with
comparable measurement amounts for comparable assets or liabilities obtained or incurred under
comparable circumstances.

Measurement approaches

A measurement is associated with a point in time; a “measurement approach” tells you what that
point in time is. The GASB is proposing that assets and liabilities be measured using one of two
measurement approaches:

Initial Amount—The transaction price or amount assigned when an asset was acquired or a liability●

was incurred, including subsequent modifications (for example, depreciation) to that price or
amount. Initial amounts also are known as initial-transaction-date-based measurements.
Remeasured Amount—The amount assigned when an asset or liability is remeasured as of the●
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financial statement date. Remeasured amounts also are known as current-financial-statement-d-
te-based measurements.

While initial amounts may be adjusted in later years, such as through amortization or because of
impairment, the original value of the asset or liability is not remeasured. Remeasured amounts, on
the other hand, are newly measured as of the date of each year’s financial statements. The GASB has
proposed two approaches, rather than a single approach for all assets and liabilities, because it
believes both are needed to meet the various objectives of financial reporting and to achieve balance
among the qualitative characteristics (reliability, comparability, consistency, relevance,
understandability, and timeliness) of information in government financial reporting.

The Board believes that the use of initial amounts is generally better suited to achieving reporting
objectives associated with the cost of providing services. A capital asset—an elementary school, for
example—is acquired at a given time but is used to provide services for many years afterward.
Including the cost of the school in the cost of providing services in each of those years is more
informative if the cost of the school is measured at the initial amount.

The Board also believes that remeasured amounts are better suited to achieve financial reporting
objectives related to portraying financial position. For example, using the remeasured amount for a
government’s investments that will ultimately be converted to cash will provide a clear picture of a
government’s current financial health and the resources available to it for providing services or
satisfying obligations.

The Board recognizes that it may not be possible to report some assets or liabilities using a
measurement approach that promotes the objectives of both (a) providing information about the cost
of current-year services and (b) providing information about the financial position of a governmental
entity to be used in assessing the level of services that can be provided by the governmental entity.
Because only one measurement approach should be applied for a specific asset or liability, one
objective will necessarily be given priority over the other. In these circumstances, the Board believes
that the cost-of-services information has greater relevance in the governmental environment than
the service-potential information because of the importance of providing information that can be
used to assess interperiod equity.

Measurement attributes

The GASB is proposing to place four basic measurement tools in its conceptual framework tool box
that it can use in standards-setting. These tools are referred to as measurement attributes. A
measurement attribute is a particular characteristic of the asset or liability that is being measured.
The proposed Concepts Statement identifies and defines four measurement attributes:

Historical cost is the price actually paid to acquire an asset or, with respect to a liability, the●

proceeds actually received when the liability was incurred.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an●

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Replacement cost is the price that would be paid to acquire an asset with equivalent service●

potential in an orderly market transaction at the measurement date.
Settlement amount is the amount at which an asset could be realized or a liability could be●

liquidated with the counterparty, other than in an active market.

Historical cost can be used to measure initial amounts only, while the other measurement attributes
can be used to measure both initial amounts and remeasured amounts.



Implications for users

The proposed concepts will not directly affect the information that is reported in governmental
financial reports because Concepts Statements do not set standards. Indirectly, however, the
concepts guide the GASB when it is establishing standards and, therefore, will help to ensure that
the standards adequately balance the need for understandable, relevant, and reliable information
that is prepared consistently and comparably and presented in a timely fashion.

Fair Value Measurement and Application

Defining fair value

The notion of fair value has been used for many years in the governmental accounting environment
to measure investments predominantly, as well as some other assets and liabilities. Under the
Preliminary Views, fair value would be defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. In the Board’s view, fair value is a market-based measurement and represents an exit price.

Implications for users.

The primary result of the new definition should be to improve the comparability and consistency of
governments’ measures of fair value. It clarifies certain issues that are important to pinpointing fair
value, such as the fact that it is an exit price rather than an entry price, which under certain
circumstances can be very different amounts. The fair value definition also is consistent with the
Financial Accounting Standards Board’s definition of fair value—one that many users are already
familiar with.

Measuring fair value

The GASB’s Preliminary Views describes three acceptable “valuation approaches” for measuring fair
value:

The market approach uses information resulting from market transactions for identical or●

comparable assets or liabilities (for example, the stock exchange).
The cost approach bases fair value on the amount necessary to replace an asset’s present capacity●

for providing service (for example, an appraisal).
The income approach calculates fair value by converting future amounts to a single current●

amount. A government might project cash flows from an asset—like a royalty interest in an oil-
producing property—and discount them to their present value, for example.

The GASB’s preliminary view is that the use of a variety of “valuation techniques” for establishing
fair value could be acceptable, depending on the specific circumstances of the measurement,
provided that:

The valuation technique used by a government is consistent with the three valuation approaches,●

and
The valuation technique is based as much as possible on “observable inputs.”●

“Inputs” are the assumptions market participants make when deciding on the price for an asset or
liability, such as the degree of perceived risk. Observable inputs are those that are readily accessible
to the public, such as the previously mentioned stock exchange. Unobservable inputs are based on
assumptions a government uses to best estimate the fair value of an asset or liability in the absence
of market data.



The Preliminary Views describes a three-level hierarchy of inputs for measuring fair value:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices from markets with many transactions for identical assets and●

liabilities. When market information that qualifies as a Level 1 input is available for measuring fair
value, a government would use the market valuation approach rather than the cost or income
approach.
Level 2 inputs are either directly observable, like quoted market prices but for similar assets and●

liabilities, or correlated or corroborated from observable market information. Level 2 inputs
generally would not be used unless Level 1 inputs are not available.
Level 3 inputs are assumptions a government develops based on the best information available to●

it.

Level 3 inputs would not be used unless Level 1 inputs and Level 2 inputs are unavailable.

The distinction between the three levels relates to the reliability of the measurement of an asset or
liability’s fair value. Observable inputs are more reliable than unobservable inputs because it is
easier to verify observable inputs.

Alternative investments. Some governmental entities hold investments for which there is not a
“readily determinable fair value.” These often relate to “alternative investments,” such as shares in a
hedge fund. Governments with investments in hedge funds and certain other entities that calculate
“net asset value per share” would be allowed to use a practical expedient to determine the value of
those investments. In other words, governments would not establish the fair value of their
investment themselves but would calculate an amount based on their proportion of the fair value
determined by the issuer of the investment (the hedge fund, for example).

Implications for users. The valuation techniques and hierarchy of inputs, which form the basis for
determining fair value, are applicable to all investments and, thereby, promote consistency and
comparability. They also are consistent with the FASB’s requirements, which are familiar to many
users.

A principle concern among users when looking at fair value amounts reported in financial
statements is where they came from. Certain sources of fair value, such as market data, are
considered inherently more reliable by users, whereas users are more uncertain about fair value
determined by governments internally using unobservable inputs. When combined with disclosure
requirements that are detailed below, this proposal should have the effect of making it easier for
users to assess the acceptability of fair value measures and reduce the degree of uncertainty they
face.

Applying fair value

The Board’s preliminary view is that investments generally should continue to be measured at fair
value. The GASB has proposed defining an investment as a security or other asset that a government
holds primarily for the purpose of income or profit, the present service capacity of which is based
solely on its ability to generate cash, to be sold to generate cash, or to procure services.

Exceptions to fair value. At present, several types of investments are not required to be reported at
fair value. These include investments with a maturity of one year or less at the time of purchase,
investments in 2a7-like external investment pools (which are a type of government-sponsored, short-
term investment pool), and most investments in life insurance. Under the GASB’s preliminary view,
these exemptions to applying fair value would continue.



Under the preliminary view of the GASB, certain assets currently required to be measured at fair
value would be measured at acquisition value instead. These include:

Capital assets received in a nonexchange transaction, such as capital assets received by donation●

Works of art and historical treasures received by donation●

Certain assets received in nonmonetary transactions.●

While fair value is an exit price, acquisition value is an entry price—that is, the price a government
would have to pay to acquire a similar asset with similar service capacity.

Transaction costs.

Currently, many defined benefit pension plans and retiree health insurance plans subtract
significant related transaction costs when measuring fair value. Under the preliminary view of the
GASB, transaction costs would instead be reported as expenses when incurred and not netted
against the fair value of investments.

Implications for users. Under the proposed definition of an investment, some items not currently
reported as investments could be considered investments going forward. Consequently,
governments would have to measure their fair value going forward. Similarly, some assets currently
reported as investments would no longer be reported at their fair value. However, it is not expected
that the changes would be substantial.

Fair value disclosures

In order to allow users to better understand how governments calculate fair values when they are
not based on observable market data, the GASB has proposed a more detailed set of disclosures than
is currently required that take into account the levels of inputs a government uses to measure fair
value and their characteristic degrees of uncertainty and subjectivity.

These disclosures would be organized by type or class of asset or liability. The extent of
disaggregation would depend on a number of factors, including the nature, characteristics, and risks
of the assets or liabilities, the level of inputs used to measure the assets or liabilities, whether other
standards specifically require separate disclosure (such as derivative instruments), and the value of
the assets or liabilities measured at fair value relative to all the assets or liabilities. The GASB is
proposing that governments disclose:

The fair value amounts as of the date of the financial statements and the levels of inputs used in●

their determination
The valuation techniques and assumptions used●

Changes in techniques and inputs having a significant impact on the measurement of fair value and●

the reasons behind the changes
Additional quantitative information that describes the nature of any significant Level 3 inputs used●

to measure fair value
A narrative description of the degree to which fair value measurements are sensitive to changes in●

Level 3 inputs.

Importantly, the amount of disclosure is greater when Level 3 inputs are used because they are
harder to verify. The proposed disclosures would give users the information needed to evaluate the
measurement techniques used and the resulting fair value measurements themselves.

To reiterate, governments would be able to use a practical expedient to value certain alternative
investments because these investments do not have a readily determinable fair value. Consequently,



their value would be less certain and more subjective than the fair value measurements of other
investments. As a result, the GASB believes additional disclosures are necessary for alternative
investments. These disclosures would include the following for each type of alternative investment:

The fair value amounts as of the date of the financial statements●

Significant investment strategies of the entities in which the government has invested●

The amount of any related commitments the government has for which it has not set aside●

resources
Terms and conditions under which the government may redeem the investments●

Restrictions preventing the government from redeeming an investment that is otherwise●

redeemable and the expected duration of the restriction
Other significant restrictions on the government’s ability to sell the investments.●

Implications for users.

If the proposals related to fair value disclosures are ultimately reflected in final standards, the fair
value information about assets and liabilities by type, class, valuation approach, and input levels
would significantly enhance the depth and breadth of users’ understanding of governmental entities’
financial health. Disclosures about the assumptions made in estimating fair value, particularly for
alternative investments, directly address the concerns that users have about understanding how fair
value is determined.

Disclosures related to Level 3 inputs, particularly those related to more complex items, such as
securitized fixed income and alternative investments, would assist users in analyzing the financial
condition and activity of governments. For example, these disclosures would potentially provide a
clearer understanding of the extent of an entity’s diversification among alternative investments,
other inherent risk factors, and the nature and quality of the measurements involved.

How Can Users Help the GASB with These Projects?

When the GASB sets standards and establishes concepts, a critical part of its due process activities
involves publishing documents for public discussion and comment. Users of financial statements are
in the best position to assist the GASB in understanding whether or not the information that would
result from the proposals would be important for fulfilling their informational needs. You can help
the GASB by reviewing the Plain-Language Supplement prepared specifically for users of financial
statements, and commenting on the questions posed throughout the supplement. You are also
invited to comment on the Exposure Draft and the Preliminary Views themselves.

Copies of the Plain-Language Supplement, Exposure Draft, and Preliminary Views may be
downloaded free of charge from www.gasb.org. The comment deadline for all three documents is
September 30.

As previously noted, the GASB has scheduled a webcast designed specifically with financial
statement users in mind for September 5, 2013, at 3:00 p.m. Eastern time. The webcast will
summarize the proposals described in this document and provide an opportunity for users to ask
questions. The webcast will be followed immediately by a web-based survey allowing users to offer
their views. The webcast may be viewed and the survey completed on that date or on any day
following through the September 30 comment deadline.

A public hearing on the Exposure Draft and Preliminary Views is scheduled for November 1, 2013, at
the Sheraton LaGuardia East Hotel, 135-20 39th Avenue, Flushing, NY. The deadline for providing
written notice of intent to participate in the public hearing is September 30.

http://www.gasb.org


Additional details on how to provide comments to the GASB and about participating in the public
hearing are available in the front of the Exposure Draft and the Preliminary Views.

FASB Releases Updates in its Definition of a Nonpublic Entity Project.

The objective of this project is to re-examine the definitions of a nonpublic entity and public entity in
the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The project will focus on defining what constitutes a
public business entity to distinguish between different types of entities for standard-setting purposes
and on determining which companies are to be excluded from the scope of the Private Company
Decision-Making Framework. The project will also focus on whether a distinction or distinctions
between not-for-profit entities is necessary and, if so, how that distinction or distinctions between
particular types of not-for-profit entities might best be made.

The updates are available at:

http://www.fasb.org/cs/ContentServer?c=FASBContent_C&pagename=FASB%2FFASBContent_C%2
FProjectUpdatePage&cid=1176159865920#due_process

GFOA Certified Public Finance Officers Certification Program.

The Certified Public Finance Officers Program (Certification Program) of the Government Finance
Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) is a broad educational self-study
program designed to verify knowledge in the disciplines of government finance. The Certification
Program is governed by the Council on Certification.

Click here for information on the Certified Public Finance Officers Program:

http://www.gfoa-cpfo.org/

FAF Review Concludes GASB Standard on Risk Financing and Insurance-
Related Activity Achieve Their Purposes.

Two accounting standards established to improve the consistency and comparability in reporting
U.S. state and local governments’ insurance activities achieve their purpose.

That was the overall conclusion of the Post-Implementation Review (PIR) of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, and No. 30, Risk Financing Omnibus, an amendment
of GASB Statement No. 10. The Statements establish accounting and financial reporting standards
for risk financing and insurance-related activities of state and local governments, including public
risk pools.

The review of Statements 10 and 30 was undertaken by an independent team of the Financial
Accounting Foundation (FAF), the parent organization of the GASB and the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB). The team’s formal report is available at www.accountingfoundation.org.
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FAF President and CEO Teresa S. Polley said: “On behalf of the FAF and the GASB, I’d like to thank
the stakeholders who helped the PIR team assess the real-world application, usefulness, and
effectiveness of the insurance and risk financing standards for state and local governments.”

GASB Chairman David A. Vaudt said: “The post-implementation review report on Statements 10 and
30 identified many positive aspects of the insurance and risk financing standards, including their
decision-usefulness to users.

“We are considering the reported findings and will provide our initial response in the coming weeks.
Additionally, the FASB is working on a project to amend its guidance for insurance activities. The
GASB is actively monitoring that project and, when complete, will determine whether action by the
GASB is appropriate.”

The PIR team received input from analysts and other financial statement users, as well as from
preparers and auditors. Based on its research, the review team concluded that, overall, Statements
10 and 30 are accomplishing their stated purpose. In particular, their research indicates:

Statements 10 and 30 resolve the issues underlying their need.●

Preparers and experienced practitioners are able to understand and apply the standards as●

intended.
The standards have increased consistency and comparability across governments’ insurance●

activities.
The resulting information is reliable and decision useful for those who use it.●

The standards did not result in significant unexpected changes to financial reporting or operating●

practices, nor did they have any significant unanticipated consequences.
The implementation and continuing application costs appear to be consistent with the costs that●

the GASB considered and stakeholders expected, and the benefits appear to be consistent with
what the GASB intended.

The PIR team for Statements 10 and 30 also concluded that the standard-setting process worked
well overall and contributed to successful standards. The PIR team had no significant standard-
setting process recommendations as a result of the review.

GASB Statements 10 and 30 PIR Report:

http://www.accountingfoundation.org/cs/BlobServer?blobkey=id&blobwhere=1175827510281&blob
header=application%2Fpdf&blobcol=urldata&blobtable=MungoBlobs

Registration Opens for September 5 Webcast in Focus: Overview of GASB
Proposals for Financial Statement Users.

Registration is now open for the upcoming Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
webcast, IN FOCUS: Overview of GASB Proposals for Financial Statement Users. This live webcast,
offered free of charge, will take place on Thursday, September 5, 2013, from 3:00 to 4:00 p.m.
Eastern Daylight Time. Participants in the live broadcast will be eligible for up to 1 hour of CPE
credit. (Please note that CPE credit is not available for group viewing of the live broadcast.)

The webcast will provide an overview of the GASB’s proposals on asset and liability measurement
concepts and the measurement, application, and disclosure of fair value based on its plain-language
due process document for users, Measurement Concepts for Assets and Liabilities and Fair Value

http://www.accountingfoundation.org/cs/BlobServer?blobkey=id&blobwhere=1175827510281&blobheader=application/pdf&blobcol=urldata&blobtable=MungoBlobs
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Measurement and Application. Aimed at users of governmental financial information—for example,
representatives from citizen groups (research organizations), those that participate in the lending
process (bond analysts), and legislative and oversight bodies (legislative analysts)—its goal is to
provide users with the background information they need to participate in the due process
associated with the GASB proposals.

The areas covered will include:

The provisions of the GASB’s proposed Concepts Statement, Measurement of Elements of Financial●

Statements
The provisions of the GASB’s Preliminary Views, Fair Value Measurement and Application, and●

how they would affect:
How governments measure the fair value of assets●

What assets are measured at fair value●

The fair value information disclosed in the notes to the financial statements●

How the proposals would impact the information that users receive.●

At the end of the program, participants will understand the changes the GASB is proposing and their
potential effect on the information that users receive in financial statements and note disclosures.
They also will be asked to respond to a brief survey after the webcast that will provide the GASB
feedback on its proposals. Participants will have the opportunity to email questions to the speakers
during the event.

An archive of the webcast will be available on the GASB website through Wednesday, December 4,
2013. (CPE credit will not be available to those who view only the archived webcast.)

Course Description and Registration:

http://www.gasb.org/cs/ContentServer?c=Page&pagename=GASB%2FPage%2FGASBSectionPage&
cid=1176158838207

Internal Auditors Society Annual Conference 2013.

November 3-6, 2013

Delray Beach Marriott | Delray Beach , FL

Early bird rates to end on October 4, 2013.

The 2013 Internal Auditors Society (IAS) Annual Conference brings together financial services audit
professionals, industry experts and regulators to share insights and experiences on:

Enhancing the value of Internal Audit to the organization●

Partnering with the second line of defense●

Regulatory updates and their impact on Internal Audit●

Auditing emerging risks and threats●

Using data mining and analytics to discern actionable information from noise●

Join us November 3-6 to network with internal audit, risk and compliance colleagues, and industry
regulators, to discuss the future of Internal Audit, and to learn how a strong Internal Audit function

http://www.gasb.org/cs/ContentServer?c=Page&pagename=GASB/Page/GASBSectionPage&cid=1176158838207
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can lead to better business results.

Conference attendees will be eligible for 15 hours of CPE credit.

Register at:

https://mbrservices.net/ConferenceRegistration/MeetingRegistration.aspx?meetingid=1152

GFOA Marketplace Fairness Act Resource Center.

On May 6 the Senate passed S 763 – the Marketplace Fairness Act by a vote of 69-27.  The
legislation would give state and local governments the option to collect taxes on remote sales, which
are already owed to them under current law.  Despite the broad bipartisan approval of the measure
in the Senate, the legislation has languished in the House and faces an uncertain future without
significant engagement by state and local government officials and other supporters.  The GFOA is
working with our state and local government coalition partners to encourage House action on the
Marketplace Fairness Act, but we need your help to get the House to consider this important
legislation!

What Can You Do?

GFOA’s Federal Liaison Center has developed a suite of advocacy materials to assist you in your
outreach to your federal elected leaders to request their support for the House version of the
Marketplace Fairness Act (HR 684).  These materials include:

Talking points to help you in your discussions with your members of Congress on the bill.

http://www.gfoa.org/downloads/GFOAMFATalkingPoints.doc

A factsheet discussing the inaccuracies of many of the arguments being used against
Marketplace.

http://gfoa.org/downloads/GFOADRAFTMFAMythbusterFactsheet.pdf

A draft letter to send to your members of the House of Representatives to request their
cosponsorship of the bill (HR 684).

http://gfoa.org/downloads/GFOADRAFTCosponsorMFALtr.docx

A draft thank you letter for you to send to your members of Congress if they are already a
cosponsor of the bill.

http://gfoa.org/downloads/GFOADRAFTMarketplaceTYltr.docx

A draft Op-Ed for you to send to your local paper to continue to increase awareness for the
need to enact this important bill.

http://gfoa.org/downloads/GFOADraftOPEDMarketplaceFairnessAct2013.docx

https://mbrservices.net/ConferenceRegistration/MeetingRegistration.aspx?meetingid=1152
https://bondcasebriefs.com/2013/08/13/finance-and-accounting/gfoa-marketplace-fairness-act-resource-center/


GFOA Annual Meeting Sessions Available on CD.

GFOA would like to thank everyone who attended the 2013 annual conference.

Missed some sessions from the annual conference? The session CDs are now available.

Click here to access the order form:

http://gfoa.org/downloads/GFOA2013SanFranciscoCDOrderForm.pdf

SIFMA Releases Mid-Year 2013 Economic Forecast.

Washington, D.C., July 24, 2013-SIFMA’s Economic Advisory Roundtable today released its outlook
for the second half of 2013 and predictions for 2014, forecasting that the economy will grow at a
rate of 1.7 percent in full-year 2013 and 2.6 percent in 2014.

“Our Roundtable maintains their forecast for moderate economic growth for 2013 and 2014, with
upside and downside drivers varied among respondents,” said Kyle Brandon, managing director and
director of research at SIFMA. “Generally, the continued housing recovery and low energy prices
were seen as positive drivers of growth, while external factors such as Europe and emerging
markets featured as the downside risks to the economy.”

The Economy

The median forecast called for gross domestic product (GDP) to rise 1.7 percent in 2013 on a year-
over-year basis, and by 2.0 percent on a fourth quarter-to-fourth quarter basis. For full year 2014,
the median forecast was 2.6 percent year-over-year; on a quarterly basis, the first two quarters of
2014 were expected to stabilize at 2.7 and 2.9 percent annualized GDP growth, respectively.

Unemployment was expected to remain at elevated levels throughout 2013 and 2014. Survey
respondents expected the full-year average unemployment rate to decline to 7.5 percent in 2013, a
slight improvement from the end-year 2012 forecast of 7.7 percent, and a further decline to 6.9
percent expected in 2014.

Monetary Policy

Three-fourths of respondents expect the FOMC to reduce the pace of securities purchases as early
as September 2013, with the remainder expecting a reduction sometime in the fourth quarter of
2013 or at the latest January 2014, an assessment noted by Chairman Ben Bernanke in his
semiannual monetary report to Congress. Opinions diverged slightly more when asked about timing
for the end of securities purchases, with over half expecting an end in the second quarter of 2014,
slightly less than a third expecting an end in the first quarter of 2014, and the balance in the third
quarter of 2014.

Impact of Sequestration and the Debt Ceiling

Sequestration, the result of budget negotiations from 2011 and 2012, came into effect on March 1,
impacting approximately $85 billion of federal spending. Nearly 90 percent of respondents believed
the impact of sequestration lowered GDP growth in full-year 2013 by up to 100 basis points. One

https://bondcasebriefs.com/2013/07/30/finance-and-accounting/gfoa-annual-meeting-sessions-available-on-cd/
http://gfoa.org/downloads/GFOA2013SanFranciscoCDOrderForm.pdf
https://bondcasebriefs.com/2013/07/30/finance-and-accounting/sifma-releases-mid-year-2013-economic-forecast/


respondent noted that higher taxes would be a “larger drag on economic growth in 2013 than
spending cuts.”

Respondents were relatively unanimous in their opinion that debt ceiling negotiations would not
impact GDP in a meaningful way in 2013, with one respondent noting that a fiscal deal was likely to
be reached without a government shutdown or “excessive brinksmanship.” Another noted that the
deficit was shrinking “rapidly” and that in fact the resulting increase in revenues as a percentage of
GDP “could result in considerable, unexpected fiscal drag in 2014.”

The full report can be found at the following link: http://www.sifma.org/econoutlook20132h/.

FAF to Conduct Post-Implementation Review of GASB Standard on
Impairment of Capital Assets.

Norwalk, CT, July 17, 2013—The Financial Accounting Foundation (FAF) today announced that it
will conduct a Post-Implementation Review (PIR) of an accounting and financial reporting standard
for state and local governments regarding the impairment of capital assets and insurance recoveries.

Issued in 2003, Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 42, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries,
http://www.gasb.org/cs/BlobServer?blobkey=id&blobwhere=1175824062940&blobheader=applicati
on%2Fpdf&blobcol=urldata&blobtable=MungoBlobs establishes measurement guidance for capital
asset impairments and requires governments to report the effects of those impairments when they
occur, rather than as a part of the ongoing depreciation expense for the capital asset or upon
disposal of the capital asset. It also provides uniform reporting guidance for insurance recoveries of
state and local governments.

Stakeholders who would like the opportunity to participate in PIR surveys on GASB Statement 42,
conducted by an independent survey firm on behalf of the FAF, should register online.
http://www.accountingfoundation.org/cs/ContentServer?c=Page&pagename=Foundation%2FPage%
2FFAFSectionPage&cid=1176159648816

The PIR team recently completed its review of GASB Statements No. 10, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues,
http://www.gasb.org/cs/BlobServer?blobkey=id&blobwhere=1175824062544&blobheader=applicati
on%2Fpdf&blobcol=urldata&blobtable=MungoBlobs and No. 30, Risk Financing Omnibus,
http://www.gasb.org/cs/BlobServer?blobkey=id&blobwhere=1175824063444&blobheader=applicati
on%2Fpdf&blobcol=urldata&blobtable=MungoBlobs which establish accounting and financial
reporting standards for risk financing and insurance-related activities of state and local
governments, including public risk pools. The FAF expects to issue the review report in August.

 

FASB to Propose New Definition of Public Businesses.

As part of a project on determining which entities qualify for alternative private company accounting
rules, the Financial Accounting Standards Board on July 10 decided to propose guidance that would

http://www.sifma.org/econoutlook20132h/
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help define what constitutes a public business

At a meeting in Norwalk, Conn., the board unanimously supported a staff recommendation not to
amend the existing definitions of a nonpublic entity in the Accounting Standards Codification (ASC).
Rather, the board agreed to propose a new definition of a public business entity that would be added
to the ASC master glossary for use in future guidance.

According to the staff, a business entity would be regarded as public if it has met any of the criteria
established in prior board decisions for determining which entities should be excluded from the
alternative rules developed for private companies. Those criteria include a requirement to file or
furnish financial statements with the SEC or another regulatory agency for purposes of issuing
securities.

FASB member Thomas Linsmeier supported the staff recommendation, saying that the board must
gain more experience making scope decisions about the companies that FASB and its advisory
group, the Private Company Council (PCC), will not be considering for potential rulemaking
differences.

Linsmeier added, however, that the new definition of a public business entity that will be proposed
will create some differences from the existing general definition. “We should think about the entities
that will be affected by those differences — if at all possible — and try to seek them out for
comment,” he said.

According to Linsmeier, FASB should make an effort to gather feedback from those entities offering
unrestricted securities that would be classified as public because they must provide periodic
financial reports to the public under a legal or regulatory requirement.

FASB decided that the proposed guidance on defining a public business entity would be released for
a 45-day public comment period.

Elizabeth Gagnon, a FASB project manager, said that if the proposal can be released later this
month, the timing of the comment period should allow for the feedback to be received before the
PCC’s meeting scheduled for October.

New Pension Numbers for Books, Budgets, and Bonds.

Public pension data have become more complex as GASB, the rating agencies, and governments
themselves may all be using different sets of pension numbers for different purposes. The GFOA and
other leading national associations representing state and local governments, agencies, and officials
have developed a one-page summary to help everyone concerned understand the differences among
these numbers, the intended purpose and audience, and new resources available to lawmakers to
address pension funding.

http://gfoa.org/downloads/JointFundingGuidelinesOverview.pdf

Registration Opens for Two FASB Webcasts on Insurance Contracts.

https://bondcasebriefs.com/2013/07/16/finance-and-accounting/new-pension-numbers-for-books-budgets-and-bonds/
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Webcasts Examine Different Aspects of FASB Proposal

Registration is now open for two live webcasts hosted by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB).

IN FOCUS: The Insurance Contracts Project—Part I, Scope will take place on Tuesday, July 30, 2013,
from 1:00 to 2:00 p.m. EDT. Participants in the live broadcast will be eligible for up to 1 hour of CPE
credit.

IN FOCUS: The Insurance Contracts Project—Part II, The Models will take place on Thursday,
August 1, from 1:00 to 3:05 p.m. EDT. Participants in the live broadcast will be eligible for up to 2.5
hours of CPE credit.

(Please note that CPE credit is not available for group viewing of the live broadcasts.)

 

IN FOCUS: The Insurance Contracts Project—Part I, Scope (1 CPE credit)

The first Insurance Contracts webcast will feature Hal Schroeder, FASB member; Jennifer Weiner,
FASB senior practice fellow; and Lauren Alexander, FASB associate practice fellow discussing the
scope of FASB’s June 27th Exposure Draft on Insurance Contracts. The proposed guidance would
apply to all companies that issue insurance contracts as defined in the Exposure Draft, including
those that are not insurance companies, unless those contracts are specifically excluded from the
scope. The webcast will cover the following areas:

Why the proposed guidance would apply to all companies issuing insurance contracts rather than●

just to insurance companies
Contractual features that may require contracts to be accounted for using the proposed guidance●

Examples of contracts issued by noninsurance companies to which the proposed guidance would●

apply
How the proposal improves existing accounting●

Next steps in the project.●

Register at:

http://www.fasb.org/cs/ContentServer?c=Page&pagename=FASB%2FPage%2FSectionPage&cid=11
76163088722

 

IN FOCUS: The Insurance Contracts Project—Part II, The Models (2.5 CPE credits)

The second Insurance Contracts webcast will feature Tom Linsmeier, FASB member; Marc Siegel,
FASB member; Jennifer Weiner, FASB senior practice fellow; Christopher Irwin, FASB practice
fellow; and Lauren Alexander, FASB associate practice fellow. Topics of discussion will include:

Why the FASB has an insurance contracts project on its agenda●

When investment and service components should be disaggregated from the insurance component●

and accounted for using the financial instruments or revenue recognition guidance, respectively
Determining which approach to apply: the building block approach or the premium allocation●

approach
Details of the two approaches, including measurement of the insurance contracts liability/asset and●



the recognition of revenue and expenses
How the proposal improves existing accounting●

Next steps in the project.●

An archive of each webcast will be available on the FASB website through October 28 and October
30, respectively. (CPE credit will not be available to those who view only the archived webcast.)

Register at:

http://www.fasb.org/cs/ContentServer?c=Page&pagename=FASB%2FPage%2FSectionPage&cid=11
76163088783

FASB Issues Standard Deferring Some Disclosures for Nonpublic Employee
Benefit Plans.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) has published a new Accounting Standards
Update that defers indefinitely certain disclosures about investments held by nonpublic employee
benefit plans in their plan sponsors’ own nonpublic equity securities. The Update, which was
approved on June 12, is available to download at no cost on the FASB website.

Accounting Standards Update No. 2013-09, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Deferral of the
Effective Date of Certain Disclosures for Nonpublic Employee Benefit Plans in Update No. 2011-04,
applies to disclosures of certain quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs
used in Level 3 fair value measurement for investments held by certain employee benefit plans.

The deferral applies specifically to employee benefit plans—other than those plans that are subject
to Securities and Exchange Commission filing requirements—that hold investments in their plan
sponsors’ own nonpublic entity equity securities, including equity securities of their nonpublic
affiliated entities.

“The Update addresses private company stakeholder concerns that certain disclosure requirements
would potentially provide proprietary information when their employee benefit plans’ financial
statements are posted on the plan regulator’s website,” said FASB Chairman Russell G. Golden.

The deferral is effective immediately for all financial statements that have not yet been issued.

The full Update is available at:

http://www.fasb.org/cs/ContentServer?c=Page&pagename=FASB%2FPage%2FSectionPage&cid=11
76156316498

GASB Issues Proposal Addressing Transition Issue in Pension Standards.

Norwalk, CT, July 2, 2013—The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) today issued for
public comment a proposed Statement regarding the transition provisions of GASB’s new pension
standards for state and local governments. The proposal would eliminate a potential source of
understatement of restated beginning net position and expense in a government’s first year of
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implementing GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.

To correct this potential understatement, the proposed Statement would require a state or local
government, when transitioning to the new pension standards, to recognize a beginning deferred
outflow of resources for its pension contributions made during the time between the measurement
date of the beginning net pension liability and the beginning of the initial fiscal year of
implementation. This amount would be recognized regardless of whether it is practical to determine
the beginning amounts of all other deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions.

The provisions would be effective simultaneously with the provisions of Statement 68, which is
required to be to be applied in fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014.

The Exposure Draft is available on the GASB website, www.gasb.org. Stakeholders are encouraged
to review the proposal and provide comment by August 26, 2013.

Read the Exposure Draft at:

http://www.gasb.org/cs/BlobServer?blobkey=id&blobwhere=1175827275726&blobheader=applicati
on%2Fpdf&blobcol=urldata&blobtable=MungoBlobs

GFOA Executive Board Approves Best Practice on Actuarial Valuation
Reports.

At its recent meeting in San Francisco, the GFOA Executive Board approved a new best practice,
titled Reviewing, Understanding and Using the Actuarial Valuation Report and Its Role in Plan
Funding. This new best practice, forwarded by the Committee on Retirement and Benefits
Administration, recommends that state and local government finance officials and others with
decision-making authority carefully review and understand their actuarial valuation report and use
the information it contains to make policy decisions that ensure that pension benefits are funded in a
sustainable manner.

http://www.gfoa.org/downloads/GFOABestPracticeonActuarialValuationReports.pdf

GASB Issues Implementation Guide for Pension Plans.

Norwalk, CT, June 27, 2013—The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) today
published an Implementation Guide for the new GASB standards regarding financial reporting for
state and local government pension plans. The Guide to Implementation of GASB Statement 67 on
Financial Reporting for Pension Plans is an authoritative resource designed to assist preparers and
auditors of state and local government pension plan financial reports as they prepare to implement
the standards, which are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2013.

Prepared by the GASB staff, the Implementation Guide answers key questions about putting the new
standards into practice. Topics addressed in the Guide include:

The scope and applicability of GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans●

https://bondcasebriefs.com/2013/07/09/finance-and-accounting/gfoa-executive-board-approves-best-practice-on-actuarial-valuation-reports/
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The classification of pensions as defined benefit or defined contribution●

The determination of the number of pension plans that should be reported●

The recognition of certain transactions and other events in defined benefit pension plan financial●

statements
Note disclosures and required supplementary information●

The calculation of the net pension liability●

“During the development and after the issuance of Statement 67, users, preparers, and auditors of
pension plan financial reports posed questions to the GASB staff regarding the application of the
standards,” said GASB Chairman Robert H. Attmore. “This Implementation Guide is written in a
question and answer format and provides illustrative examples to assist stakeholders when applying
the new standards for pension plan reporting.”

Mr. Attmore continued, “We are also pleased to announce that a digital version of the Guide will be
the first guide to be offered on the GASB website as a download at no cost. Furthermore, all
subsequent guides will be available on the GASB website at no cost moving forward.”

A hard copy bound edition of the Guide can be ordered for $46.50 plus shipping by visiting the GASB
store, or by calling the GASB Order Department at (800) 748-0659.

An additional implementation guide for GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Pensions, will be available in early 2014. The provisions in Statement 68 are effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2014.

The Implementation Guide is available at:

http://www.gasb.org/cs/ContentServer?c=Page&pagename=GASB%2FPage%2FGASBSectionPage&
cid=1176163026371

GASB Issues Proposals on Concepts for Measurement of Assets and Liabilities
and on the Measurement and Application of Fair Value.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) today issued for public comment a proposed
Concepts Statement that would guide the GASB when establishing standards regarding the
measurement of assets and liabilities for U.S. state and local governments. The GASB also issued its
Preliminary Views regarding the measurement of fair value and the application of fair value,
including note disclosures. Finally, the GASB issued a Plain-Language Supplement that addresses
both proposals and is intended to solicit feedback on the proposals from non-accountant financial
statement users.

“The proposed Concepts Statement would establish concepts for both measurement approaches and
measurement attributes,” said GASB Chairman Robert H. Attmore. “Measurement is a necessary
component of a complete GASB conceptual framework, which will enhance consistency in future
standards setting for state and local governments.”

Regarding the Preliminary Views on fair value, Mr. Attmore said, “In conjunction with the proposed
Concepts Statement, the proposed changes to GASB’s fair value standards are intended to increase
consistency and comparability in governments’ fair value measurements and related disclosures. The
goal is to enhance financial statement users’ ability to assess a government’s financial health and
accountability.”
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Measurement Concepts

The Exposure Draft, Measurement of Elements of Financial Statements, proposes concepts that will
inform the GASB’s decisions when establishing future standards for how state and local
governments would determine the dollar amount at which to report assets and liabilities.

The GASB is proposing two approaches to measuring assets and liabilities—initial amounts and
remeasured amounts. Initial amounts are determined at the time an asset is acquired or a liability is
incurred. Remeasured amounts are determined anew as of the date of each year’s financial
statements.

The GASB also is proposing four measurement attributes (the characteristic of an asset or liability
that is being measured):

Historical cost is the price paid to acquire to acquire an asset or the amount received when a
liability is incurred in an actual transaction.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Replacement cost is the price that would be paid to acquire an asset with equivalent service
potential in an orderly market transaction at the measurement date.

Settlement amount is the amount at which an asset could be realized or a liability could be
liquidated with the counterparty, other than in an active market.

Fair Value Measurement and Application

The Preliminary Views, Fair Value Measurement and Application, describes how fair value should be
defined and measured, what assets and liabilities should be measured at fair value, and what
information about fair value should be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

It is the GASB’s preliminary view that investments generally should be measured at fair value. An
investment would be defined as a security or other asset that a government holds primarily for the
purpose of income or profit and the present service capacity of which is based solely on its ability to
generate cash, to be sold to generate cash, or to procure services for the citizenry.

Certain investments would be excluded from measurement at fair value and should continue to be
measured according to existing GASB standards, such as investments in money market instruments
with remaining maturity at time of purchase of one year or less.

Under current accounting standards, state and local governments are required to disclose how they
arrived at their measures of fair value if they are not based on quoted market prices. In the
Preliminary Views document, the GASB proposes expanding those disclosures to include the levels of
inputs a government uses to measure fair value and the judgments made to arrive at those inputs.

Providing Feedback

Both proposals and the Plain-Language Supplement are available on the GASB website,
www.gasb.org. Stakeholders are encouraged to review the proposals and provide comment by
September 30, 2013. The GASB also is planning to host a public hearing on both proposals in
Flushing, New York, on November 1, 2013, at 8:30 a.m. EST.



For the Preliminary Views on Fair Value Measurement and Application, the GASB will be conducting
a field test (in which governments go through the hypothetical process of applying the proposed
standards) and is seeking state and local governments to participate. Governments interested in
participating should contact GASB Project Manager Randy Finden at rjfinden@gasb.org.

The Exposure Draft is available at:

http://www.gasb.org/cs/BlobServer?blobkey=id&blobwhere=1175827186082&blobheader=applicati
on%2Fpdf&blobcol=urldata&blobtable=MungoBlobs

Preliminary Views are available at:

http://www.gasb.org/cs/BlobServer?blobkey=id&blobwhere=1175827186112&blobheader=applicati
on%2Fpdf&blobcol=urldata&blobtable=MungoBlobs

Plain Language Supplement available at:

http://www.gasb.org/cs/BlobServer?blobkey=id&blobwhere=1175827186097&blobheader=applicati
on%2Fpdf&blobcol=urldata&blobtable=MungoBlobs

Internet Seminar on the GFOA’s New Program for Small Governments that
Prepare Modified Cash Basis Financial Reports.

Sign up to participate in GFOA’s complimentary one-hour Internet training seminar,  The GFOA’s
New Program for Small Governments that Prepare Modified Cash Basis Financial Reports. This
course is designed for the accounting or auditor professional interested in modified cash basis
financial reporting and the new award program recently announced by the GFOA.  The interactive
training will offer guidance on the practical application of the modified cash basis for financial
reporting as well as the format and contents of a small government annual financial report (SGAFR).

Click on individual dates to register: July 11, 2013; September 18, 2013; or download the
Registration form. Earn 1 CPE credit with your participation.

July 11, 2013:

http://gfoa.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=2670

September 18, 2013:

http://gfoa.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=2671

Download the registration form at:

http://gfoa.org/downloads/GFOATrainingCertificateofConformance.pdf

FASB Indefinitely Defers Certain Disclosures for Nonpublic Employee Benefit
Plans.
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Norwalk, CT, June 12, 2013—The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) today voted to
indefinitely defer certain disclosures about investments held by a nonpublic employee benefit plan in
its plan sponsor’s own nonpublic equity securities. The FASB will issue an Accounting Standards
Update, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Deferral of the Effective Date of Certain Disclosures
for Nonpublic Employee Benefit Plans in Update No. 2011-04, in the next few weeks.

The indefinite deferral applies to disclosures of certain quantitative information about the significant
unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value measurement for investments held by certain
employee benefit plans. The deferral applies specifically to employee benefit plans—other than those
plans that are subject to Securities and Exchange Commission filing requirements—that hold
investments in their plan sponsors’ own nonpublic entity equity securities, including equity
securities of their nonpublic affiliated entities.

A summary of decisions reached will be available on the project page of the FASB’s website at
www.fasb.org.

“Today’s decision is responsive to private company stakeholders, addressing their concern that
certain disclosure requirements would potentially provide proprietary information when their
employee benefit plans’ financial statements are posted on the plan regulator’s website,” said FASB
Chairman Leslie F. Seidman.

The deferral will become effective upon issuance of the final Update for all financial statements that
have not yet been issued, which is expected to be issued in the next few weeks. It will be available
on the FASB website at www.fasb.org.

The summary is available at:

http://www.fasb.org/cs/ContentServer?c=FASBContent_C&pagename=FASB%2FFASBContent_C%2
FProjectUpdatePage&cid=1176162354675

Non-Issuers and Nonprofits May Be Excluded From FASB's Private Entity
Guidance.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board on June 6 tentatively decided that some private
companies and nonprofit organizations may be excluded from the population of nonpublic entities
that would be eligible for alternative accounting rules developed by the board.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board on June 6 tentatively decided that some private
companies and nonprofit organizations may be excluded from the population of nonpublic entities
that would be eligible for alternative accounting rules developed by the board.

At a meeting in Norwalk, Conn., the board decided that the category of reporting entities classified
as non-issuers that file or furnish financial statements with the SEC would be excluded from the
scope of a proposed decision-making framework for determining whether alternative guidance is
required for private companies reporting under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Elizabeth Gagnon, a FASB project manager, said that while non-issuers do not register their
securities with the SEC, those entities are typically engaged in the business of facilitating securities
transactions and should not be considered private companies. Non-issuers could include broker-
dealers, nationally recognized statistical rating organizations, and some registered investment

http://www.fasb.org
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advisers, she added.

In previous deliberations on defining what constitutes a nonpublic entity, the board decided to
exclude an entity that is required to file or furnish financial statements with the SEC for purposes of
issuing securities to be traded in a public market.

Because the public availability of U.S. GAAP financial statements is used as a criterion to determine
which entities should be considered public, FASB also agreed to include within that classification
any entity offering unrestricted securities that provides periodic financial reports to the public under
a legal or regulatory requirement.

Regarding nonprofit organizations, the board decided that they should not be considered nonpublic
or public entities but instead should be treated as a separate category of entities for financial
reporting purposes.

Gagnon suggested that when FASB is determining whether alternative guidance under U.S. GAAP
should be provided for business entities within the scope of the private company decision-making
framework, the board should also consider whether any modifications or simplifications should be
extended to nonprofit entities.

Gagnon said that under the proposed approach, the board could consider on a standard-by-standard
basis whether all or some nonprofit entities should be eligible to apply the accounting and reporting
alternatives provided for private companies.

A staff paper prepared for the meeting said the proposed scope of the private company decision-
making framework doesn’t include nonprofit organizations. The paper also explained how nonprofit
organizations have diverse missions, saying that some entities serve as charitable entities with
“clear public purposes,” while other entities, such as credit unions and mutual insurance companies
that provide a direct benefit for their members, are treated as for-profit business entities for
financial reporting purposes.

FASB member Thomas Linsmeier supported the staff proposal but expressed concern that the board
would begin to naturally extend its decisions on private company accounting to nonprofit
organizations.

Linsmeier said the board must continue to recognize the substantive differences between the
financial reporting practices of nonprofit organizations and those of private companies, as well as
the differences between their respective audiences of financial statement users.

by Thomas Jaworski

Financial Accounting Foundation Publishes 2012 Annual Report.

Norwalk, CT, May 22, 2013—The Financial Accounting Foundation (FAF) today published its 2012
Annual Report. The FAF is the independent, private-sector organization responsible for the oversight
of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB).

http://www.accountingfoundation.org/cs/BlobServer?blobkey=id&blobwhere=1175826969164&blob
header=application%2Fpdf&blobcol=urldata&blobtable=MungoBlobs
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GFOA Members Voting on Public Policy Statement at 2013 Business Meeting.

At the 2013 Annual Business meeting, the GFOA membership will be voting on a new public policy
statement recommended by the Executive Board for approval.  The policy statement, Opposition to
Giving the SEC Authority Over the Content, Timing and Frequency of State and Local Government
Financial Statements and Disclosure Documents, explains GFOA’s positions related to a July 2012
Municipal Securities Report issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission.  The policy
statement reiterates GFOA’s opposition to legislative or regulatory action that would allow the SEC
to interfere with or regulate state and local government bond disclosure documents, and financial
information.  The statement also opposes the SEC paper’s suggestion that the SEC should have a
role overseeing GASB.  Support for industry efforts related to bond disclosure and increased bond
pricing transparency, is noted in the statement.

The statement is available at:

http://gfoa.org/downloads/GFOASECPublicPolicyMay2013.pdf

SEC Commissioner Says Accounting Standards Must Be Clear and Effectively
Enforced.

New accounting standards should make sense of rapidly changing financial markets, be useful to
investors, and be “appropriately and consistently applied, and then effectively enforced,” SEC
Commissioner Elisse B. Walter said in a May 30 speech.

Keynote Luncheon Speech

by

Commissioner Elisse B. Walter

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission

32nd Annual SEC and Financial Reporting Institute Conference

Pasadena, CA

May 30, 2013

Introduction

Good afternoon and thank you, Dean Bill (Holder) for your kind introduction, and thanks to Randy
(Beatty) for inviting me to share my views at the 32nd Annual SEC and Financial Reporting Institute
Conference here at USC. I am delighted to be here with all of you today.

You may not hear this too often from people outside your profession, but I have always had a passion
for accounting and auditing. I think this has its roots in the time I spent with my father, who was a
CPA and the CFO of a publicly-held company; he helped me begin to understand just how important
accounting is to business and the financial system. Of course, in my more than two decades with the
SEC, which included close to a decade in the Division of Corporation Finance, I have developed a
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deeper and more complete understanding of the critical role accounting and auditing professionals
play in our capital markets.

And today, I am pleased to see that we are working to adapt and expand that role to serve investors
and other stakeholders even more effectively in the years ahead, by addressing critical issues at a
moment of great change and important progress in the worlds of finance and accounting.

Before I go on, I have a disclosure requirement of my own. I need to remind you that the views I
express today are my own, and not those of the Commission, my fellow Commissioners or the
Commission’s staff.1

High-Quality Financial Reporting

Because financial information is the starting point for an investor’s decision-making process, high
quality accounting standards are critical. Accurate and useful financial information creates the
environment in which capital formation sprouts, grows and, sadly, sometimes withers. That is why,
when developing accounting standards that will shape an increasingly complex financial
environment, it is critical that they accurately reflect the underlying economics of the transactions
they document.

Of course, as we know from the many standards-setting processes underway, there is often a
diversity of views on how the economics of business transactions should be considered when
developing accounting and disclosure requirements, and reconciling them is a primary task of any
good standard setter — the development of high-quality accounting standards is certainly dependent
upon it.

Reconciling diverse views on corporate finance issues is something I have spent a lot of time on as a
Commissioner and regulator. And from my perspective, the most effective way to resolve these
differences is to set a standard that expresses a transaction’s economics in a fashion that
meaningfully informs investors and resonates with them as they study a company’s disclosures.

FASB/IASB Convergence Projects

We are seeing this dynamic play out in the FASB and IASB priority convergence projects. Earlier
today, you discussed significant progress towards an alignment of accounting standards in four key
areas — revenue, leases, financial instruments, and insurance.

This progress is a positive development, with both the FASB and the IASB showing great skill in
working together to create common standards that will effectively serve investors the world over.
However, as Paul [Beswick] noted this morning, publication of the standards is just the starting
point. The challenge you face, as CPAs, is to successfully implement any new accounting standards,
and thereby collectively protect investors in this evolving financial market.

And, finishing the convergence projects is, of course, not the end of the story for the United States
and IFRS. I continue to look forward to a day when there is one set of global accounting standards,
and we are taking a number of steps in that direction at the SEC, including soliciting views from
U.S. publicly held companies regarding these issues. As Paul noted earlier, the IFRS already plays
an important role in the U.S. capital markets. For example, today with US foreign private issuers
already using IFRS, we have a significant public market — with approximately 450 companies with a
market capitalization in the trillions — already trading on the basis of financial statements prepared
in accordance with those standards.

I hope that, as these common standards come on line, you will work with accounting colleagues and



corporate managers to ensure a successful transition resting on four pillars.

The first pillar of successful implementation is training, and these projects will require training
across all constituents at all levels within the organization — from the staff accountant performing
the filing review to the senior management. In addition, we all need to consider how we can make
sure that investors understand the changes that are occurring. In order for that to happen, you and
all of the other affected personnel at the entities you represent will first need to take as much time
as necessary to fully understand the new standards yourselves.

The next pillar is resources. It is important that companies devote sufficient time and resources to
updating their financial reporting systems in the wake of these changes. We can already see that the
standard-setters understand the significance of the changes and the need for a sufficiently long
implementation period. But companies themselves must also be sure to allot adequate time to
amending processes and systems, and resources necessary to run parallel systems, until they feel
fully comfortable reporting financial information using the new standards.

The third pillar is identification of interpretative issues. The standard-setters are spending a great
deal of effort now to ensure that the new standards are as precise as possible. But there will always
be areas that demand interpretation. It will be important to identify areas where there is diversity in
application and address them through interpretative guidance so that investors are not harmed and
financial statements are transparent. I expect the SEC staff will be fairly active in this space.

In addition, I commend the FASB for proactively addressing this area by bringing together a broad
spectrum of representative constituents into an implementation group that will raise practice
interpretation issues related to the proposed revenue standard. This is about timely communication
that allows thoughtful deliberation, and the goal is to do this in an open and transparent manner. I
also think is it a positive sign that the IASB has agreed to participate in this initiative and that we,
through the SEC staff, will be an observer. Perhaps this could serve as a pilot for all of the new
standards in development and a new tool for the profession.

The final pillar is a focus on investor understanding. When there is an accounting policy choice, we
should select the accounting that best reflects the basic economics of the transaction. With more
principles-based standards, it is of the utmost importance to consider the substance of the
transaction and the economics. Disclosure that is transparent and communicates the critical
judgments will allow the investor to see transactions through managements’ eyes, allowing them to
better understand the motivations and the potential pitfalls or benefits of the transaction, and to
make more informed decisions. Depending upon the transaction, this may mean going beyond the
explicit disclosure requirements. Again, I encourage you to look beyond abstract accounting
standards and disclosure checklists and think about what would be meaningful to an investor
seeking to understand a transaction’s importance. A check-the-box mentality may not produce the
best financial information.

Increase Outreach to Investors Related to Financial Reporting

Increased investor understanding should always be a primary goal of new standards. But to end up
with standards which support that goal, we need to start the standard-setting process with investor
outreach. Finding out what is on investors’ minds is a necessary step because this will improve the
overall quality of the standards.

Recently, we have seen an increase in investor outreach, in large part thanks to a strong effort by
FASB, but I believe there is still room for improvement. For example, the FASB, in its due process,
should emphasize collecting feedback from users. We need to ask ourselves: “Do we really know



what matters to an investor?” “What information is the investor looking for?” And “have we received
feedback from a cross-section of the different types of investors?”

As the SEC looks to update its guidance as a result of final new accounting standards, we, too, will
be seeking to understand the needs of investors in advance of any amendments.

Disclosures

One of the parts of my job that I enjoy most is the opportunity to interact with individuals who are
devoted to providing investors with high-quality financial reporting. In these interactions, I get to
hear all of the wonderful things that the Commission is doing well and, not surprisingly, what the
Commission could do better. One issue that has been raised in these discussions is the level of
required disclosures that are included in a company’s filings with the Commission.

When I hear this sort of comment, I think the natural inclination is to be somewhat skeptical of a
company not wanting to be as transparent as possible with their investors. But increasingly, we hear
that the level of disclosures is interfering with a registrant’s ability to communicate with investors.
Of course, we need to investigate and evaluate that assertion. But, if for now, I accept this
assumption to be a fact, then what are the appropriate next steps? In my view, there seem to be two
potential next steps to research the issue and consider potential improvements. One path would be
to rethink the entire regime. While this route may sound encouraging on first blush, it fails to
acknowledge that our current disclosure regime has served investors well for decades. And, because
of the enormity of the task, it runs the risk of taking too long while not being as impactful as it might
otherwise be. A more targeted review of some of the areas where the information is not perceived to
be as valuable has the advantage of being completed more quickly and therefore have a more
immediate impact.

In addition to important areas of line item disclosure, I believe that the prime target for
improvement is Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”). As I have said many times before,
these disclosures about where a company’s been and where it’s going “should be made in a way that
communicates — truly speaks — to shareholders. . . . [that] truly enables the owners [of the
company], the shareholders, to view the company and its prospects through the eyes of its
insiders.”2 So I encourage you all to give us your thoughts on disclosure requirements; we really
need to work together to ensure that disclosure truly serves to inform.

Role of the Auditor

Stepping back for a moment from front-line accounting, it is important that, as we shape the
financial reporting structure of the future, we continue to emphasize and enhance the role of the
auditors who serve as gatekeepers to the public securities markets. The integrity and reliability of
the financial reporting system relies heavily on auditors having significant responsibility for the
large volume of financial information that supports the Commission’s full disclosure system.

Congress, in creating our system, granted the accounting profession an important public trust. This
trust in auditors, combined with the vigilance of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(“PCAOB”), helps to form the foundation of the financial reporting process. We look to auditors not
only to help detect problems, but, most importantly, to prevent problems from occurring in the first
place, by deterring those who would fudge numbers, take shortcuts, or, more subtly, tolerate
inappropriate biases that have the effect of making an otherwise reasonable estimate or judgment
unreasonable.

Role of the PCAOB



Experience teaches us that there is value in auditing the auditors as well, and, since its creation 10
years ago, the PCAOB has grown into an important regulatory body with a significant investor
protection role in this area.

The PCAOB is in a unique and fortunate position of having its standard setting, inspections, and
enforcement all under one roof. The potential benefits of this structure are remarkable because they
are all critical components of what some have called the “audit performance feedback loop” — the
processes of, for example, leveraging the information gathered during inspections and enforcement
actions to develop high quality standards.

More than 2,300 accounting firms are registered with the PCAOB, about 900 of them based
overseas. As you know, one of the PCAOB’s most important mandates is to conduct inspections of
accounting firms registered with the Board. And since 2002, it has conducted inspections of
thousands of audits of U.S. public companies in the U.S. and abroad.

One area that has been nearest and dearest to my heart in overseeing the PCAOB is auditor
performance standards.

As I have often said, I would like to see the PCAOB devote more attention to updating and
maintaining their performance standards and quality control, which have the most direct effect on
how audits are performed. High quality audit standards that set clear expectations for auditor
performance are absolutely critical to our financial system.

I’m encouraged that standards regarding the auditing of related parties and significant unusual
transactions, as well as auditing accounting estimates, including fair value measurements, are on
the PCAOB’s current standard setting agenda. However, I think more can be done to enhance the
development and maintenance of high quality auditing standards. There are also a number of very
important auditing matters under consideration globally, such as the considerations for changes to
the auditor’s reporting model. It is important that the PCAOB be a leader in advancing the
continuing improvement of audit quality, including by sharing experiences, knowledge and views
between regulators. This also includes monitoring the activities of other regulators, standard setters,
and legislative bodies as they explore changes to the way audits are conducted or auditors are
overseen.

A second priority is expanding the PCAOB’s ability to perform inspections in certain jurisdictions
outside the U.S. The Board has made remarkable progress over the past year in advancing new
cooperative agreements and developing relationships with non-U.S. regulators, enabling
advancements of inspections of audits around the globe. A strong, global inspection program is
critical to evaluating audit performance and provides important information necessary for the
PCAOB to improve their auditing and quality control standards as well as for firms to improve their
own quality controls.

Audits of Broker Dealers

The Dodd-Frank Act gave the Board explicit authority over the audits and auditors of broker-dealers’
financial statements. Currently, the Board has an interim broker/dealer inspection program in place,
and it issued its first public progress report on that program last year. The initial results were
concerning. The Board plans to continue inspections under the interim program until rules for a
permanent program take effect. Its next progress report is expected later this year and will cover a
much larger number of firms and audits. I will be very much interested in the results.

In addition, in June 2011, the Commission proposed amendments to Rule 17a-5, the rule that



contains the financial reporting requirements for brokers and dealers. Among other things, the
proposed amendments are intended to increase focus on certain financial and custodial
requirements and facilitate the PCAOB’s implementation of its oversight of broker-dealer audits. In
July 2011, the PCAOB proposed new auditing and attestation standards that would apply to the
audits of broker and dealers. I am hopeful that the Commission will move forward to finalize its rules
in the near future and that, once we do, the PCAOB will likewise move forward expeditiously.

PCAOB Inspection Reports — Enhancing Inspection Report Content

I understand that one of the PCAOB’s new near term priority projects is directed at improving the
content and readability of inspection reports and that the Board is in the early stages of conducting
outreach as part of this efforts. I’m encouraged by this development — higher quality inspection
reports will promote better understanding of the issues and help to prevent similar problems going
forward. In particular, I believe that PCAOB inspection reports should include citations to aspects of
the relevant standards or rules and an evaluation of how the auditor’s performance compared to
such requirements.

Conclusion

We are all charged with creating and implementing an accounting and audit foundation that will
allow investors to make sense of the rapidly changing financial markets, and ensure that the results
are not only timely and accurate, but also comprehensible and useful to investors. The new
standards that are developed should be informed by thoughtful and robust analytical thinking and
with the needs of investors uppermost in our minds. These new standards need to be clear,
appropriately and consistently applied, and then effectively enforced. Timely communication
between all players leading up to the effective date will be critical to help pave the road to success.

Thank you for your time, and I look forward to answering your questions.

FOOTNOTES

1 The Securities and Exchange Commission, as a matter of policy, disclaims responsibility for any
private publications or statements by any of its employees. The views expressed herein are those of
the author and do not necessarily reflect the views of the Commission, other Commissioners, or the
Commission staff.

2 Commissioner Elisse B. Walter, Remarks before WESFACCA, “Let the Story Shine Through”
(March 5, 2010), available at http://www.sec.gov/news/speech/2010/spch030510ebw.htm.

 

GASB Improves Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees.

Norwalk, CT, April 22, 2013—The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) today
approved a new Statement that provides accounting and financial reporting guidance to state and
local governments that offer nonexchange financial guarantees and for governments that receive
guarantees on their obligations.

GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial
Guarantees, requires a state or local government guarantor that offers a nonexchange financial

https://bondcasebriefs.com/2013/05/20/finance-and-accounting/gasb-improves-reporting-for-nonexchange-financial-guarantees-2/


guarantee to another organization or government to recognize a liability on its financial statements
when it is more likely than not that the guarantor will be required to make a payment to the
obligation holders under the agreement.

A nonexchange financial guarantee is a credit enhancement or assurance offered by a guarantor
without receiving equal or approximately equal value in exchange. The guarantor agrees to pay an
obligation holder in the event that the issuer of the obligation is not able to make its required
payments to the obligation holder. Nonexchange financial guarantees can include guarantees by a
state for bonds issued by local governments within that state or guarantees of mortgage loans to
individuals, if equal or approximately equal value is not received in exchange.

Nonexchange financial guarantees often are not reflected in the financial statements or notes of
either the government guarantor or the government issuer of the obligation because such
guarantees are typically extended without any payment in return. Nonetheless, financial guarantees
represent potential claims on a government’s resources when it is the guarantor, and a potential
reduction of a government’s obligations when it is the issuer of the obligation.

“In the current economic environment, investors are increasingly seeking credit enhancements and
assurances, including financial guarantees, to minimize the possibility of nonpayment,” said GASB
Chairman Robert H. Attmore. “Statement 70 responds to the need for consistent recognition and
disclosure guidance for nonexchange financial guarantees. This Statement also will enable financial
statement users to better assess the probability that governments will repay obligation holders.”

Statement 70 also requires:

A government guarantor to consider qualitative factors when determining if a payment on its
guarantee is more likely than not to be required. Such factors may include whether the issuer of the
guaranteed obligation is experiencing significant financial difficulty or initiating the process of
entering into bankruptcy or financial reorganization.

An issuer government that is required to repay a guarantor for guarantee payments made to
continue to report a liability unless legally released. When a government is released, the government
would recognize revenue as a result of being relieved of the obligation.

A government guarantor or issuer to disclose information about the amounts and nature of
nonexchange financial guarantees.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2013. Early application of the standard is encouraged.

Statement 70 will be available for download at no cost from the GASB website in May. Printed copies
of the Statement will be available for purchase soon thereafter. A plain-language description of the
new requirements also will be available on the GASB website.

FASB, IASB Issue Revamped Lease Accounting Proposal.

U.S. and international standard setters on May 16 issued a revised proposal intended to improve
transparency in public and private entities’ accounting for leases by requiring them to recognize
assets and liabilities arising from leasing transactions on their balance sheet.
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The exposure draft, “Leases (Topic 842): a revision of the 2010 proposed Accounting Standards
Update, Leases (Topic 840),” modifies the proposed guidance issued by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board and the International Accounting Standards Board in August 2010. (Prior coverage
.)

Under the latest proposal, a lessee would be required to recognize assets and liabilities for the rights
and obligations created by leases. The proposal also directs lessees and lessors to classify their
leases according to whether the lessee is expected to consume more than an insignificant portion of
the economic benefits embedded in the leased asset.

During a webcast introducing the proposal, FASB member Russell Golden said leasing is an
important activity for many organizations because it represents a “means of gathering access to
assets, obtaining finance, and reducing an organization’s exposure to the risk of asset ownership.”

Golden, whose term as FASB chair begins July 1, said the existing accounting models, which require
lessees and lessors to classify their leases as either capital leases or operating leases, often don’t
accurately represent leasing transactions. Several users have to adjust reported financial
information to reflect the assets and liabilities arising from leases, he added.

According to FASB, the proposed dual-model approach for the recognition, measurement, and
presentation of expenses and cash flows from leases will better reflect the differing economics of
leasing transactions. Under the proposed approach, a lessee would report a straight-line lease
expense in its income statement for most property leases, but for most leases of assets other than
property, the lessee would present the interest on the lease liability separately from the amortization
of the right-of-use asset.

Golden said it’s important for statements’ users to have a “complete and understandable picture of
an organization’s leasing activity,” which can include leases of real estate, vehicles, and construction
equipment. He added that the proposed guidance would require lessees to provide disclosures that
enable investors and users of financial statements to understand the amount, timing, and
uncertainty of cash flows arising from the leases.

Despite its perceived benefits, the revised approach for lease accounting was opposed by some
constituents and FASB members, whose alternative views are presented in the exposure draft.

Current FASB Chair Leslie Seidman said in a release that the decision to revise the original proposal
to distinguish among types of leases for income statement and cash flow purposes was made in
response to feedback received from stakeholders. The revised, converged proposal is responsive to
the “widespread view of investors that leases are liabilities that belong on the balance sheet,” she
added.

FASB and the IASB also made changes to the accounting model for lessors to ensure consistency
with both the lessee accounting proposal and the revenue recognition standard.

FASB and the IASB decided that the existing separate accounting model for leveraged leases would
not be retained for the proposed guidance. The exposure draft proposes to amend guidance in
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740, “Income Taxes,” regarding leveraged leases.

According to the proposal, respondents are encouraged to submit one comment letter to either FASB
or the IASB. An effective date for the proposed requirements will be determined after the public
feedback has been jointly considered by the boards.

Warren Kitchens of Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP told Tax Analysts the new framework will make



companies’ assessments of leasing transactions more complex. Some companies implementing the
new requirements will have to contend with significant timing differences that could result in
additional deferred tax assets and liabilities, he said.

FASB and the IASB will accept written comment on the revised exposure draft until September 13.

The full proposal is available at:

http://www.fasb.org/cs/BlobServer?blobkey=id&blobnocache=true&blobwhere=1175826935767&bl
obheader=application%2Fpdf&blobcol=urldata&blobtable=MungoBlobs.)

by Thomas Jaworski

Finance Committee Releases Options Paper on Economic and Community
Development Incentives.

Incentives for economic and community development is the subject of the Senate Finance
Committee’s sixth tax reform options paper, which the committee released May 15.

Options listed for reforming the mortgage interest deduction include gradually repealing it, reducing
the amount of the deduction for more expensive homes, denying the deduction for second homes,
converting the deduction to a credit, and converting it to an above-the-line deduction.

The low-income housing tax credit is also discussed in the paper. Options for it include its repeal,
reform, or expansion, or an equivalent reduction in tax on rental income.

The paper suggests that the state and local sales tax deduction could be repealed, permanently
extended, limited in value, or capped based on adjusted gross income. Another option the paper lists
is allowing non-itemizers to claim either the sales tax deduction or a deduction for state and local
real property taxes.

The paper also looks at the tax treatment of bonds and community development incentives, such as
the new markets tax credit, the historic preservation tax credit, and tax relief packages for declared
national disaster areas. It also discusses options for providing state and local tax uniformity, listing
several ideas that would serve as alternatives or exemptions to the Marketplace Fairness Act.

The full paper is available at:

http://www.finance.senate.gov/issue/?id=9d5f328c-d707-44e1-af07-c31d8340c4f8

GASB Improves Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has approved a new Statement that provides
accounting and financial reporting guidance to state and local governments that offer nonexchange
financial guarantees and for governments that receive guarantees on their obligations.

GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial
Guarantees, requires a state or local government guarantor that offers a nonexchange financial

http://www.fasb.org/cs/BlobServer?blobkey=id&blobnocache=true&blobwhere=1175826935767&blobheader=application/pdf&blobcol=urldata&blobtable=MungoBlobs
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guarantee to another organization or government to recognize a liability on its financial statements
when it is more likely than not that the guarantor will be required to make a payment to the
obligation holders under the agreement.

A nonexchange financial guarantee is a credit enhancement or assurance offered by a guarantor
without receiving equal or approximately equal value in exchange. The guarantor agrees to pay an
obligation holder in the event that the issuer of the obligation is not able to make its required
payments to the obligation holder. Nonexchange financial guarantees can include guarantees by a
state for bonds issued by local governments within that state or guarantees of mortgage loans to
individuals, if equal or approximately equal value is not received in exchange.

Nonexchange financial guarantees often are not reflected in the financial statements or notes of
either the government guarantor or the government issuer of the obligation because such
guarantees are typically extended without any payment in return. Nonetheless, financial guarantees
represent potential claims on a government’s resources when it is the guarantor, and a potential
reduction of a government’s obligations when it is the issuer of the obligation.

“In the current economic environment, investors are increasingly seeking credit enhancements and
assurances, including financial guarantees, to minimize the possibility of nonpayment,” said GASB
Chairman Robert H. Attmore. “Statement 70 responds to the need for consistent recognition and
disclosure guidance for nonexchange financial guarantees. This Statement also will enable financial
statement users to better assess the probability that governments will repay obligation holders.”

Statement 70 also requires:

A government guarantor to consider qualitative factors when determining if a payment on its
guarantee is more likely than not to be required. Such factors may include whether the issuer of the
guaranteed obligation is experiencing significant financial difficulty or initiating the process of
entering into bankruptcy or financial reorganization.

An issuer government that is required to repay a guarantor for guarantee payments made to
continue to report a liability unless legally released. When a government is released, the government
would recognize revenue as a result of being relieved of the obligation.

A government guarantor or issuer to disclose information about the amounts and nature of
nonexchange financial guarantees.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2013. Early application of the standard is encouraged.

The full report can be found at:

http://www.gasb.org/cs/BlobServer?blobkey=id&blobwhere=1175826859554&blobheader=applicati
on%2Fpdf&blobcol=urldata&blobtable=MungoBlobs

Reuters: As U.S. Municipalities Turn More to Bank Loans, Market Races to
Catch Up.

Private bank loans are riding a wave of popularity among cities, counties and other U.S. local
governments, leaving the $3.7 trillion municipal bond market racing to assess and contain any risks

https://bondcasebriefs.com/2013/05/07/finance-and-accounting/reuters-as-u-s-municipalities-turn-more-to-bank-loans-market-races-to-catch-up/
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they may pose, a white paper said on Wednesday.

“Bank loans provide issuers with access to capital, supply needed cash flow…and can be easier and
less costly to obtain for an issuer than a public debt issuance,” a task force that included members of
nine major banking, investing, trading, and bond organizations said in the white paper.

But a loan could “introduce potential risks that may impact a bondholder’s willingness to continue to
hold the issuer’s bonds, affect bond ratings or impact pricing in the secondary market.”

The climb in borrowing, either by selling bonds to banks or through direct loans, has been swift and
steep. U.S. banks held a record high level of municipal bonds and loans in the final quarter of 2012,
$363.1 billion, according to the Federal Reserve, one of the few sources of data on the loans.

The public is often in the dark about the details of the borrowing, with investors and regulators
sometimes having to wait for annual statements to learn loans even exist.

“I think it’s great that there’s again another opportunity, another tool for state and local
governments to tap, but I do think we do need to be vigilant about some of the pitfalls in that private
funding market,” Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) Executive Director Lynnette Kelly
said last month.

“What are the terms of those bank loans and do state and local governments really understand the
risks involved with bank loans? Are those loans being disclosed? Is there a refinancing risk in five
years, seven years, 10 years – whenever these great loans come due?” she added in a speech to a
meeting of state treasurers.

The MSRB is a self-regulatory organization that writes the rules for the market that the Securities
and Exchange Commission enforces. In a statement on Wednesday, Kelly commended the task force
for assisting issuers by laying out possible ways to disclose the loans.

Issuers do not have to provide offering documents when they take out the loans, and they do not
have to tell traders in the secondary market about them. Last year, though, the MSRB began
pushing for voluntary disclosure.

The task force, which included representatives from the American Bankers Association and the
Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association, suggested disclosing bank documents such as
the financing agreements or providing summaries that cover the loan’s terms. It emphasized that
issuers should promptly post the information.

Banks have long made tax-exempt and taxable bank loans to issuers, but since 2009, they have been
more willing “to make an increasing amount of tax-exempt bank loans to issuers as an alternative to
publicly offered tax-exempt bond issues,” according to the white paper.

The 2009 federal stimulus plan raised the amounts of “bank-qualified obligations” that banks could
hold, as part of a grander scheme to thaw a municipal credit freeze. In 2009 and 2010, issuance of
the obligations doubled.

Essentially, the obligations are exceptions to part of the tax code that prevents banks from
deducting the carrying cost of municipal bonds from their taxes. By doing so, the tax code eliminates
the appeal of most tax-exempt debt for banks.

When the stimulus plan expired issuance of the qualified obligations slowed, but the public sector
continued relying on banks in general, the task force found.



“Contrary to the expectations of many participants in the municipal market, however, banks have
continued to make a substantial amount of bank loans on a non-bank-qualified basis since Jan. 1,
2011,” according to the white paper.

Many loans are being used as substitutes for the liquidity facilities and letters of credit that banks
provide to back variable-rate demand bonds, according to Thomas Jacobs, who tracks products
related to municipal bonds as a vice president for Moody’s Investors Service.

Direct borrowing is less expensive for both issuers and banks than selling variable-rate bonds with
support facilities, according to the rating agency.

Register today for GFOA’s 107th Annual Conference, June 2-5, 2013, at
Moscone Center North in San Francisco, California.

More than 75 preconference seminars, concurrent sessions, and discussion groups●

Unparalleled opportunities to earn continuing professional education (CPE) credit●

General sessions featuring nationally recognized speakers●

Ben Stein to deliver Monday keynote address.●

Evening social events to facilitate networking with colleagues●

A robust exhibit hall with hands-on demonstrations of the latest products and services●

Register here:

http://www.eventscribe.com/2013/GFOA/

U.S. Conference of Mayors: New Report Shows Cost-Saving Tools for City
Water Projects.

The United States Conference of Mayors (USCM) has released a report that shows how efficient
procurement practices can reduce public infrastructure costs allowing local government to contain
costs and reduce the need to increase consumer rates. Prepared by the USCM Mayors Water
Council, the report titled Municipal Procurement Process Improvements Yield Cost-Effective Public
Benefits, focuses on the short-comings of traditional procurement practices, and uses procurement
of public water and wastewater pipes to illustrate the benefits of applying life-cycle analysis to
identify pipe materials that offer cost savings and extend the useful design performance of the
system.

The full report is available at:

http://usmayors.org/pressreleases/uploads/2013/0422-release-waterreport.pdf

Moody's: Sequestration's impact on local governments isolated and generally
limited.

Only a few, isolated local governments are likely to experience significant negative pressure on their
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finances because of the ongoing federal sequestration, says Moody’s Investors Service in the report
“The Sequester Series: Limited Impacts on Local Governments.” Those vulnerable are in regions
with economies heavily dependent on defense spending or health care.

“Sequestration will strain the US economy to some extent, but any material impact on regional
economies will be limited to areas with substantial dependence on defense spending or health care,”
says Rachel Cortez, a Moody’s Vice President — Senior Analyst. “In these regions, local governments
relying on revenues from income taxes and sales taxes may face some budget pressures as layoffs,
furloughs, and hiring freezes reduce disposable income and consumer spending.”

Direct government funding makes up only 5% of the general revenue of local governments taken
together. Therefore the impact of the sequestration on local government budgets is mainly through
its drag on the economy, which reduces local government income tax and sales tax revenues
because of declines in disposable income and consumer spending. These tax sources make up about
10% of local government revenues.

Defense spending cuts will moderately pressure several regional economies, as the sequestration
requires a 7.8% cut in discretionary defense spending in federal fiscal year 2013. Areas with
relatively high dependence on federal employment include the Georgia MSAs of Warner Robins and
Hinesville-Fort Stewart. Areas with large exposures to federal procurement contracts include
Oshkosh-Neenah WI, Idaho Falls, ID, and Amarillo, TX.

Sequestration cuts also include a 2% reduction in Medicare reimbursement to hospitals and other
healthcare providers. As hospitals cope with tighter operating margins, areas with significant
healthcare employment may see some economic consequences. Such areas include Rochester, MN,
McAllen-Edinburg-Mission, TX, and Brownsville-Harlingen, TX.

For more information, Moody’s research subscribers can access this report at:

http://www.moodys.com/research/The-Sequester-Series-Limited-Impacts-on-Local-Governments–PB
M_PBM152247.

GASB White Paper: Why Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Is
- And Should Be - Different.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has released a white paper articulating the
differences between private sector and governmental accounting.

http://www.gasb.org/cs/BlobServer?blobkey=id&blobwhere=1175826684726&blobheader=applicati
on%2Fpdf&blobcol=urldata&blobtable=MungoBlobs
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